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Introduction 

In 2018, the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction (NCDPI) was awarded a Public Charter 

Schools Program (CSP) grant from the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) of approximately 

$26,600,000. The CSP grant will be used to implement the North Carolina Advancing Charter Collaboration 

and Excellence for Student Success (NC ACCESS) Program1 to: 

1. Increase the number of educationally disadvantaged students attending high-quality charter 

schools and expand the number of high-quality charter schools available to educationally 

disadvantaged students; 

2. Develop a cohort of one hundred (100) charter school leaders who can develop and demonstrate 

best practices in serving educationally disadvantaged students; and 

3. Broadly disseminate best practices in serving educationally disadvantaged students and foster 

collaboration in the charter school community and between charter schools and traditional public 

schools. 

The NC ACCESS Program has allocated the majority of the CSP funds to advance Priority 1 listed above 

through school-level subgrants, though subgrant recipients must also demonstrate a desire to share best 

practices with both charter schools and traditional public schools. For each of the five (5) years of the 

federal CSP award, the NC ACCESS Program will run a competitive subgrant competition and award 

subgrants to North Carolina charter schools that propose a comprehensive plan to increase the number 

of educationally disadvantaged students attending high-quality charter schools and expand the number 

of high-quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. 

This recommendation report includes the following information: 

1. Procedural History: A review of the procedural steps taken by the applicant and NC ACCESS 

Program team to ensure a consistent application and evaluation process. (p. 3) 

2. Conclusion and Recommendation: The NC ACCESS Program recommendation to approve or deny 

the subgrant application. (p. 3) 

3. Summary of the Application: A brief description of the applicant’s proposed plan to serve an 

increased number of educationally disadvantaged students attending high-quality charter schools 

and expand the number of high-quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged 

students. (p. 4) 

4. Summary of the Evaluation: A summary of the evaluation of the subgrant application by the 

Review Committee, including section ratings and application strengths and areas of concern. (p. 

5-6) 

5. Exhibits: Additional documentation pertinent to the recommendation. (p.7)  

                                                           
1 http://www.ncpublicschools.org/charterschools/ncaccess/  

http://www.ncpublicschools.org/charterschools/ncaccess/
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Overview of the Evaluation Process 

The NC ACCESS Subgrant Program is a competitive application process designed to award funding for 
North Carolina charter schools that propose to serve an increased number of educationally disadvantaged 
students. Each subgrant application has been reviewed by a committee of NC ACCESS Program team 
members and trained external evaluators. Applications were evaluated using the approved NC ACCESS 
Program subgrant application scoring rubric.2  
 
The subgrant application for The Exploris School was evaluated by a Review Committee consisting of the 
following individuals: 
 

Evaluator Role 

Dr. Elaina Sabatine External Evaluator 

Dr. Les Stein External Evaluator 

Dr. Barbara O’Neal Program Coordinator, NC ACCESS Program 

Jay Whalen Program Administrator, NC ACCESS Program 

 
 
The recommendation made to the Charter School Advisory Board (CSAB) is based on the totality of 
evidence provided by the applicant and all evaluations by the Review Committee. The CSAB will take all 
recommendations, evaluations, application materials, and due diligence into account and make a 
recommendation for the approval of subgrants to the State Board of Education (State Board). The State 
Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
A subgrant application that merits a recommendation for approval should present a clear, realistic picture 
of how the charter school expects to successfully implement the proposed plans to increase the number 
of educationally disadvantaged students attending high-quality charter schools and expand the number 
of high-quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. In addition to meeting 
the criteria in each section, each part of the proposal should align with the overall mission, budget, and 
goals of the subgrant application and NC ACCESS Program. 
 
Recommendations for approval or denial are based on the completed application which includes school 
information, signed assurances, enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget narrative, 
logic model, and appendices. The enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget narrative, 
and logic model are scored out of a possible one hundred (100) points. Applicants must score at least 
eighty (80) points to meet the standard and to be considered for a recommendation for approval. 
Applications that do not meet standard in all sections as evidenced by the summary review ratings will be 
deemed not ready for approval. 
 

  

                                                           
2 http://www.ncpublicschools.org/docs/charterschools/ncaccess/scoring-rubric.pdf  

http://www.ncpublicschools.org/docs/charterschools/ncaccess/scoring-rubric.pdf
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Procedural History 

The following outlines the steps completed by The Exploris School (Applicant), the NC ACCESS Program 

team, and the Review Committee to ensure an objective, transparent, and comprehensive application 

evaluation process: 

1. The Applicant submitted a Letter of Intent (LOI) to the NC ACCESS Program on February 13, 2019 

indicating interest in applying to the NC ACCESS Subgrant Program. 

2. The LOI was reviewed and the Applicant was designated as ‘Eligible’ to complete a full subgrant 

application. The Applicant was notified of their eligibility status via email on February 18, 2019.3  

3. The CSAB was notified of the Applicant’s eligibility status via emailed report on February 25, 2019. 

4. The Applicant submitted a full subgrant application in Epicenter on March 25, 2019.4 

5. The NC ACCESS Program Review Committee evaluated the full subgrant application using the 

approved NC ACCESS Program subgrant application scoring rubric.5 

6. A final recommendation was drafted based on the completed evaluations by Review Committee 

members. 

 

Conclusion and Recommendation 

The Exploris School submitted an application for an Expansion subgrant for expansion beginning in the 

2019-2020 school year. The application and evaluation summaries for the subgrant application submitted 

by The Exploris School begin on page four (4) of this document. Based on the procedural history and the 

comprehensive evaluation of the Review Committee using the approved NC ACCESS Program subgrant 

application scoring rubric, the NC ACCESS Program team recommends The Exploris School be awarded a 

Planning and Implementation subgrant for the 2019 application cycle. 

 

Subgrant Application for The Exploris School: RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________    _____________ 

Dave Machado, Director        Date 

Office of Charter Schools  

                                                           
3 See Exhibit A. 
4 See Exhibit B. 
5 See Exhibit C. 

5/1/2019 



  

4 
 

Summary of the Application 

School Name: The Exploris School 

Location of School: Wake County 

CMO/EMO: N/A 

Projected Enrollment:6 

Subgrant 

Year 

Grade Levels 

Served 

Total Student 

Enrollment 

Total ED Student 

Enrollment 

ED Enrollment 

Percentage  

2019-2020 K-8 456 115 25% 

2020-2021 K-8 456 123 27% 

2021-2022 K-8 520 151 29% 

2022-2023 K-8 680 211 31% 

2023-2024 K-8 680 218 32% 

 

The Exploris School submitted an application for an Expansion subgrant through the NC ACCESS Program 

for implementation in the 2019-2020 school year. The Exploris School has been in operation for twenty-

two (22) years. The expansion of the program increases the educationally disadvantaged (ED) student 

population from twenty-two percent (22%) to thirty-two percent (32%). The Exploris School subgrant 

application requests six hundred thousand dollars ($600,000) to support program expenditures in years 

one (1) to five (5) of implementation.7 The school is not managed by a Charter Management Organization 

(CMO) or Education Management Organization (EMO).8 

 

 

 

  

                                                           
6 The Exploris School Subgrant Application, page 6. 
7 The Exploris School Subgrant Application, Budget. 
8 The Exploris School Subgrant Application, page 2. 
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Summary of the Evaluation 

In accordance with the NC ACCESS Program subgrant application scoring rubric, “in order to pass the 

review, applicants must (a) meet all criteria in sections (I), (II), and (VIII); and (b) score at least eighty (80) 

combined points between sections (III), (IV), (V), and (VI). Section (VII) will be used to determine priority 

if there are more eligible applications than subgrant awards.”9 The review committee’s average rating for 

each section of the application are as follows: 

General Standards Status 

Section I – Application Contact Information Met     Not Met 

Section II – Assurances Met     Not Met 

Section VIII – Certification Met     Not Met 

Total (must meet all standards to pass) Pass     Fail 

 

Technical Standards 
Points 

Possible 
Points 
Earned 

Section III – Enrollment Projections 10 8 

Section IV – Application Narrative 60 50 

Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 30 24 

Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards Up to 12 3 

Total (must receive at least 80 points to pass) 100 85 

 

Priority Standards 
Standards 
Possible 

Standards 
Met 

Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 4 N/A 

  

Overall Application Status Rating 

In order to pass, the application must (a) achieve a rating of “Pass” for the 
General Standards and (b) score at least 80 points on the Technical Standards. 
The Priority Standards will be used to determine priority if there are more 
eligible applications than available awards. 

Pass with Priority 

Pass 

Fail 

 

The review committee recommends that the subgrant application for The Exploris School be approved 

because the applicant submitted an application that details how the school plans to operate while growing 

to meet the needs of new and current educationally disadvantaged (ED) students in their school 

community. To become a more inclusive school the applicant has provided the following points of action: 

recruit more diverse staff that reflect the school and community population; increase Board of Directors, 

staff, and parental engagement in community events; and actively recruit students in ethnically diverse 

                                                           
9 http://www.ncpublicschools.org/docs/charterschools/ncaccess/scoring-rubric.pdf 

http://www.ncpublicschools.org/docs/charterschools/ncaccess/scoring-rubric.pdf
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neighborhoods for enrollment. The school is currently located in a community surrounded by ethnically 

diverse neighborhoods that are within walking distance. 

The applicant projected an increase in the number of ED students incrementally over the next five (5) 

years. The applicant currently serves a notable percentage of ED students and proposed seventeen (17) 

additional ED students in year one (1) of implementation; eighteen (18) in year two (2); twenty-one (21) 

in year three (3); sixty-one (61) in year four (4); and forty-eight (48) in year five (5). The school would 

increase from twenty-five percent (25%) to thirty-two percent (32%) ED students and the NC ACCESS 

Subgrant Program will facilitate school growth at a more rapid pace. The applicant has received approval 

from the North Carolina State Board of Education for a weighted lottery, however, no further details were 

provided.   

The Exploris School plans to use currently established relationships with community partners to assist 

with the expansion process. The applicant will work with Communities in Schools of Wake County (CIS 

WAKE) to fund a part-time Success Coach position who will support a caseload of approximately thirty-

five (35) students. Additionally, the Board of Directors has restricted some administrative roles and hired 

interventionists and school counselors to provide additional resources to all students. The Board has 

developed an Equity and Diversity Committee that provides resources specifically for ED students, 

including school nutrition, outreach services, recruitment efforts, and parent resources. 

The applicant currently partners with external vendors to provide lunch to students.  One of their vendors 

has provided a few free meals to qualifying students at no additional cost to the school. While the 

applicant currently has vendors who will donate school lunches, they recognize that this is not a 

sustainable school lunch program and have begun investigating other school lunch options. The 

applicant’s current school lunch plan needs more certainty that all additional ED students will be provided 

nutritious lunches every day.   

The applicant proposed several transportation options for students. The applicant is in the process of 

gathering quotes to purchase and operate one (1) to two (2) school vans. The applicant outlined using 

these vans for field trip travel but did not provide details on uses for transporting students to and from 

school daily. The applicant is also considering contracting with a third-party transportation provider to 

transport students. Other support and transportation options include helping students and families plan 

their route to school using public transportation, applying to the youth GoPass program, coordinating 

group rides on public transportation, designating bike zones around the new school facility, and sharing a 

carpool app with all parents. 

Additionally, the applicant has met with Wake County Public Schools (WCPS) to discuss a partnership using 

a WCPS bus to transport students to school. The applicant plans to conduct a comprehensive 

transportation needs assessment in the 2022-2023 school year. With all the options listed, further 

refinement and clarification of the transportation plan, particularly for ED students, is necessary. 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A: NC ACCESS Program Eligibility Notification 



 

OFFICE OF CHARTER SCHOOLS 

6307 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-6307 | (919) 807-3491 | Fax (919) 807-3496 

 

 

 
February 18, 2019 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
Ellie Schollmeyer, Executive Director 
The Exploris School 
401 Hillsborough Street 
Raleigh, NC 27603 
ellie@exploris.org  
 
Dear Ms. Schollmeyer, 
 
 
Thank you for your interest in the NC ACCESS Subgrant Program and for submitting a Letter of Intent (LOI). We are 
grateful for your commitment to the students of North Carolina. After a review of the LOI, eligibility criteria, and school 
performance data, The Exploris School has been designated as eligible to apply for an Expansion subgrant for 
implementation beginning in the 2019-2020 school year. The Charter Schools Advisory Board (CSAB) will be notified 
of the eligibility status of all applicants on Monday, February 25, 2019. 
 
Due to The Exploris School’s designation as eligible, The Exploris School may move forward and submit the full 
subgrant application. As a reminder, completed applications are due in Epicenter by 5:00pm (EDT) on March 31, 2019. 
The NC ACCESS team will ensure you have access to the application portal in Epicenter and will contact you if any 
additional information is needed. 
 
Please reach out to the NC ACCESS team at NCACCESS@dpi.nc.gov or (919) 807-3491 if you have any additional 
questions and visit the NC ACCESS page of our website for application and guidance materials and training information.  
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dave Machado, Director 
Office of Charter Schools 
 
DM/JW 

mailto:ellie@exploris.org
mailto:NCACCESS@dpi.nc.gov
http://www.ncpublicschools.org/charterschools/ncaccess/


 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B: NC ACCESS Program Subgrant Application 



















IV. APPLICATION NARRATIVE  
 
Question 1 - Enrollment Projections 

The NC ACCESS Expansion Subgrant will allow The Exploris School to substantially            
increase the percent of educationally disadvantaged students (EDS) that we serve from 22% to              
32% of total enrollment. The Exploris School has been serving students in the downtown              
Raleigh community for over 20 years and is committed to growing our school in size and                
diversity to expand support and opportunity for EDS. The 2013 - 2018 Strategic Plan and the                
proposed 2019 - 2024 Strategic Plan demonstrate our commitment to diversity and expansion.             
Our mission confirms that “Exploris is a diverse learning community that engages students in a               
challenging, relevant, relationship-based education. We do this through experiential,         
project-based learning (PBL) that empowers students to foster a just and sustainable world.”             
These strategic planning documents are shared in (Appendix F, 5-15) for additional details. 

The Exploris Board, staff, students, and families have a desire and commitment to             
improve equity and diversity by serving EDS so that our school reflects the demographics of               
Wake County. Through these efforts, the school has received approval from the State Board of               
Education for a weighted lottery giving priority for economically disadvantaged students. We            
have implemented a weighted lottery which has gone into effect for the 2019-2020 school year.               
Funding from this grant will allow us to further increase priority access for economically              
disadvantaged students over the five-year plan. 

In alignment with The Exploris School’s strategic plan and mission, we will increase our              
enrollment of EDS through three primary strategies: recruitment, removing barriers, and           
providing needed supports, which are described in further detail throughout our grant. In             
addition to our weighted lottery, we will expand our recruitment initiatives with our primary              
outreach partner, Communities in Schools of Wake County (CIS Wake). Our Board, staff, and              
parents will engage in community events and partner with local community organizations to             
invite educationally disadvantaged students and their families to apply for enrollment in our             
school community so that we reach our projections.  

Based on historical trends and our anticipated growth from expansion in total enrollment             
and targeted EDS expansion strategies, our projections are both ambitious and realistic. We have              
analyzed our current school data to breakdown the number of students in each educationally              
disadvantaged category; Exceptional Children, English Language Learners, homeless children,         
economically disadvantaged, and those identified in multiple categories. The current percentages           
were calculated by grade and used to estimate our growth in each category to project our                
enrollment with the expansion grant. Additionally, we will increase our total enrollment from our              
current student population of 447 to 680 over the five year plan by moving into a new school                  
facility that will accommodate all K-8 students on one campus. This facility expansion will allow               
further growth in our educationally disadvantaged population.  
 
Question 2 - Educational Program 

The Exploris School’s educational program is tailored to meet the needs of educationally             
disadvantaged students. Exploris’s educational program is built around four core pillars: Global            
Education, Project Based Learning, Co-Teaching, and Responsive Classroom. Each of these           
practices in isolation is a powerful tool for supporting the needs of educationally disadvantaged              
students, and at The Exploris School these approaches are used concurrently, creating an             
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exceptionally strong program. As our population of educationally disadvantaged students grows           
we are working to embrace Culturally Relevant teaching (Goal 5) . 

In Global Education students investigate the world, recognize perspectives, communicate          
ideas, and take action. At Exploris, students engage in Global Education on a daily basis through                
thematic projects that emphasize awareness of global issues, higher order thinking, and            
community action. These skills are especially beneficial for students living in poverty. Higher             
order thinking promotes the most academic growth for students living in poverty (Taylor, 2003).              
Global Education promotes the development of higher order thinking, collaboration, and           
communication skills - all of which are critical to the growth of educationally disadvantaged              
students. 

Project-based learning is another of our core educational pillars. Every student in grades             
K-8 participates in at least three long-term interdisciplinary and experiential projects per year             
that are focused on global and local issues. Students work collaboratively to explore connected              
topics, and then transfer that learning to the outside world. In Greene’s (2019) study of the best                 
instructional practices for culturally diverse classrooms, collaboration was identified as the most            
important teaching tool. Furthermore, research has found evidence that PBL can have a positive              
impact on achievement compared to conventional instruction in high-poverty schools (Duke, et            
al. 2019). 

In addition to collaboration and higher order thinking, The Exploris School’s educational            
program uses Co-Teaching at all grade levels. Co-Teaching has long been identified as an              
effective instructional practice for children with special needs. Co-Teaching has been shown to             
increase grades, attendance, and student confidence (Friend, 2010). Depending on the needs of             
the students in particular classes, some subjects may have as many as four teachers present to                
support learning. As we expand the number of educationally disadvantaged students at The             
Exploris School, we will continue to embrace the benefits of Co-Teaching. 

The fourth pillar of Exploris’s educational program is Responsive Classroom. This           
approach to classroom management is grounded in the value of relationships and positive             
climate. Responsive Classroom practices at Exploris include modeling of routines, logical           
consequences, social-emotional learning, outdoor play/learning, and conflict resolution. Our         
students frequently participate in outdoor learning, which has been shown to positively impact             
teacher attitudes, student behavior, and engagement in learning (Scott and Colquhoun, 2013). As             
outlined in Duncan’s (2004) examination of best practices for behavior management with            
children living in poverty, we emphasize coaching, replacement behaviors, and intervention           
strategies.  

As we expand our population of educationally disadvantaged students, we will add a fifth              
pillar to our educational program - Culturally Relevant Teaching (Santamaria 2009). This            
instructional practice where students and teachers develop cultural competence. This practice           
aligns well with our current Responsive Classroom work, which includes recognition that our             
beliefs about students inform our work with them. We recognize that Culturally Relevant             
Teaching is an area where we need to work diligently to expand our understanding and practice.                
Please see our Professional Development narrative for more information about how we plan to              
grow in this area. 

Children who are educationally disadvantaged often lack social capital. Duncan’s (2004)           
recommended first step is getting to know the child. Exploris’s emphasis on relationships is at               
the core of everything we do. Furthermore, our pillars of global education, project-based             
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learning, co-teaching, responsive classroom, and culturally relevant teaching target the specific           
needs of these students. 
 
Question 3 - Smart Goals 

1. Increase the percent of educationally disadvantaged students from 22% to 32% by June             
2024; and share effective practices for creating an inclusive community with other            
educators. 

2. Remove the most common barriers that make charter schools inaccessible to           
disadvantaged families by creating plans for sustainable student support including those           
for food, transportation, and communication by June 2021. 

3. Strengthen our student support network by developing and engaging with families and            
community-based partners as measured by year-over-year growth in participation and          
number of partnerships.  

4. Create a safe and joyful learning environment that is developmentally responsive to            
student’s strengths and needs as measured by annual school climate surveys. 

5. Build teacher capacity through ongoing robust professional development and culturally          
responsive programming in order to increase student achievement as measured by           
meeting or exceeding Expected Growth in all subgroups. 

 
Question 4 - Comparison to Local LEA 

Exploris is located in Wake County which is home to the largest public school district in                
North Carolina. The LEA is known for its award-winning magnet programs with 187 schools              
intentionally designed to reduce high concentrations of poverty and promote diverse school            
populations. In order to support the academic and behavioral plans within these diverse schools,              
Wake County Public School System (WCPSS) has a designated Office of Equity Affairs.             
Exploris looks to WCPSS for best practices. Like WCPSS we are transforming our educational              
plan through cultural proficiency training, Multi-tiered System of Supports, and the addition of             
an Equity and Diversity Committee (see Appendix F, 16-17). We have implemented a weighted              
lottery to help our student population more closely mirror the demographics of Wake County.              
Exploris takes its responsibility as a charter school seriously by regularly opening our doors and               
creating opportunities to collaborate with other educators in WCPSS and beyond. We are             
mindful of how our enrollment and recruitment practices impact other schools and strive to work               
in harmony with our LEA to positively impact the public education ecosystem. 

Exploris shares important characteristics, objectives, and values with the WCPSS and its            
approach to elementary and middle school education. WCPSS has identified the 4 C’s             
(Communication, Critical Thinking, Collaboration, and Creativity) as well as Global Awareness,           
Open Mindedness, and Resiliency as part of their Profile of a Graduate. Exploris’s core values of                
Collaboration, Curiosity, Social Empowerment, and Innovation are closely aligned with WCPSS,           
and will prepare Exploris graduates for success in WCPSS high schools, middle schools, and              
elementary schools upon graduation or transfer. Many of the individual schools within the             
WCPSS boast programming and themes similar to what can be found at Exploris. However, no               
single school embraces Exploris’s Core Pillars of: Global Education, Project Based Learning            
(PBL), Co-Teaching, and Responsive Classroom (see Question 2).  

While both school systems follow the North Carolina Standard Course of Study, Exploris             
teachers design curriculum that is transdisciplinary and anchored in best practices from Global             
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Education and Project Based Learning. In the transdisciplinary approach there is a real-life             
context with student needs acting as the organizing center. All disciplines are embedded in the               
topic of study, but can also be isolated if so desired (Drake, 2000). Exploris students across                
grades K-8 regularly engage in high quality field experiences which allow them to investigate              
and discover how standards are applied to real world situations. Burns (1994) reports that              
Interdisciplinary Teamed Instruction had positive effects on student performance, particularly for           
lower-achieving students. Burns also demonstrated that Interdisciplinary Teamed Instruction         
resulted in an overall upward trend in standardized test scores. 

WCPSS employs a variety of teaching models to implement curricula designed at the             
district level. The Co-Teaching Model used consistently at Exploris empowers teachers to plan             
and implement curricula that is responsive to student needs. This approach gives teachers             
ownership and interdependence which bolsters Collective Teacher Efficacy (CTE). In Hattie’s           
study (2015) on effect sizes CTE has been found to be strongly, and positively correlated with                
student achievement with an effect size of d=1.57. Together teachers can achieve more,             
especially if they collectively believe that they can do so. Bandura (1993) found that the positive                
effects of CTE on student academic performance more than outweigh the negative effects of low               
socioeconomic status. His findings were later confirmed by Goddard, Hoy, and Hoy (2000). In              
their studies, they could demonstrate that between-school differences of collective teacher           
efficacy were more important in explaining student achievement than socioeconomic status.  

Most schools in WCPSS have some type of program or curriculum to address discipline              
and social emotional learning such as PBIS, point systems, and Class Dojo to track student               
behavior. Exploris employs a whole child approach that reflects the belief that academic and              
social-emotional learning are inextricably linked. We practice proactive, problem-solving         
approaches. While we use principles of Responsive Classroom to guide our thinking around             
social-emotional needs, we do not believe that adhering rigidly to one approach yields the best               
outcomes for all students. Being a small school allows our teachers flexibility to customize              
approaches based on student needs. 

While Exploris’s educational plan shares many positive characteristics with the local           
LEA, our unique approach makes our school highly sought after. With monies from this grant we                
will implement strategies to attract, retain, and serve a more diverse population. We will offer               
additional supports, resources, training, and job-embedded coaching aimed at ensuring each part            
of our educational plan supports equity, diversity and cultural competency. Our 4th and 5th grade               
students stated it best in a board presentation they gave in 2018, “We love our school and feel                  
that the experiences students have at Exploris need to reach all people in our community” (see                
Appendix F, 18-24). 
 
Question 5 - GEPA 

The Exploris School is committed to serving educationally disadvantaged students and           
will overcome all actual or perceived barriers that could impede application or attendance at The               
Exploris School. We will continue to expand our policies, procedures, and practices to ensure              
that all students have access to all instructional programs and activities. We will continue to               
develop and execute a comprehensive plan that further removes the six types of barriers that can                
impede equitable access or participation: gender, race, national origin, color, disability, or age.  

Specifically, The Exploris School will implement recruitment strategies that target          
economically disadvantaged families in the communities where they live with staff that are             
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fluent in their native language. All recruitment materials will be translated in English and              
Spanish. Care will also be taken to ensure that all our marketing and recruitment strategies and                
materials are culturally responsive. 

The application process will be simplified to ensure easy access for all families and allow               
for paper application, online application, and staff assisted applications over the phone or in              
person at school. The application will also be translated in Spanish and other languages as               
needed. 

All Exploris staff will assist in ensuring that appropriate accommodations are made to             
ensure access for persons with disabilities. Accessibility, communication, and our educational           
program will be adjusted to meet the needs of students and families who may have visual,                
auditory, physical, or mental impairments and ensure accommodations are in place as needed.             
Consideration and care will be taken to ensure all needs are met regardless of gender or sexual                 
orientation. This includes cisgender, transgender, genderqueer, and non-binary students. The          
Exploris School will be a welcoming place for people of all genders, orientations, and religions.  

The Exploris School will provide a inviting environment for families of all races, origins,              
and ages and invite them to participate as equal partners in the education of their children. We                 
will improve our communications by promoting programs and events via flyers, our school             
website, social media posts, and through community partnerships. We will increase accessibility            
by making arrangements for events and programs throughout the Raleigh community and offer             
them at varying times of day and days of the week with childcare, children’s programming, food,                
and translators to ensure family participation. 
 
Question 6 - Strategies 

The Exploris School currently uses a number of strategies to serve our educationally             
disadvantaged students. As we expand this population, however, we will need to make             
adjustments and additions to meet the needs of these students. Currently, our educationally             
disadvantaged students benefit from core instructional practices including: small-group         
collaboration; project-based learning; daily recess; and conflict resolution (see Question 2). Each            
of these practices has been shown to have a positive impact on achievement, social-emotional              
growth, and engagement in learning.  

In alignment with our pillar of Global Education, we foster active relationships with             
partner schools and organizations. These partnerships holistically support educationally         
disadvantaged students. Our students participate in learning experiences with our sister schools            
in Japan and Germany. We also work closely with Communities in Schools to support families               
and students with food insecurity or social-emotional needs. Furthermore, our partnership with            
The Fletcher Academy allows our elementary students access to additional in-school reading            
intervention.  

We recognize that traditional grading practices often negatively impact student          
engagement and achievement (Vatterott, 2015). Therefore, we use a standards-based, mastery           
learning approach for assessment that emphasizes growth. Finally, our philosophy and approach            
to working with students with learning disabilities and English language learners is grounded in              
principles of inclusion. 

As we expand the percentage of students we serve who are educationally disadvantaged,             
we recognize that Exploris will need to grow in key areas. With funding from this grant, we will                  
formalize several pieces of our curriculum including social-emotional learning programming,          
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exceptional children programming, and curricular support for intervention and English language           
learners. We also recognize the need to support core instruction. This includes developing             
culturally responsive classroom libraries, constructing a Nature Playground for our elementary           
campus, and providing robust professional development (see Question 10). Through our           
partnership with NC TEACCH, an organization specializing in supporting students with autism,            
we will work to design classroom spaces that meet the needs of all learners. This grant will fund                  
needed furniture and other classroom design elements that will better support the needs of              
students with learning, developmental, and/or intellectual disabilities. We will also use these            
grant monies to expand access to Exploris for students who cannot provide their own              
transportation. This includes the development and implementation of a transportation plan, the            
use of carpool software, bus and van service partners, and the purchase of vans (see Question                
13). Funds from this grant will also support the need for our school to address digital equity                 
(Reich, 2019). We will fund student and classroom devices, as well as train teachers on best                
practices for meaningful technology integration.  

Critical to expanding our percentage of educationally disadvantaged students will be           
implementing new Readiness Camps and tutoring programs. Free Readiness Camps will be            
offered for rising kindergarten and 6th grade students. The summer camps will help students and               
families transition to the start of school. Readiness is key at these grade levels because they                
represent significant transitions, especially for students who are new to Exploris. Readiness            
Camps will support both social-emotional and academic school-readiness. We will also use this             
grant funding to begin a new school tutoring program. This program will allow students to               
participate in remediation, enrichment, and support outside school hours such as during            
intersessions and after the school day. Funding from this grant will allow us to pay tutors from                 
both within our school staff and those from partner organizations. 

Finally, as we expand our educational program to include the pillar of Culturally             
Relevant teaching (see Question 2), we plan to contract with experts to support us in the                
development and implementation of curriculum and instructional strategies. These consultants          
will support our staff throughout the life of the grant. They will provide on-going, in-time               
professional development, instructional support, and consultation. They will specialize in          
supporting the needs of our staff as we learn about and embrace Culturally Relevant teaching. 
 
Question 7 - Community Partnerships 

The Exploris School has a long history of partnerships within the downtown Raleigh             
community. In this year alone, we have worked with organizations such as Go Raleigh, the North                
Carolina Museum of Natural Sciences, The City of Raleigh Museum, the Contemporary Art             
Museum, Outward Bound, and Caterpillar among others. The Exploris School also holds many             
partnerships throughout the state and partners with sisters schools in Japan and Germany. These              
organizations continue to be available to the school and all students. 

Currently, the Exploris School has several community partners that specifically address           
needs for our educationally disadvantaged students. One such partnership is with Communities            
in Schools of Wake County (CIS WAKE). CIS WAKE is designed to support low-income              
students in downtown Raleigh Housing Authority neighborhoods. Through the North Carolina           
School Safety-Community Partners grant The Exploris School and CIS WAKE were able to fund              
a ¾ position Success Coach for all grades. The Success Coach holds a caseload of about 35                 
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students who have been identified as having barriers to learning. Most of these students are               
considered educationally disadvantaged.  

Service learning is at the heart of who we are as a school and every grade level                 
participates in service to our school and our community. Our ongoing partnership with the              
Interfaith Food Shuttle allows students to volunteer to help in the local gardens, sort produce,               
and assist with packing food. Through the Cooking Matters course, Interfaith Food Shuttle has              
taught courses targeted for our educationally disadvantaged population at both campuses.  

In addition, we have community partners who assist with providing instruction,           
intervention, and support for students. The Exploris School partners with The Fletcher Academy             
to ensure our early elementary students have access to early reading interventions. This focus              
helps address the word and achievement gap faced by many educationally disadvantaged            
students. We also partner with NC TEACCH to provide robust professional development and             
classroom environment advice for staff to best meet the needs of students who have autism               
spectrum disorder.  

Our future plans include continuing to partner with Interfaith Food Shuttle and            
Community Food Lab to develop a sustainable lunch program that could offer healthy,             
affordable options to all students, provide a free/reduced lunch program, and expand to add a               
school garden as a food source for our school lunch program. We will continue to work with CIS                  
WAKE to provide professional development and tutoring program opportunities focused on           
serving educationally disadvantaged students. With funding from this grant, we plan to host             
learning center evening events for the school community and families that live in the Raleigh               
Housing Authority neighborhoods. We also plan to expand partnerships with Go Raleigh in order              
to better address the transportation needs of our increasing population of EDS. In addition,              
funding from this grant will allow us to partner with Peaceful Schools NC and the Community                
Food Lab to address social-emotional learning and food access respectively. Finally, we hope to              
use monies from this grant to share successful strategies with other educators (see Smart Goal 1)                
and become a model for other charter and traditional public schools. We will demonstrate how               
innovative instructional strategies implemented through a relationship-based education can foster          
academic, social, and emotional success for EDS. Using grant funding, Exploris will lead and              
facilitate professional development for teachers throughout North Carolina to expand our impact            
and support for EDS and their families. 
 
Question 8 - School Board 

The Exploris School Board of Directors demonstrates ongoing commitment to expanding           
the enrollment of educationally disadvantaged students and supporting their development. In           
2017, the Board established an Equity and Diversity subcommittee charged with making            
recommendations to revise school lottery policy to include priority for economically           
disadvantaged students and with developing strategies to expand the recruitment of a more             
racially, ethnically, and socioeconomically diverse student population. In 2018, the Board           
established the new lottery policy with the goal of increasing the enrollment of economically              
disadvantaged students from 8% in 2017 to 25% in 2023. 

The Board has committed to the development of educationally disadvantaged students by            
approving expanded support structures within the school to better address the needs of these and               
all students. This work has included restructuring of the school administration to include middle              
and elementary school associate directors in addition to the executive director, expanding student             
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support teams, and the hiring of an interventionist and school counselor in recent years. Through               
the Equity and Diversity Committee, the board has supported efforts to educate parents, seek a               
sustainable model for providing food, and expand outreach to families of educationally            
disadvantaged students. These efforts include parent education nights, raising awareness about           
recruitment efforts, a family book study, and inviting input on these efforts via a survey which                
drew responses from 114 families. Related materials are available in (Appendix F, 25-28).  

The Board has supported the hiring of two teachers and one staff member of color for 7                 
open positions in the past two years. the Board has also worked to diversify its own membership                 
in that time period adding two Board members of color. Research indicates that having teachers               
of color has positive effects on students of color (Carver-Thomas, 2018). These benefits include              
improved academic outcomes, lower drop-out and suspension rates, and more interest in going to              
college.  

The Board’s most recent strategic plan includes goals of expanding enrollment to better             
reflect the demographics of the surrounding community and strengthening programming to           
ensure a free and appropriate education for ALL students. The Board is currently engaged in               
developing its 2019-2024 strategic plan and is committed to including further development of             
supports for educationally disadvantaged students in that plan to continue the school’s work in              
this area.  

Going forward, the Board will continue to inform and support expansion of recruitment             
and marketing efforts through the work of the Equity and Diversity Committee and school              
administration. The Board is committed to developing additional fundraising efforts to establish            
and sustain long-term supports for educationally disadvantaged students. The Board’s work to            
date has been informed by review of research and through dialogue with and fact-finding visits               
to other charter schools that have a similar commitment to supporting educationally            
disadvantaged students. Efforts to learn with and from other schools will continue as the school               
further develops this work.  
 
Question 9 - Calendar 

The Exploris School calendar is intentionally designed each year based on the school’s             
values and priorities. A committee that includes administrators, elementary and middle school            
teachers, support staff, and parents gather and review input from the community in order to               
create a calendar proposal for board approval. For the past two years students have brought               
calendar suggestions to the committee for consideration. Most recently the calendar committee            
honored student proposals for the calendar to include more diversity in recognizing religious             
holidays. (see Appendix F, 29-30). This inclusivity will be important as we serve a wider range                
of educationally disadvantaged students.  

Our calendar for 2019-2020 includes 174 student days with 10 days built in for inclement               
weather (see Appendix F, 31). The length of our elementary school day allows for 1,087.5 hours                
of instruction. The middle school day allows for 1,113.6 hours of instruction. Both exceed the               
minimum 1,025 hours required by NC calendar law. Eighteen teacher work days are indicated              
with designated time for new staff orientation, professional development days, Achievement           
Report writing, and parent/student conferences. When selecting dates for teacher workdays, the            
calendar committee carefully considered the impact on families, particularly those with students            
that are educationally disadvantaged. The team looked at alignment to calendars followed by             
WCPSS as well as available childcare options. A parent representative from the calendar             
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committee is working with local organizations to identify high quality, affordable childcare            
options on days when school is not in session. 

The calendar committee is in the early stages of exploring changes that could increase              
opportunities for continuous learning for staff and students. One possibility includes moving            
towards a modified calendar with a shorter summer and more regular breaks throughout the year.               
We have examined how schools in our area use “track-out” time to support the development of                
economically disadvantaged students. Like other schools with a modified or year-round calendar,            
we envision using intersessions to provide an option for extra tutoring outside regular school              
hours. Funding from this grant will allow students to participate in remediation, enrichment, and              
support. The tutoring program will operate in conjunction with our classroom teachers and             
community partners (see Question 6). A calendar in which time off is more equally distributed               
allows teachers to refresh and focus on professional development (see Question 10).            
Furthermore, modified calendars are associated with higher achievement for economically          
disadvantaged students (Cooper, Valentine, Charlton, & Melson, 2003).  
 
Question 10 - Professional Development 

The Exploris School has already begun the work of using professional development to             
support the needs of educationally disadvantaged students. In 2017-2018, all staff participated in             
Cultural Conversations as part of the exhibit on Race at the NC Museum of Natural Science.                
This facilitated listening session began the work of being more culturally responsive as teachers              
and staff faced their own racial biases and shared their experiences with one another. This               
culturally responsive work continued in the 2018-2019 school year when all teachers,            
administrators, and professional support staff participated in Social Justice Teaching 101,           
provided by Teaching Tolerance. This experience has given our staff tools and a framework for               
considering how we meet the needs of diverse learners. Additionally, we have begun offering              
training, through a partnership with TEACCH, on strategies to support our growing numbers of              
students on the autism spectrum. As we expand our EDS population, we recognize that our               
professional development plan must be carefully designed to ensure that The Exploris School is a               
safe, positive, and successful environment for all teachers and students. 

Throughout the grant period, our staff will be engaged in ongoing professional            
development through various avenues. We will center our work on building a Multi-Tiered             
System of Supports for students, which will allow us to address the whole child at every level.                 
We plan to use this grant funding to facilitate professional development experiences in the              
following areas: Racial Equity, Social-Emotional Learning (SEL), Integrating Technology,         
Exceptional Children’s programming (EC and ELL), and Intervention Supports. We will choose            
a primary focus for each of the five years of the grant and build our professional development                 
plan around that year’s focus. 

We recognize that the traditional sit-and-get model of professional development is not the             
most effective way to support adult learners (Rodman, 2018). Therefore, we plan to employ a               
professional development model that is sustained, teacher-centered, personalized, and         
job-embedded. This approach will better align with new federal criteria for quality professional             
learning (Combs, 2016).  

Professional development opportunities will include a range of options to best meet the             
needs of adult learners. Teachers will have opportunities to facilitate and/or participate in             
collaborative book studies, cohort-model focused study groups, digital learning, and workshops           
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presented by experts, peers, and partner organizations. Sustained, job-embedded learning will           
also be provided by contract services. For example, in the first year we plan to contract with                 
Peaceful Schools NC to provide ongoing professional development in the form of            
teacher-coaching, workshops, program development, and consultation with a focus on          
Social-Emotional Learning and positive school climate. In addition to Peaceful Schools NC, the             
Racial Equity Institute, and TEACCH will provide intensive professional learning for faculty and             
staff throughout the grant period. We will also contract with an expert consultant to provide               
instructional strategy support and develop training, especially in the area of Culturally Relevant             
teaching. Grant funds will allow us to to purchase specific curricular programs for SEL, EC, ELL                
and intervention; we will seek out training that is specific to those programs. 
 
Question 11 - Discipline and Climate 

Exploris’s vision is to empower learners to change the world. This is carried out through               
the school’s ten core values: Balance, Collaboration, Connections to Nature, Curiosity,           
Craftsmanship, Engagement, Innovation, Reflection, Relationships, and Social Empowerment.        
These values form the fabric of the entire school community and permeate everything we do. 

With this in mind, The Exploris School’s philosophy on student behavior supports the             
development of educationally disadvantaged students. Our Responsive Classroom approach         
focuses on the strong relationship between academic success and social-emotional learning. Part            
of the school’s culture involves using a s choolwide system of support that includes proactive              
strategies for defining, teaching, and supporting appropriate student behaviors to create a positive             
school environment. This includes the absence of any zero-tolerance policies, allowing the            
school to consider all circumstances and environmental factors when assessing a discipline            
matter and assigning consequences. Exploris is aware of broader research around the impact             
school discipline can have on student outcomes and links to future incarceration. We are mindful               
of supporting the whole child and recognizing that behavior is learned and communicates a need.               
The students, families, and staff work collaboratively to address behavior from a growth-mindset             
perspective that includes reflection, coaching, and support. The school creates opportunities for            
students to practice and succeed in making responsible and effective choices in order to reach               
their social, emotional, and academic potential and contribute to the school community. 

School discipline policies and practices alone cannot create a positive school climate,            
which is why The Exploris School strives to include students, teachers, and parents in the               
decision-making processes. School climate surveys are given annually to parents, students, and            
teachers to gain feedback and implement positive changes. Parent and teacher forums are             
organized to gain feedback when new initiatives and ideas are implemented. Our school climate              
is centered around several ongoing practices. These practices include opportunities for students            
to interact with peers, engage with the community, make decisions about their learning, and be               
recognized by peers for demonstrating our core values. For example, all elementary students and              
staff, along with family members, take part in our weekly Community Circle, where students are               
able to share their learning with the community and have opportunities to recognize their peers               
for demonstrating school values, along with enjoying songs, games and other activities together.             
Families are invited into the school throughout the year to support a variety of learning activities.                
Each student in grades K-8 shares their progress and goals with their families during student-led               
conferences throughout the year. 
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The Exploris School has a strong system of student support which includes counselors, a              
success coach, a social-emotional in-class instructor, the EC department, a crisis team, and close              
student-teacher relationships. As a result, structures and processes have been established to            
ensure school safety and school climate, including peer resolution through Restorative Justice,            
bullying prevention programming and policies, attendance policies and intervention support, and           
the establishment of an emergency and crisis intervention manual.  
 
Question 12 - Marketing and Recruiting 

The school’s marketing and recruiting efforts are led by the leadership team in             
coordination with the board’s Equity and Diversity (E&D) Committee. The school leadership            
team maintains all recruitment materials and scheduling of formal school recruitment events. The             
E&D Committee coordinates with school staff and parents to organize additional recruitment            
efforts specifically aimed at reaching families of educationally disadvantaged students. These           
efforts have included community playdates in historically black neighborhoods, targeted social           
media outreach, visits to local preschools and places of worship, and canvassing in local              
neighborhoods and community centers. See (Appendix F, 32-36) for a comprehensive list of             
recruiting materials.  

The E&D Committee has also worked with school staff to develop additional recruitment             
materials to supplement the school’s existing promotional materials. These materials include           
recruitment flyers and FAQs to help parents better understand the application process (see             
Appendix F, 37- 43). The school’s application has been translated into Spanish. Next steps              
include making all application, recruitment, and enrollment materials available in Spanish,           
Arabic, and other languages, based on trends in our growing English Language Learner (ELL)              
populations. 

Over the past two years, the school has expanded recruitment events to include evening              
options for Open House. This strategy has been successful in accommodating families who are              
not able to attend daytime events due to work commitments. One evening event was held at a                 
nearby Communities in Schools (CIS) Learning Center which serves educationally          
disadvantaged students. Through our partnership, CIS helped advertise this meet and greet to all              
families at their various learning centers. We were able to offer application support during this               
event and had a volunteer spanish translator present. In the future, we would like to have a                 
translator available at all evening recruiting events. We have also identified that having food and               
childcare available will allow us to reach more families. 

We recognize that a diverse staff is an essential element of recruitment. It is important for                
students to see reflections of themselves in positions of authority. To that end, we have been                
intentional in our staff recruitment efforts. This includes advertising open positions through            
networks designed to support minority teachers such as Black Educators Rock. This year we              
hosted a Teacher’s of Tomorrow information session and invited a diverse group of teacher              
hopefuls to learn about this pathway to teacher certification which was recently approved by the               
State School Board. Through this experience, they learned about our school and we expanded              
our educator network. One attendee even applied for an open position. In the future we hope to                 
establish partnerships with the teaching programs at Shaw University and Saint Augustine’s            
University, two historically black colleges within walking distance of our school. 

With the support from this grant Exploris will expand recruiting events to include             
experiential programs within communities that serve educationally disadvantaged students. We          
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envision sharing our school philosophy through events such as STEM Challenges, service            
learning, and community gardening. We believe these types of shared experiences build            
community and are essential to ensuring families of educationally disadvantaged students know            
that we are an option for their child. In “Creating Cultures of inclusion for Families of Color,”                 
Brown (2015) explains that it is important for families of color to understand the school’s               
philosophy, norms, and commitment to diversity as early and explicitly as possible. These             
community-based events will be designed to help families develop a deeper understanding of             
Exploris, which we hope will encourage them to apply. 

Finally, funds from this grant will allow The Exploris School to better share information              
about who we are and what we do. Over the life of the grant, we will produce and publish new                    
school brochures, an informational video, and an updated website. These materials further            
enhance our desire to communicate well with families what they can expect when they enroll at                
Exploris. 
 
Question 13 - Transportation 

The Exploris School recognizes that a major barrier to charter school access is the lack of                
a school-operated bus system. To diminish this barrier, we researched numerous transportation            
solutions available to schools in Wake County, NC. At this time, we have identified three               
definitive components of our transportation plan: facilitate student and family use of public             
transportation and focus recruitment on families that live within designated walk zones and bike              
zones. We are also considering several other potential additions to our transportation plan which              
are outlined below. Viable transportation options will be added within the first two years and               
additional solutions will be added throughout the life of the grant to remove transportation              
barriers. 

Public Transportation . The use of public transportation is aligned with the Exploris            
mission to ensure sustainability and protect our environment. GoTriangle transportation provides           
a free, public transportation option for all students. Students under the age of 12 always ride free                 
and students ages 13-18 ride free by applying for the youth GoPass program. Applications are               
available in English and Spanish. The Exploris School will help students and families plan their               
school route. We will also work with families to coordinate group rides on public transportation               
so that students coming from the same areas do not have to travel alone.  

Access to quality public transportation is also readily available when we move to our new               
facility in the City Gateway building, which we anticipate to be open in 2021. Both GO Raleigh                 
and GO Triangle serve bus stops within a 0.25-mile walking distance of City Gateway’s main               
entry. Combined, these bus services provide access to 137 daily weekday trips and 120 daily               
weekend trips. The various bus routes and transit stops are shown in the maps provided in                
(Appendix F, 44-50). 

Bike Zone. The Exploris School will provide bicycles and helmets to students who live              
within a bike-zone. Bicycling to school is also aligned with our mission and would help our                
environment by reducing pollution and carbon emissions and increase physical activity and            
improve health for our students. The new school facility in the City Gateway building borders               
the Capital Area Greenway Trail System, providing direct access to the downtown bicycle             
network making it easier for students to bike to school. The bicycle network map is provided in                 
(Appendix F, 44-50). 
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Walk Zone . Located in downtown Raleigh, Exploris is situated within walking distance            
of multiple economically disadvantaged neighborhoods. We will focus recruitment on three           
low-income neighborhoods in close proximity to the school: Chavis Heights, Capitol Park, and             
Walnut Terrace. Chavis Heights is less than one mile from the current Exploris elementary              
school and our new school location. Both locations have walking routes that do not require               
students to cross any major streets. Walnut Terrace is even closer than Chavis Heights to our                
new building. However, it does require students to cross a major road (MLK Boulevard). We               
will assist families with organizing walking groups and strengthen our carpooling network to             
minimize major street crossings. Capitol Park is 1.5 miles from our new campus and is on a bus                  
route. Given the short public transportation commute, we will also focus recruiting here. 

Other. We have also identified four additional transportation solutions which require           
further research, planning, and negotiation. At least one of these other transportation solutions             
will be implemented during the grant period. 

(1) Carpool to School app. Carpool to School is an app that allows families to               
coordinate carpooling efforts. In addition to traditional ride sharing, it also allows families to              
coordinate walking groups and public transportation groups.  

(2) Purchasing 1 or 2 School-Owned Vans. We are currently gathering quotes for the              
purchase and operation of two 15-passenger vans. Van ownership has the added flexibility and              
benefit of supporting field trip travel.  

(3) Van Service Subcontractor. Additionally, we are considering the use of a third-party             
transportation provider. Triangle Transportation Services, Greenway Transit, and other operators          
are in the process of being evaluated from a cost/benefit and safety perspective. This solution               
would include door-to-door pick up and drop off as well as transportation to and from designated                
gathering spots in areas with a high concentration of Exploris students.  

(4) Partnership with Wake County Public Schools (WCPSS). An initial meeting and            
conversation was held with Cathy Moore, Superintendent of WCPSS to discuss the possibility of              
partnering to meet the transportation needs of our EDS. The initial concept would allow Exploris               
students to meet at 3-4 gathering spots throughout the county and be transported on a WCPSS                
bus to The Exploris School.  

We will continue to monitor the effectiveness of our transportation plan and conduct a              
comprehensive transportation needs assessment in the 2022-2023 school year. We will determine            
whether the existing plan will continue to meet families’ needs for the next five year period or                 
whether it is necessary to make revisions and improvements to our transportation plan. 
 
Question 14 - Lunch 

Currently Exploris works with external vendors, My Hot Lunchbox and Spicy Green            
Gourmet, to provide a school lunch option to families. These services allow families to order a                
meal that is delivered to school. Historically, My Hot Lunchbox has also generously provided a               
few meals to feed students that have an economic need, at no additional cost to the school.                 
Additionally, we have snack donations that are collected through a food pantry program that was               
created by Exploris students through a Service Learning project (see Appendix F, 51-53). When              
urgent needs arise, we have lunch food on-site and we have additional vendors such as Jersey                
Mike’s, Jimmy Johns, or A Place at the Table that provide donations. As our school began                
intentionally growing our EDS population, we recognized that our current solutions would not             
scale or be sustainable.  
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Last year the Equity and Diversity Board Committee and a school study team of teachers               
began to look for other food solutions. Three priorities were identified: 1. Nutritious Food 2.               
Environmentally Friendly Packaging 3. Sustainable Options for Free/Reduced Pricing. We          
attended an information session on the National School Lunch Program, visited other charter             
schools, and looked at additional options available in our community. Through a vetting and              
narrowing process, we decided to conduct a pilot program with Spicy Green Gourmet at our               
elementary grades. This company allows us to use a portion of the proceeds to purchase meals                
for students. Early data from this pilot indicate many pros, however it looks unlikely that we will                 
be able to generate enough profit to cover our growing demand. Our current enrollment is 447                
with 48 students (10.8%) meeting the federal guidelines for free and reduced lunch. With our               
current system we are able to serve 15 free lunches daily to students whose families have reached                 
out directly and expressed a need or where staff have observed a need, this is only 31% of our                   
identified need (see Appendix F, 54). We would like to be able to meet the food needs of 100%                   
of students who qualify. We recognize that our current approach is unsustainable, especially as              
our EDS population expands. We are eager to use funds from this grant to develop a more                 
effective, sustainable Food Plan. 

With monies from this grant we will be able to partner with Community Food Lab and                
Interfaith Food shuttle, a local group that creates change in communities by connecting people,              
design thinking, and intelligent food system planning (see Appendix F, 55-56). We are             
committed to learning how we can apply their proven processes, principles, and strategies in              
order to create an innovative, sustainable food solution that can be shared with other charter               
schools. We intend to involve our whole community in the design process with students taking               
leadership roles in work that is related to grade-level standards.  

We envision a solution that embraces symbiotic relationships with like-minded          
community partners. For example, the Food Bank of NC currently offers Cooking Matters             
classes to our students, with a focus on those that meet F&R criteria. We have been discussing                 
how we can further this partnership by using our garden to supply food in order to defray costs of                   
lunch through their catering program. We have talked with Carroll’s Kitchen, a local nonprofit              
restaurant group that provides employment for women leaving crisis, about the possibilities of             
how our two organizations could help one another. We are also excited that Weaver Street               
Market, a local food co-op with a commitment to community food partnerships is opening blocks               
away from our middle school campus and could become a future partner.  

Although we are still finalizing partnerships, we are confident that with money from this              
grant, the end result will be a sustainable lunch program that is comparable to the National                
School Program and ensures every student at Exploris has at least one healthy meal daily. 
 
Question 15 - Parent Advisory Council 

The Exploris School will create a Parent/ Community Advisory council to support the             
goals of our NC ACCESS Expansion subgrant. The Advisory Council will have parent             
representatives that represent the needs of each of the educationally disadvantaged subgroups as             
well as community members that bridge the connection between home, school, and the greater              
Raleigh Community.  

The purpose of our Advisory Council will be to support the fundraising and             
programmatic needs of our EDS population. Members of our Advisory council will be             
individuals that are passionate about educational equity and ensuring access for all students. The              

14 



Advisory Council Community partners may consist of representatives from the City of Raleigh             
Parks and Recreation Department, the YMCA, Community Food Lab, InterFaith Food Shuttle,            
the Raleigh Chamber of Commerce, a Social Worker, and NCSU’s Office of Institutional Equity              
and Diversity.  

The advisory council mission is to identify ways to network throughout the Raleigh             
community to access resources and opportunities that address the school goals of removing             
barriers and improving supports to meet educationally disadvantaged students and their families.            
The Advisory Council will meet on a monthly basis and begin the school year with an overview                 
of the school’s goals and objectives to meet the needs of EDS. Each month targeted supports and                 
needs will be clarified and solutions and opportunities to meet those needs will be pursued by the                 
Advisory Council members.  
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Applicant Name:
Subgrant Type:

Budget Category
Planning

Year
Year 1 

Implementation
Year 2 

Implementation
Year 3 

Implementation
Year 4 

Implementation
Year 5 

Implementation* 
Total

INSTRUCTIONAL PROGRAM

Salaries -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Employee Provided Benefits -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Professional Fees and Contracted Services -$                  30,000.00$       50,000.00$       50,000.00$       48,000.00$       48,000.00$       226,000.00$     

Supplies and Materials -$                  35,000.00$       20,000.00$       20,000.00$       15,000.00$       15,000.00$       105,000.00$     

Technology and Equipment -$                  33,000.00$       10,000.00$       14,000.00$       12,000.00$       10,000.00$       79,000.00$       

Travel, Conferences, and Meetings -$                  10,000.00$       10,000.00$       10,000.00$       10,000.00$       10,000.00$       50,000.00$       

Other -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Subtotal Instructional Program -$                  108,000.00$     90,000.00$       94,000.00$       85,000.00$       83,000.00$       460,000.00$     

SUPPORT PROGRAM

Salaries -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Employee Provided Benefits -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Professional Fees and Contracted Services -$                  29,000.00$       2,000.00$         7,000.00$         10,000.00$       -$                  48,000.00$       

Supplies and Materials -$                  3,000.00$         3,000.00$         3,000.00$         3,000.00$         3,000.00$         15,000.00$       

Technology and Equipment -$                  -$                  27,000.00$       27,000.00$       4,000.00$         4,000.00$         62,000.00$       

Travel, Conferences, and Meetings -$                  3,000.00$         3,000.00$         3,000.00$         3,000.00$         3,000.00$         15,000.00$       

Other -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Subtotal Support Program -$                  35,000.00$       35,000.00$       40,000.00$       20,000.00$       10,000.00$       140,000.00$     

Grand Total -$                  143,000.00$     125,000.00$     134,000.00$     105,000.00$     93,000.00$       600,000.00$     
*If applicable. Total grant periods cannot exceed sixty (60) months, including the planning year.

NC ACCESS PROGRAM SUBGRANT BUDGET
Budget Request Summary

The Exploris School
Expansion



NC ACCESS PROGRAM SUBGRANT BUDGET Year 1 Implementation Budget Detail
The Exploris School Complete the budget detail below for all year 1 implementation expenses.
Expansion Contact the NC ACCESS Program team if more than 50 rows are needed.

1 2 3 4 5 6
Budget Category Item/Expense Quantity Unit Price Total Cost  Description/Notes 

Instr. - Supplies and Materials Instructional supplies, furniture, programs, assessments 1 35,000.00$  35,000.00$   
Formalizing our instructional supports for all categories of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support including core instruction, 
intervention, and exceptional children. Year 1 focus: Furniture in alignment with Tier 3 needs, special education 
curriculum programs, Tier 2 intervention programs and assessments

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted Services Contract services: Instruction and curriculum development 1 30,000.00$  30,000.00$   
Contract with experts to support development and implementation of culturally relevant curriculum and instructional 
strategies

Instr. - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Professional Development 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   MTSS Focus Year 1: Core climate & culture; Peaceful Schools NC Contract & Cohort to Racial Equity Institute
Instr. - Technology and Equipment Classroom Technology 1 23,000.00$  23,000.00$   Student iPads (50) with cases for each and 3 charging carts, classroom laminators and two color printers.
Instr. - Technology and Equipment Playground structures and equipment 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   Natural playground at Elementary Campus
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Contract to develop sustainable food plan and curriculum 
development

1 20,000.00$  20,000.00$   
Contract with Community Food Lab and Interfaith Food Shuttle to develop a sustainable food solution and to 
collaborate with teachers to design and implement curriculum around food insecurity

Support - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Family engagement and recruitment events 1 3,000.00$    3,000.00$     Programming for adults and children at family engagement and recruiting events.
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Translation services 1 2,000.00$    2,000.00$     
All recruitment and application materials will be translated in Spanish and Arabic. Translators for meetings and 
school events.

Support - Supplies and Materials Recruitment tools 1 3,000.00$    3,000.00$     Printing of recruitment brochures including translated copies 
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Recruitment tools 1 7,000.00$    7,000.00$     Website design  



NC ACCESS PROGRAM SUBGRANT BUDGET Year 2 Implementation Budget Detail
The Exploris School Complete the budget detail below for all year 2 implementation expenses.
Expansion Contact the NC ACCESS Program team if more than 50 rows are needed.

1 2 3 4 5 6
Budget Category Item/Expense Quantity Unit Price Total Cost  Description/Notes 

Instr. - Supplies and Materials
Instructional supplies, furniture, programs, 
assessments

1 20,000.00$  20,000.00$   
Formalizing our instructional supports for all categories of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support including 
core instruction, intervention, and exceptional children. Year 2 focus: Core instruction teaching 
materials, purchase of K-8 SEL program, purchase of ELL program, EC instructional materials

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Contract services: Instruction and curriculum 
development

1 30,000.00$  30,000.00$   
Contract with experts to support development and implementation of culturally relevant curriculum and 
instructional strategies

Instr. - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Professional Development 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   MTSS Focus Year 2: SEL Program Implementation

Instr. - Technology and Equipment Instructional technology 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   
Classroom projection technology including large HDTV Displays, with carts and Chromecasts (10). Any 
remaining funds toward doc cams.

Support - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Family engagement and recruitment events 1 3,000.00$    3,000.00$     Programming for adults and children at family engagement and recruiting events.
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Translation services 1 2,000.00$    2,000.00$     
All recruitment and application materials will be translated in Spanish and Arabic. Translators for 
meetings and school events.

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Summer readiness camp 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   Readiness camps for rising kindergarten and 6th grade students

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

After school tutoring program 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   School tutoring program - students participate in remediation, enrichment, and support

Support - Technology and Equipment Transportation solution 1 27,000.00$  27,000.00$   Used 15 passenger van
Support - Supplies and Materials Recruitment tools 1 3,000.00$    3,000.00$     Printing of recruitment brochures including translated copies 



NC ACCESS PROGRAM SUBGRANT BUDGET Year 3 Implementation Budget Detail
The Exploris School Complete the budget detail below for all year 3 implementation expenses.
Expansion Contact the NC ACCESS Program team if more than 50 rows are needed.

1 2 3 4 5 6
Budget Category Item/Expense Quantity Unit Price Total Cost  Description/Notes 

Instr. - Supplies and Materials Instructional supplies, furniture, programs, assessments 1 $20,000.00 20,000.00$   
Formalizing our instructional supports for all categories of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support including 
core instruction, intervention, and exceptional children. Focus for Year 3: Culturally responsive 
classroom libraries and furniture supports for Tier 3

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Contract services: Instruction and curriculum 
development

1 30,000.00$   30,000.00$   
Contract with experts to support development and implementation of culturally relevant curriculum and 
instructional strategies

Instr. - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Professional Development 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$   MTSS Focus Year 3: Racial Equity including the Racial Equity Institute
Instr. - Technology and Equipment Instructional technology 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$   Student Chromebooks (40) and 2 charging carts.
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Contract services: Food solution check in consultation 1 5,000.00$     5,000.00$     
Contract with Community Food Lab and Interfaith Food Shuttle to develop a sustainable food solution 
and to collaborate with teachers to design and implement curriculum around food insecurity

Instr. - Technology and Equipment Garden project 1 4,000.00$     4,000.00$     Garden Program implementation materials such as soil, tools, and seeds
Support - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Family engagement and recruitment events 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$     Programming for adults and children at family engagement and recruiting events.
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Translation services 1 2,000.00$     2,000.00$     
All recruitment and application materials will be translated in Spanish and Arabic. Translators for 
meetings and school events.

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Summer readiness camp 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$   Readiness camps for rising kindergarten and 6th grade students

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

After school tutoring program 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$   School tutoring program - students participate in remediation, enrichment, and support

Support - Technology and Equipment Transportation solution 1 27,000.00$   27,000.00$   Used 15 passenger van
Support - Supplies and Materials Recruitment tools 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$     Printing Recruitment brochures including translated copies 



NC ACCESS PROGRAM SUBGRANT BUDGET Year 4 Implementation Budget Detail
The Exploris School Complete the budget detail below for all year 4 implementation expenses.
Expansion Contact the NC ACCESS Program team if more than 50 rows are needed.

1 2 3 4 5 6
Budget Category Item/Expense Quantity Unit Price Total Cost  Description/Notes 

Instr. - Supplies and Materials
Instructional supplies, furniture, programs, 
assessments

1 15,000.00$  15,000.00$   
Formalizing our instructional supports for all categories of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support including 
core instruction, intervention, and exceptional children. Year 4 focus: Tiers 1 and 2 instructional 
materials and assessments based on needs assessment in Year 3

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Contract services: Instruction and curriculum 
development

1 30,000.00$  30,000.00$   
Contract with experts to support development and implementation of culturally relevant curriculum and 
instructional strategies

Instr. - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Professional Development 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   MTSS Focus Year 4: Strategies for effective technology integration

Instr. - Technology and Equipment Instructional technology 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   
Classroom projection technology including large HDTV Displays, with carts and Chromecasts (10). Any 
remaining funds toward doc cams.

Instr. - Technology and Equipment Garden project 1 2,000.00$    2,000.00$     Garden Program expansion and support
Support - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Family engagement and recruitment events 1 3,000.00$    3,000.00$     Programming for adults and children at family engagement and recruiting events.
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Translation services 1 2,000.00$    2,000.00$     
All recruitment and application materials will be translated in Spanish and Arabic. Translators for 
meetings and school events.

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Summer readiness camp 1 8,000.00$    8,000.00$     Readiness camps for rising kindergarten and 6th grade students

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

After school tutoring program 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$   School tutoring program - students participate in remediation, enrichment, and support

Support - Technology and Equipment Transportation Solution 1 4,000.00$    4,000.00$     Approximately 20 bikes and helmets for student use.
Support - Supplies and Materials Recruitment tools 1 3,000.00$    3,000.00$     Printing Recruitment brochures including translated copies 
Support - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Recruitment tools 1 8,000.00$    8,000.00$     Recruitment brochure design ($3,000) and recruitment video creation ($5,000)



NC ACCESS PROGRAM SUBGRANT BUDGET Year 5 Implementation Budget Detail
The Exploris School Complete the budget detail below for all year 5 implementation expenses. Note: this page is only applicable if the applcant has not already budgeted for five years of subgrant funding (including planning).
Expansion Contact the NC ACCESS Program team if more than 50 rows are needed.

1 2 3 4 5 6
Budget Category Item/Expense Quantity Unit Price Total Cost  Description/Notes 

Instr. - Supplies and Materials
Instructional supplies, furniture, programs, 
assessments

1 15,000.00$   15,000.00$  
Formalizing our instructional supports for all categories of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support including core 
instruction, intervention, and exceptional children. Year 5 focus: Tier 3 instructional materials based on needs 
assessment in Year 4

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Contract services: Instruction and curriculum 
development

1 30,000.00$   30,000.00$  
Contract with experts to support development and implementation of culturally relevant curriculum and 
instructional strategies

Instr. - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Professional Development 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$  MTSS Focus to be determined based on feedback from PD in previous years.
Instr. - Technology and Equipment Instructional technology 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$  Student devices such as iPads and Chromebooks. Amount of each based on needs assessment in Year 4
Support - Travel, Conferences, Meetings Family engagement and recruitment events 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$    Programming for adults and children at family engagement and recruiting events.
Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

Summer readiness camp 1 8,000.00$     8,000.00$    Readiness camps for rising kindergarten and 6th grade students

Instr. - Professional Fees and Contracted 
Services

After school tutoring program 1 10,000.00$   10,000.00$  School tutoring program - students participate in remediation, enrichment, and support

Support - Technology and Equipment Transportation solution 1 4,000.00$     4,000.00$    Approximately 20 bikes and helmets for student use.
Support - Supplies and Materials Recruitment tools 1 3,000.00$     3,000.00$    Printing recruitment brochures including translated copies



EXPLORIS BUDGET NARRATIVE 
 
A. Describe anticipated costs for the duration of the grant period 
 
Instructional Program:  Professional Fees and Contracted Services 
Professional Development/Consultant 

Professional development will be conducted via contracts with consultants to provide           
instructional strategy support and develop training and curricula, especially in the area of             
Culturally Relevant teaching. This grant will fund $30,000 per year for The Exploris School to               
contract with consultants who are experts in the field of Culturally Relevant Teaching. These              
experts will develop curricula and training, as well as work alongside teachers and staff to ensure                
that we are appropriately embracing culturally relevant practices. 
Readiness Camps and Tutoring Program 

Readiness camps and tutoring programs will also be funded through this grant. Free             
readiness camps for rising kindergarten and 6th grade students will be held during the summer to                
help students and families transition to the start of school. This grant will provide $36,000 to                
fund this program which will support social-emotional and academic school readiness. A new             
school tutoring program will also be established to allow students to participate in remediation,              
enrichment, and support. Funding of $40,000 will allow this tutoring program to operate outside              
of school hours and in conjunction with our classroom teachers and community partners.  

 
Instructional Program: Supplies and Materials 

Over the five year course of this grant, $105,000 is budgeted to provide instructional              
materials. These materials include formalizing academic and social-emotional learning through          
the acquisition of EC, ELL, Intervention, and SEL programs. Additionally, we will purchase             
instructional materials such as culturally relevant classroom libraries. Finally, we will implement            
classroom design elements such as furniture that will better support the needs of students with               
learning, developmental, and/or intellectual disabilities. These instructional supports will focus          
on all categories of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support including core instruction, intervention, and             
exceptional children.  
 
Instructional Program: Technology and Equipment 

We have budgeted $63,000 over the course of the grant for instructional technology. Of              
this funding, $40,000 will be utilized to purchase student devices such as iPads and              
Chromebooks. Also, $20,000 will fund classroom technology such as projection supplies (ex.            
networked televisions, projectors, and document cameras). Additionally, the Exploris School will           
use $3,000 to purchase two color printers and several small laminators, which are needed              
technology-based supplies for creating special education tools such as visual schedules and            
choice boards. 

Funding in the amount of $10,000 will be used to construct a Nature Playground for our                
elementary campus. Natural playgrounds not only help with physical skills, but also help to              
develop social skills, collaboration, and problem-solving. This playground is an important           
element of ensuring a positive school climate. 

Starting In the third year of the grant period, our food program will be expanded to                
include a school garden as a source of fresh produce for the lunch program. Total grant funds for                  
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the school garden will amount to $6,000 and serve as a learning tool for a variety of subjects,                  
including life skills.  
 
Instructional Program: Travel, Conference Meetings 

Throughout the grant, staff will be engaged in robust, ongoing professional development            
through a variety of sources and focused on the following areas: racial equity, social-emotional              
learning (SEL), integrating technology, exceptional children’s programming (EC and ELL), and           
intervention supports. Professional development will be centered on building a Multi-Tiered           
System of Supports for students, which allow us to address the whole child at every level.                
Funding from this grant will provide $10,000 per year toward organized staff professional             
development and opportunities for teachers to lead workshops that expand our impact to other              
schools. For example, in the first year of the grant, The Exploris School will work with Peaceful                 
Schools NC to provide a staff retreat, classroom management workshops, teacher-coaching,           
leadership training, and schoolwide discipline workshops. The remaining funds will be used to             
begin training through the Racial Equity Institute and other related experiences. 
 
Support Program:   Professional Fees and Contracted Services  
Food Plan 

This grant will provide $25,000 to develop a sustainable school lunch plan to remove this               
significant barrier to access. This funding will be used to develop a sustainable food solution to                
ensure that every student at Exploris has at least one healthy meal daily. This work will be                 
completed in collaboration with Community Food Lab and the Interfaith Food Shuttle. We will              
contract with this organization to develop a plan to apply their proven processes, principles, and               
strategies in order to create an innovative sustainable food solution. The plan will be assessed for                
efficacy in year 3 under this contract.  
Translation Services 

Translation services utilizing $8,000 over the five-year grant will allow us to make all              
application, recruitment, and enrollment materials available in Spanish, Arabic, and other           
languages as needed. Translating services will also be available for meetings and school events              
to help our growing English Language Learner (ELL) families 
Recruitment Plan 

School communications and marketing are critical in order to effectively recruit new            
families. Grant funding of $15,000 will be utilized to produce an informational video, create the               
design for a recruitment brochure and redesign the school website. 

 
Support Program: Supplies and Materials  

Grant funding in the amount of $15,000 will allow Exploris to create and publish              
effective recruitment tools. This money will be allocated for brochure creation and publication,             
as well Our current website is difficult to navigate and not culturally responsive to meet the                
needs of our EDS families. The redesign will make the website a more effective recruitment tool                
since it will be easier for families of EDS to learn more about our school programs and how we                   
can address the academic, social, and emotional needs of their children. The school brochures              
and video are also a vital tools for communicating our philosophy and commitments to families.               
We recognize that culturally responsive work includes providing up-front, explicit explanations           
of our values, norms, methods, and commitment to diversity. 
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Support Program:  Technology and Equipment  
Transportation 

Exploris will utilize $62,000 of this grant to address the significant barrier of             
transportation. A Carpool to School app will assist in connecting families to carpool, walk, bike               
and use public transportation with one another. The purchase of two 15 passenger vans will               
allow the school to provide transportation to educationally disadvantaged students both to and             
from school as well as on curriculum-embedded field experiences. Bicycles and helmets will also              
be purchased to provide families with another option for transportation.  

 
Support Program:  Travel, Conference, Meetings  
Family Engagement Events and Recruitment 

Family engagement and recruitment events will be expanded to include experiential           
programs such as STEM challenges, service learning, and community gardening. These events            
will include programming for adults and children. This grant will provide $3,000 per year per               
year to provide these learning events.  

 
B. Financial viability beyond expiration of grant period.  

The NC ACCESS Expansion Subgrant will provide the funding needed to plan, educate,             
and build the supports needed for The Exploris School to serve a significantly higher number of                
educationally disadvantaged students. These initiatives will continue at Exploris beyond the           
grant period in a variety of ways. 

The work of the grant has been designed with sustainability in mind. The food plan will                
be designed to be financially sustainable after year 3 of the grant. The transportation plan may                
require financial upkeep depending on the final alternatives included. Van or bus sharing fees or               
the cost of vehicle insurance, maintenance, and gas for the 15 passenger vans may be required.                
This funding will come from the school operating budget beginning in year 2. 

Exploris will continue to use fundraising to supplement programs that require ongoing            
resources, such as the summer readiness camp, tutoring program, and family engagement and             
recruitment events. Currently, the school’s fundraising efforts are focused on a capital campaign,             
but in the future, efforts will be redirected to the annual fund. In the past, the annual fund has                   
raised $100,000 per year. We recognize that as we increase our population of economically              
disadvantaged families the fundraising contributions from families may decline. We will also            
target corporate donors and foundations to provide additional funding to support initiatives for             
EDS and their families. 

Exploris will also seek out additional grant funding in the future to continue to grow and                
enhance programming for our educationally disadvantaged students. Any additional funding          
needed to sustain the programs will be absorbed into the school budget. Exploris has been in                
operation for over 21 years and is proud to maintain a healthy and sustainable budget with a                 
reserve beyond the recommended level. We are confident in the school’s commitment and ability              
to locate and take advantage of the necessary resources to maintain and grow these programs into                
the future.  
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C. Describes how the applicant will have a high degree of autonomy over the budget and                
operations 

The Exploris School will maintain complete autonomy over the budget for the NC             
ACCESS Expansion Grant funding and the operations of the programs established under the  
grant. As an independent charter school, we are not tied to any network or similar organization. 
Therefore, we maintain complete autonomy over all aspects of our budget and operations. The 
Exploris School administration and staff operate with sound fiscal management and continuously 
ensure that all funds allocated are spent judiciously to meet student and staff needs that are in 
alignment with goals and objectives. Operational oversight of products, programs, and services 
implemented will be monitored and measured to ensure that results are achieved to remove 
barriers, improve access through recruitment, and provide the needed supports for EDS to be 
successful academically, socially, and emotionally. 
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Logic Model: The Exploris School 

Objectives 

1. Increase the percent of educationally disadvantaged students from 22% to 32% by June 2024; and share effective practices                  
for creating an inclusive community with other educators. 

2. Remove the most common barriers that make charter schools inaccessible to disadvantaged families by creating plans for                 
sustainable student support including those for food, transportation, and communication by June 2021. 

3. Strengthen our student support network by developing and engaging with families and community-based partners as               
measured by year-over-year growth in participation and number of partnerships.  

4. Create a safe and joyful learning environment that is developmentally responsive to student’s strengths and needs as                 
measured by annual school climate surveys. 

5. Build teacher capacity through ongoing robust professional development and culturally responsive programming in order to               
increase student achievement as measured by meeting or exceeding Expected Growth in all subgroups. 

 

Inputs 
Outputs Outcomes and Impacts 

Activities Participation Short Medium Long 

Funding 
 
Contract 
Services 
 
Training for 
staff 
 
Collaboration 
with partner 
organizations 
 
Staff time 

Instructional 
programs, 
technology, and 
materials are 
available to meet 
the needs of all 
learners. 
 
Physical space 
(classrooms and 
playground) meet 
the needs of all 
learners. 

Teachers 
 
Administrators 
 
Staff 
 
Partner 
Organizations 
 
Families 
 
Students 
 

Increased number 
of students enrolled 
who are 
educationally 
disadvantaged. 
 
Students increase 
their academic and 
social-emotional 
skills. 
 
Increase in teacher 
readiness to 

Every student has at 
least one healthy 
meal at school. 
 
Every student has a 
reliable method to get 
to school. 
 
Summer readiness 
programs prepare 
Exploris students for 
success 
 

Increased public support 
for charter schools. 
 
Exploris is recognized as 
a national model public 
school demonstrating 
innovation, support, and 
success for EDS. 
 
Increased capacity to 
support students who are 
educationally 
disadvantaged. 
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and 
knowledge 
 
Research 
base 
 
Organization
al knowledge 
base 

 
Teachers and 
staff engage in 
robust training 
and support. 
 
A sustainable 
food solution is 
developed and 
implemented. 
 
Family 
recruitment and 
engagement 
activities. 
 
Recruitment and 
enrollment 
materials are 
translated, 
produced, 
published, and 
shared. 
 
A sustainable 
transportation 
plan is developed 
and 
implemented. 
 
Summer, 
after-school, and 

Consultants provide high 
quality, culturally 
relevant teaching. 
 
Increase in data 
showing a positive 
school climate. 
 
Decrease in office 
referrals. 
 
School recruitment 
materials are 
available in 
multiple languages. 
 
Increase in 
attendance at 
family engagement 
events. 
 
Increase in number 
of partner 
organizations. 
 
 
 
 

Decrease in number 
of families 
transferring out of 
Exploris. 
 
Increase in number of 
families applying for 
the Exploris priority 
lottery for 
economically 
disadvantaged 
families.. 
 

 
Increased ability to share 
successful strategies with 
other charter schools. 
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intersession 
tutoring/support 
is provided to 
students. 
 

 

Assumptions 
Engaging teachers in professional development will      
increase teacher competence and instructional skill 
Improving instruction, which includes providing     
culturally relevant teaching, will increase student      
academic and social-emotional skills 
Increased social-emotional skills, teacher knowledge, 
and programming will improve the school climate 
Developing and implementing food and transportation 
plans will increase enrollment, reputation, and retention 
Increased academic and social-emotional skills will 
increase enrollment, reputation, and retention 
Providing translated materials and family recruitment 
events will increase enrollment, retention, and family 
engagement. 

 External Factors 
Location 
State/Federal Funding 
Overall Economy 
Legislation 
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Appendix A 

 (i ) - NC State Report Card Letter Grades 

Report Card Letter Grade 

2015-2016 A 

2016-2017 B 

2017-2018 B 

(ii) Student Achievement Percentages (including subgroup data)
Proficiency by Subgroup for 2017-2018

All Female Male White Black Asian 2 or 
more 

SWD 

Math 78.9 80.1 77.6 79.0 54.2 >95 86.7 38.6 

Reading 83.8 89.2 78.3 84.4 66.7 >95 93.3 50.0 

Science 92.7 91.1 94.3 92.0 n/a n/a n/a 83.3 

Proficiency by Subgroup for 2016-2017 

All Female Male White Black Asian 2 or 
more 

EDS SWD 

Math 79.1 81.1 76.9 81.2 45.0 95.0 75.0 67.9 35.3 

Reading 84.3 88.2 80.1 85.7 65.0 78.6 87.5 78.6 52.9 

Science 90.9 91.4 90.4 90.1 n/a n/a n/a 81.8 45.5 

Proficiency by Subgroup for 2015-2016 

All Female Male White Black Asian Hispanic 2 or 
more 

EDS SWD 

Math 84.8 87.6 81.8 85.5 60.0 95.0 90.9 83.3 76.0 37.5 

Reading 86.3 89.4 83.0 87.4 65.0 88.2 90.9 91.7 80.0 52.5 

Science 95.0 95.0 94.3 95.0 n/a n/a n/a n/a 90.0 84.6 
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iii - EVAAS Composite Scores 

EVAAS Composite 

2015-2016 5.41 

2016-2017 -5.01

2017-2018 0.95 

iv - Graduation Rates - not applicable 
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November 14, 2018 
 
To the Board of Directors  
The Exploris School 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School (the “School”) for the year ended June 
30, 2018. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as 
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated May 21, 2018. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by The Exploris School are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2018. We noted 
no transactions entered into by The Exploris School during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the School’s financial statements were:  
 

Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives is based on the estimated useful lives of the 
capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable 
lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the carrying value of the School’s investment in the unconsolidated 
joint venture is based upon certain estimates used to prepare the financial statements of the joint 
venture. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible promises to give is based on the 
amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances at June 30, 2018.  We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance for uncollectible 
promises to give in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as 
a whole. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The 
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements.  Management has 
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as 
a whole.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by 
management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements 
taken as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management  
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations  
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 14, 2018. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to The Exploris School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us 
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as The Exploris School’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 
 
Review of Bank Reconciliations 
 
We noted that the bank accounts are formally reconciled monthly to transactions recorded in the accounting 
system. However, we noted that this reconciliation has no indication of review or approval by another member of 
management.  We recommend that another member of management initial and date the reconciliation at the time 
of review.  This will ensure that there is adequate support for segregation of duties. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  
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We were engaged to report on the budgetary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing 
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves.  
 
Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of The 
Exploris School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
Thomas Judy & Tucker, P.A. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise The Exploris School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.   
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School as of June 30, 2018, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   
 
Supplementary and Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise The Exploris School’s basic financial statements. The budgetary schedules are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a required 
part of the basic financial statements.    
 
The budgetary schedules, as well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the budgetary schedules, and the 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 14, 
2018 on our consideration of The Exploris School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The Exploris School’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 14, 2018
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
The Exploris School 

June 30, 2018 
 

 
 
As management of The Exploris School, we offer readers of The Exploris School’s audited 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of The Exploris 
School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  We encourage readers to read the information 
presented herein in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the School’s 
financial statements, which follow this narrative.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 

● The assets of The Exploris School exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $2,012,604 (net position). 

● The School’s total net assets increased by $545,095. 
● As of the close of the current fiscal year, The Exploris School’s governmental funds 

reported combined ending fund balances of $1,013,364. 
● Enrollment has remained steady at the School.  In 2015-2016 the State funded Average 

Daily Membership (ADM) was 421. In 2016-2017 it was 419, and in 2017-2018 it was 
420. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to The Exploris School’s 
basic financial statements.  The School’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two distinct financial 
perspectives of the School through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of The Exploris 
School. 
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Figure 1 
 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 
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Basic Financial Statements 
 
The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-
wide Financial Statements.  They provide both short and long-term information about the 
School’s financial standing. 
 
The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements.  These statements 
focus on the activities of the individual segments of the School’s government and are more 
detailed than the government-wide financial statements. There are two parts to the Fund 
Financial Statements:  1) the governmental funds statements; and 2) the proprietary fund 
statements. 
 
Immediately following the fund financial statements are the Notes to the Financial Statements 
(i.e. “Notes”).  The Notes offer a detailed explanation of the data contained in those statements.  
Next, supplemental information is provided to show details about the School’s funds.  
Budgetary information for the School can also be found in this section of the statements. 

Basic  

Financial 
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Management’s 
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Notes to the  
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Fund  

Financial  
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Government-wide 
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Government-wide Financial Statements  
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad 
overview of the School’s finances, similar in format to the financial statements of a private-sector 
business.  The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the 
School’s financial status, as a whole. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the School’s net position and how they have 
changed.  Net position equals the difference between the School’s total assets and total liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the School’s 
financial condition. 
 
The government-wide statements are divided into two categories:  1) governmental activities; and 
2) business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the School’s basic 
functions such as instructional services and business services. These functions are funded 
almost entirely through state, county, and federal educational funds. The business-type activities 
are those services that the School charges its students and other customers. These include the 
Before and After School Care program carried out by The Exploris School. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are enumerated in Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the School’s most significant 
activities.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Exploris School, like all other 
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance 
(or non-compliance) with finance-related statutory requirements, such as the North Carolina 
General Statutes or the School’s budget ordinance, where and when applicable.  All of the funds 
of The Exploris School can be divided into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Most of the School’s basic 
services are accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and out, and monies remaining at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next fiscal year.  Governmental funds are reported using the modified accrual 
accounting method, which provides a short-term spending focus.  The governmental fund 
financial statements assist the reader in determining whether there has been an increase or a 
decrease in the financial resources available to finance the School’s programs.  The relationship 
between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is an integral part of the 
fund financial statements. 
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Although not compelled or required to do so by federal, state, or local law, The Exploris School 
has elected to adopt an annual budget.  Since the budget is not required by law, the budgetary 
comparison statements are not included in the basic financial statements, but are part of the 
supplemental statements and schedules following the notes.  The budget incorporates input from 
the faculty, management, and the Board of Directors of the School and specifies which activities 
will be pursued and which services the School will provide during the year.  It also authorizes the 
School to obtain funds from identified sources to finance current period activities.  The budgetary 
statement demonstrates how well the School has complied with the budget ordinance and 
whether or not the School has succeeded in providing the services as originally planned. 
 
Proprietary Funds – The Exploris School has two proprietary funds, which are enterprise funds.  
Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements.  The Exploris School uses enterprise funds to account 
for its Before and After School Care functions.  
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information essential to 
facilitating a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.  The notes to the financial statements begin on page 19 of this report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a school’s financial 
condition.  The assets of The Exploris School exceeded liabilities by $2,012,604 as of June 30, 
2018.  As of June 30, 2017, the net position of The Exploris School stood at $1,467,509.  The 
School’s net position increased by $545,095 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, compared 
to an increase of $243,449 in 2017. The amount of $203,716 reflects the School’s investment in 
capital assets (e.g. leasehold improvements, furniture, and electronic equipment), less any 
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.  The Exploris School uses 
these capital assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  Although The Exploris School’s investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be 
provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
An additional portion of The Exploris School’s net assets represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of $1,808,888 is 
unrestricted.  In 2017, the net investment in capital assets was $326,671, with unrestricted net 
position standing at $1,140,838.   
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Figure 2 
The Exploris School’s Net Position 

 
 

 
 
Several aspects of the School’s financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net assets: 

 
 

● The School adopted an annual budget.  The School’s performance was measured using 
this budget on a monthly basis, allowing changes to be made in spending as needed to 
remain within the confines of the budget. 

 
● The School applied for and was awarded federal grants to assist with meeting the 

educational needs of the student population. 
 

 
 
 
 

  Governmental Activities   Business-Type 
Activities  

Total 

 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 

  

Current and other 
assets $    1,547,911 $    945,364 $  280,171 $  210,325 $  1,828,082 $  1,155,689
Capital assets, net 
of depreciation 203,716 326,671 - - 203,716 326,671

 
Total assets 1,751,627 1,272,035 280,171 210,325 2,031,798 1,482,360

  
 
Other liabilities 19,104 - - - 19,104 -
Long-term liabilities 
outstanding - - - - - -

 
Total liabilities 19,104 - - - 19,104 -

  
Deferred 

inflows of resources - 14,851 - - - 14,851

  
Net position:  

Net investment in 
capital assets 203,716 326,671 - - 203,716 326,671

Unrestricted 1,528,717 930,513 280,171 210,325 1,808,888 1,140,838

 
Total net 
position $    1,732,433 $    1,257,184 $  280,171 $  210,325 $   2,012,604 $   1,467,509
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Figure 3 
The Exploris School’s Changes in Net Position 

 
  Governmental Activities    Business-Type Activities   Total 

 2018  2017  2018  2017  2018  2017 

            

Charges for services $                - 
 $   

- 
 

$   90,358 
 

$   81,080 
 

$     90,358  
 

$     81,080 

Operating grants and 
contributions 

63,068 
 

72,634 
 

- 
 

- 
 

63,068  
 

72,634 

County, State, and 
federal Funds 

3,417,810 
 

3,346,083 
 

- 
 

- 
 

3,417,810  
 

3,346,083 

Donations and other 
revenues 

767,751 
 

319,554 
 

- 
 

- 
 

767,751  
 

319,554 

Total revenues 4,248,629   3,738,271    90,358    81,080  4,338,987  3,819,351 

            
Instructional 
programs 

3,138,418 
 

3,066,506 
 

- 
 

- 
 

3,138,418 
 

3,066,506 

Support services 634,962  487,365  -  -  634,962  487,365 

Child care -  -  20,512  17,365  20,512   17,365 

Interest on long-term 
debt 

- 
 

4,666 
 

- 
 

- 
 

-  
 

4,666 

Total expenses 3,773,380  3,558,537  20,512  17,365  3,793,892  3,575,902 

            
Increase (decrease) in 
net assets 

475,249 
 

179,734 
 

69,846 
 

63,715 
 

545,095 
 

243,449 

              

Net assets, July 1 1,257,184  1,077,450  210,325  146,610  1,467,509  1,224,060 

Net assets, June 30  $   1,732,433   $1,257,184  280,171  $  210,325  $2,012,604   $1,467,509 

 
 
 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities increased the School’s net position by 
$475,249.   
 
Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased The Exploris School’s net position 
by $69,846.   
 
By adopting a budget for the enterprise funds that comprise the business-type activities, the 
Board is able to monitor the School’s revenues and expenditures and adjust their estimates as 
needed during the year.   
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Financial Analysis of the School’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, The Exploris School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of The Exploris School’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable financial resources.  Such 
information is useful in assessing The Exploris School’s financing requirements.  Specifically, 
unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of The Exploris School.  At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $965,062, while total fund balance 
reached $1,013,364.  $48,302 is nonspendable as of June 30, 2018 and is reported as assigned 
fund balance within the general fund. 
 
Proprietary Funds.  The School’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail.  Unrestricted net position of the Before and 
After School Care Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $280,171.   
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The Exploris School’s investment in capital assets for it’s governmental activities 
as of June 30, 2018, totals $203,716 (net of accumulated depreciation).  Capital assets include 
furniture, electronic equipment, and leasehold improvements. 
 
 

Figure 4 
The Exploris School’s Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 
   Governmental Activities  

  2018  2017 

     

Construction In Progress  $                  - $                  - 

Furniture  1,389 1,806 

Electronic equipment  2,125 4,722 

Leasehold improvements  200,202 320,143 

    

 Total   $  203,716 $ 326,671 

  
 
Additional information about the School’s capital assets can be found in Note 2.A.2.of the Basic 
Financial Statements. 
 
Long-term Debt.  As of June 30, 2018, The Exploris School did not have any outstanding debt.   
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Economic Factors 
 
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the School: 
 

● The LEA in which the school resides has experienced tremendous growth, which should 
provide a steady stream of students into the School’s limited available space. 

 
● The State of North Carolina per pupil funding for the 2017-2018 school year, increased 

by $196.81 which equated to a 4.03% increase from the prior year.  
 

● The downtown area of Raleigh continues to be revitalized bringing many new families 
into the new homes and apartments that surround the School which will continue to 
provide a steady stream of new students that can potentially enroll at Exploris. 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the School’s finances for those with an interest 
in this area.  Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to the Board Chair, The Exploris School, 401 
Hillsborough Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27603, telephone (919) 715-3690. 
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Exhibit 1

 

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 896,919$             280,171$           1,177,090$          

Receivables 87,247                 -                         87,247                 

Pledges receivable 515,443 -                         515,443               

Security deposit 15,658                 -                         15,658                 

Prepaid items 32,644 -                         32,644                 

Capital assets (Note 1):

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 203,716               -                         203,716               

Total assets 1,751,627            280,171             2,031,798            

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 19,104                 -                         19,104                 

Total liabilities 19,104                 -                         19,104                 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 203,716               -                         203,716               

Unrestricted 1,528,717            280,171             1,808,888            

Total net position 1,732,433$         280,171$          2,012,604$         

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2

Functions/Programs Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

Instructional services 3,138,418$      -$                     63,068$           (3,075,350)$     -$                     (3,075,350)$     

System-wide support services 634,962 -                       -                       (634,962)          -                       (634,962)          

Total governmental activities 3,773,380        -                       63,068             (3,710,312)       -                       (3,710,312)       

Business-type activities:

Child care 20,512 90,358 -                       -                       69,846             69,846             

Total business-type activities 20,512             90,358             -                       -                       69,846             69,846             

Total primary government 3,793,892$     90,358$          63,068$          (3,710,312)     69,846           (3,640,466)     

General revenues:

Unrestricted county appropriations 1,048,419        -                       1,048,419        

Unrestricted State appropriations 2,369,391        -                       2,369,391        

Contributions and donations 717,641           -                       717,641           

Grants 15,000 -                       15,000             

Field trips 108,164 -                       108,164           

Miscellaneous, unrestricted 9,927               -                       9,927               

Loss in unconsolidated joint venture (82,981)            -                       (82,981)            

Total general revenues and transfers 4,185,561        -                       4,185,561        

Change in net position 475,249           69,846             545,095           

Net position-beginning 1,257,184        210,325           1,467,509        

Net position-ending 1,732,433$     280,171$        2,012,604$     

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Primary Government

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3

Non-major 

Fund

General

State Public 

School

Federal Grants 

Fund

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 896,919$       -$                   -$                   896,919$        

Receivables 87,247           -                     -                     87,247            

Security deposit 15,658           -                     -                     15,658            

Prepaid items 32,644 -                     -                     32,644            

Total assets 1,032,468$   -$                  -$                   1,032,468$    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

   Accounts payable 19,104$         -$                   -$                   19,104$          

Total liabilities 19,104           -                     -                     19,104            

Fund balances:

    Nonspendable:

       Security deposit 15,658           -                     -                     15,658            

       Prepaid items 32,644           -                     -                     32,644            

    Unassigned 965,062         -                     -                     965,062          

Total fund balances 1,013,364      -                     -                     1,013,364       

1,032,468$   -$                  -$                   

203,716          

515,443          

Net position of governmental activities 1,732,523$    

Pledges receivable are not current financial 

resources and therefore are not reported in the 

funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 

statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different 

because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 

not financial resources and therefore are not 

reported in the funds.

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 

resources, and fund balances

Major Funds

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4

 

Non-major 

Fund

General

State Public 

School

Federal 

Grants Fund

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES

State of North Carolina -$                  2,369,391$   -$                  2,369,391$     

Boards of Education 1,048,419      -                    -                    1,048,419       

U.S. Government -                    -                    63,068          63,068            

Contributions and donations 202,198         -                    -                    202,198          

Grants 15,000 -                    -                    15,000            

Field Trips 108,164         -                    -                    108,164          

Other 9,927             -                    -                    9,927              

Total revenues 1,383,708      2,369,391     63,068          3,816,167       

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instructional services 749,551         2,183,956     63,068          2,996,575       

Support services 449,020         185,435        -                    634,455          

Capital outlay: 19,305           -                    -                    19,305            

Total expenditures 1,217,876      2,369,391     63,068          3,650,335       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 165,832         -                    -                    165,832          

Net change in fund balance 165,832       -                  -                   165,832         

Fund balances-beginning 847,532       -                  -                   847,532         

Fund balances-ending 1,013,364$   -$                 -$                  1,013,364$    

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Major Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 165,832$       

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period.
(122,955)       

The loss in unconsolidated joint venture is not a current financial resource and

therefore is not reported in the funds. (82,981)         

Some revenues are reported in the statement of activities do not relate to

current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as revenues in the

governmental funds. 515,353         

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 475,249$      

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Reconciliation of the Statement of

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 6

Enterprise Fund

Major Fund

After

School Care

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 280,171$          

Total assets 280,171$         

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 280,171$          

         Total net position 280,171$         

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit  7

Enterprise Fund

Major Fund

After

School Care

OPERATING REVENUES

Child care fees 90,358$                  

Total operating revenues 90,358                    

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 20,512

  Total operating expenses 20,512                    

Operating income 69,846                    

Total net position - beginning 210,325                  

Total net position - ending 280,171$               

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 8

Enterprise Fund

Major Fund

After

School Care

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 90,358$            

Cash paid to employees for services (20,512)            

Net cash provided by operating activities 69,846              

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 69,846             

Balance-beginning of the year 210,325            

Balance-end of the year 280,171$         

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

Operating income 69,846$            

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable -                       

Increase in accounts payable -                       

Net cash provided by operating activities 69,846$           

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL 
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

 The accounting policies of The Exploris School (the “School”) conform to generally accepted 

accounting principles (“GAAP”) as applicable to governments.  Charter schools are established by 

non-profit entities, such as The Exploris School. Because of the authority of the State Board of 

Education (“SBE”) to terminate, not renew or seek applicants to assume a charter on grounds set out 

in the North Carolina General Statutes at G.S. 115C-218.95 with all net assets purchased with public 

funds reverting to a local education agency (G.S. 115C-218.100), the charter schools in North 

Carolina follow the governmental reporting model as used by local education agencies.  The following 

is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 
 

A. Reporting Entity 
 
The Exploris School is a North Carolina non-profit corporation incorporated in 1996. Pursuant 
to the provisions of the Charter School Act of 1996 as amended (the “Act”), The Exploris 
School has been approved to operate The Exploris School, a public school serving 
approximately 420 students. The School operates under an approved charter received from 
the SBE and applied for under the provisions of G.S. 115C-218.1. G.S. 115C-218.6(b)(1) 
states that a charter school shall be subject to the audit requirements adopted by the SBE, 
which includes the audit requirements established by G.S. 115C-447 of the School Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act (“SBFCA”), and requires the financial statements to be prepared in 
accordance with GAAP. The current charter is effective until June 30, 2027, and may be 
renewed for subsequent periods of ten (10) years unless one of the conditions in G.S. 115C-
218.6(b) applies in which case the SBE may renew the charter for a shorter period or not 
renew the charter.  
 
Blended Component Unit: Although legally separate, Exploris School Foundation (the 
“Foundation”) is reported as if it were part of the School. The Foundation was organized for 
the sole purpose of supporting the School and provides services to entirely benefit the 
School. The Foundation is reported as part of the general fund of the School. The blended 
presentation method presents component units as a department or unit of the School, and 
offers no separate presentation. 
 

B. Basis of Presentation 

 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management 
Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments (“GASB 34”), the School is a 
special-purpose government that is engaged in governmental activities and is not a 
component unit of another government. Therefore, the financial statements are prepared in 
the same manner as general purpose governments.  
 
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
display information about the School. These statements include the financial activities of the 
overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal 
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type 
activities of the School. Governmental activities generally are financed through 
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities 
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the different business-type activities of the School and for each function of the 
School’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated 
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. 
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients 
of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the 
School’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary 
– are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and 
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. 

 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating 
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from non-exchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. 
 
The School reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School.  The General 

Fund accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for 

in another fund. 

 

State Public School Fund. The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the 

Department of Public Instruction for specific operating needs of the School and is reported as 

a special revenue fund. 

 
The School reports the following non-major governmental fund: 

 

Federal Grants Fund. The Federal Grants Fund is used to account for Federal monies that 

are payed through the State Department of Public Instruction to the School. 

 

  The School reports the following major enterprise fund: 

 

After School Care.  The After School Care Fund is used to account for activity of the after 

school care at the School. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash 
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the School gives (or receives) value 
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and donations. 
Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The School 
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are 
collected within sixty days after year-end. These could include federal, State, and county 
grants, and some charges for services.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and 
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources. 

 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the School funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses 
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the 
program. It is the School’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs, and then general revenues.  
 

D. Budgetary Data 
 

Annual budgets are adopted for all funds, on a school-wide basis.  All budgets are prepared 

using the modified accrual basis of accounting.   

 

The governing board has voluntarily established the policy, as a sound business practice, 

that expenditures may not exceed appropriations, for all the School’s funds, based on the 

adopted budget and subsequent amendments.  During the year, several amendments to the 

original budget were necessary, the effects of which were not material.   The budget 

presented in these financial statements represents the budget of the School at June 30, 

2018.  All appropriations lapse at year end. 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 
 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the School are made in a local bank, whose accounts are FDIC 

insured.  Also, the School may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and 

SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.   
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 
 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The School pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and 

investment and to maximize investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments 

held with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash and cash 

equivalents. 

 

3. Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 

and are recorded as prepaid items.   

 

4. Accounts Receivable and Pledges Receivable. 

Accounts receivable and due from other governments consist of amounts owed to 

the School from students and local school boards.  Pledges receivable consist of 

amounts pledged to the School by donors.  Pledges receivable expected to be 

collected within one year are recorded at net realizable value.  Pledges receivable 

that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at fair value, which is 

measured as the present value of their future cash flows.  The discounts on those 

amounts are computed using risk-adjusted interest rates applicable to years in which 

the promises are received.  The School has reviewed the receivable balances and 

determined the amounts to be fully collectible.   

 

5. Allowance for Doubtful Pledges 

An allowance for doubtful pledges is provided for the estimated losses which may be 

incurred due to uncollectible pledges receivable.  The estimated losses are based 

upon a review of the current status of the existing receivables.  The allowance 

recorded as of June 30, 2018 totaled $25,000. 

 
6.  Capital Assets 

The School’s donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Donated capital assets received 
after June 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value.  All other capital assets are 
recorded at original cost.  The total of these estimates is not considered large 
enough that any errors would be material when capital assets are considered as a 
whole. 

 
It is the policy of the School to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $2,500 
with an estimated useful life of two or more years.  In addition, other items which are 
purchased and used in large quantities such as student desks and office furniture are 
capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful 
lives of the related capital assets. All depreciable assets are depreciated using the 
straight-line method of depreciation.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs 
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
6.  Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capital assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

 Years 

Leasehold Improvements  5 - 20 

Furniture 5 - 7 

Electronic Equipment 3 - 5 

 
7. Investment in Joint Venture 

The School’s investment in joint venture represented its equity interest in the joint 
venture. The School did not control the major operating and financial policies of the 
joint venture. The School held a fifteen percent membership interest in the 
investment and the membership was redeemed during the year ended June 30, 
2018. 

 
8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 

separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial 
statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
expense or expenditure until then.  The School has no items that meet this criterion.  
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 
element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  The 
School has no items that meet this criterion. 

 
9. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund-type statement of net position. 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of 
debt issued as other financing sources. 
 

10. Net Position/Fund Balances 
 

Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
classified as net investment in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted. Restricted net position represents constraints on resources that are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or imposed by law through State statute. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 

10. Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 

 

Fund Balance 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of three 

(out of five possible) classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints 

placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 
    

Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 
 

Security Deposit – portion of fund balance not available for appropriation 

because it represents the year-end balance of a security deposit on the 

school facility, which is not an expendable, available resource. 

 

Prepaid Items – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource 

because it represents the year-end balance of prepaid expense which is not 

a spendable resource. 

 

Unassigned – portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to another fund or 

restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes with the general fund. 

 

The Exploris School has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for 

programs with multiple revenue sources.  The School will use resources in the 

following hierarchy: federal funds, State funds, local non-board of education funds, 

board of education funds.  For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures 

are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in order by committed fund 

balances, assigned fund balance and lastly, unassigned fund balance.  The School 

has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the School. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B30



THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 

 25

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
11. Reconciliation Between Government-wide and Fund Statements 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between 
governmental funds' total fund balance and governmental activities' net position as 
reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  The net adjustment of 
$719,159 consists of several elements as follows: 
 

Capital assets used in governmental activities 
are not financial resources and are therefore not 
reported in the fund (total capital assets on 
government-wide statement in governmental 
activities column). $ 959,030 
 

Less accumulated depreciation  (755,314) 
 
Pledges receivable are not current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the 
funds.  515,443  
 

   Total adjustment $ 719,159 

 
F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

 

1. Funding 
The Exploris School is funded by the SBE, receiving (i) an amount equal to the 
average per pupil allocation for the average daily membership (“ADM”) from the local 
school administrative unit allotments in which the School is located (i.e. Wake County 
Board of Education) for each child attending the School except for the allocation for 
children with special needs and (ii) an additional amount for each child attending the 
School who is a child with special needs (G.S. 115C-218.105(a)). Subject to certain 
limitations, funds allocated by the SBE may be used to enter into operational and 
financing leases for real property or mobile classroom units for use as school 
facilities for charter schools and may be used for payments on loans made to charter 
schools for facilities, equipment, or operations (G.S. 115C-218.105(b)). Additionally, 
the School receives for each student an amount equal to the per pupil share of the 
local current expense fund of the local school administrative unit in which the child 
resides (G.S. 115C-218.105(c)). Amounts transferred that consist of revenue from 
supplemental taxes shall be transferred only to a charter school located in the district 
were the taxes are levied and the child resides. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018, The Exploris School received funding from the Boards of Education of Wake 
County, Johnston County, Durham County, Franklin County, and Harnett County.  
 
Furthermore, The Exploris School has received donations of cash and/or equipment 
from private organizations.  The cash is available to be used throughout the year for 
the School’s various programs and activities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses (Continued) 
 

2. Reconciliation Between Government-Wide and Fund Statements 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 

balance is followed by a reconciliation between the change in governmental funds’ 

fund balance and the change in governmental activities’ net position as reported on 

the government-wide statement of activities.  The net difference of $309,417 between 

the two amounts consists of the following elements: 

 

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund 

statements but capitalized as assets on the 

statement of activities. $ 19,305 

 

Depreciation expense that is recorded on the 

statement of activities but not in the fund 

statements.  (142,260) 

 

The loss of the investment in joint venture is not 

a current financial resource and therefore is not 

reported in the funds.  (82,981) 

 

Current year pledge receivable revenues do not 

relate to current financial resources and, 

therefore, are not reported as revenues in the 

funds.  515,353  

 

Total $ 309,417 

 

G. Use of Estimates and Assumptions 
 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements.  Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. 

 

 

 2. Detail Notes on All Funds  
 

A.  Assets 
 

1.  Deposits 

At June 30, 2018, the School had deposits with banks and savings and loans with a 

carrying amount of $1,177,090.  The bank balance with the financial institutions was 

$1,244,275, of which $994,275 was not covered by federal depository insurance.  

The School does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

A. Assets (Continued) 

 

2. Pledges Receivable 

 Pledges receivable at June 30, 2018 were as follows: 

 

 Receivable in less than one year $ 123,462 

 Receivable in more than one year  479,268 

 Less: discount to present value  (62,287) 

 Less: allowance for doubtful accounts  (25,000) 

   

 Total pledges receivable $ 515,443 

 

The discount rate used on long-term pledges receivable was 4.75% at June 30, 

2018. 

 

3. Capital Assets 

   Capital asset activity related to governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 

2018 was as follows: 

 

  Beginning        Ending 

  Balances   Increases   Decreases   Balances  

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

  Furniture $ 22,891 $ - $ - $ 22,891 

  Electronic equipment  213,541  -  -  213,541 

  Leasehold improvements  703,293  19,305  -  722,598 

   Total capital assets being  

    depreciated  939,725  19,305  -  959,030 

 Less accumulated depreciation for: 

  Furniture  21,085  417  -  21,502 

  Electronic equipment  208,819  2,597  -  211,416 

  Leasehold improvements  383,150  139,246  -  522,396 

   Total accumulated depreciation  613,054  142,260  -  755,314 

   Total capital assets being  

    depreciated, net  326,671      203,716 

Total governmental capital assets, net $ 326,671     $ 203,716 

 

 Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

 

 Instructional programs $ 141,843  

 Supporting services  417 

   

  $ 142,260 
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

A. Assets (Continued) 
 

4. Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Venture 
An operating agreement was executed in April 2016 in which the School had a fifteen 
percent membership and profit and loss allocation interest in Exploris Development 
Group, LLC (the “Venture”).  The entity was formed to hold a parcel of land that was 
purchased in April 2016, and to develop the property for a permanent downtown 
Raleigh campus for the School. The investment was recorded at an initial cost of 
$70,000 and adjusted for the School’s share of earnings, cash contributions and 
distributions. The School had an ongoing financial interest due to the School’s fifteen 
percent ownership and profit and loss earnings allocation in the entity, but this 
ownership was redeemed during the year ended June 30, 2018. The investment 
balance at June 30, 2018 totaled $0 and a loss on investment of $82,891. Financial 
information for Exploris Development Group can be obtained from their 
administrative offices in Raleigh, North Carolina. 

 

B. Liabilities 
 

1.   Pension Plan Obligations 

The School does not participate in the North Carolina Teachers’ and State 

Employees’ Retirement System.  The School has established a deferred 

compensation plan.  Under the plan, all full-time employees who meet certain 

eligibility requirements can participate.  The School matches 50% of employee 

contributions up to 4%.  The expenses of the Plan totaled $36,448, $24,955, and 

$23,858 for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively.  

 

2.   Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, 

and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 

disasters.  The School maintains general liability and errors and omissions insurance 

coverage of $1 million per occurrence with a commercial carrier. 

 

The School has obtained a major medical insurance policy for its personnel through 

a commercial insurer. Through the plan, permanent, full-time employees of the 

School are eligible to receive health care benefits.  
 

The School carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have been 

no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and claims have not 

exceeded coverage in any of the past two fiscal years. 

 

The School has elected not to carry flood insurance because the School is not in an 

area of the state that has been mapped and designated an “A” area (an area close to 

a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

 

The School carries fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $250,000 for all its 

employees.   
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2.  Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

 
B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 
 

3. Claims and Judgements 

At June 30, 2018, the School was a defendant to a lawsuit.  In the opinion of the 

School’s management and the School’s attorney, the ultimate effect of this legal 

matter will not have a material adverse effect on the School’s financial position. 

 

4. Long-Term Obligations 

 

Operating Leases   

Effective July 2009, the School entered into an operating lease for the school 

building. The lease required monthly payments of $15,592 for July and August 

2017. The lease increases annually based on either the CPI or the increase in 

per pupil allotment. Effective September 2017, the lease requires $15,842 per 

month.  The lease expires August 31, 2024.   

 

In July 2017, the School entered into a ground lease agreement which matures 

in August 2019 and requires monthly payments of $5,000 until September 2018 

and which time monthly payments will be $5,150. The School also has a modular 

lease agreement which matures in December 2018 and requires monthly 

payments of $7,524. Additionally, the School leased various equipment under 

lease agreements that expired during the current fiscal year. Monthly payments 

ranged from $320 to $620. 

 

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2018 under noncancelable lease 

agreements totaled $346,412.  

   

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments as of June 30: 

 

Year Ending June 30, 

 2019 $ 300,677 

 2020  208,214 

 2021  201,872 

 2022  205,909 

 2023  210,028 

 2024-2025  250,050 

   

  $ 1,376,750 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B35



THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 
 

 30

2.  Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

 
B. Liabilities (Continued) 

 

4. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

 

Development Agreement 

Effective December 2017, the School entered into an operating lease agreement 

to lease a school building currently in construction.  The lease payments are to 

commence the later of August 31, 2019, or the first full day of school after the 

earliest summer, fall, winter or spring break following the date a tenant certificate 

of occupancy is issued.  This date is expected to be January 2021 and require 

monthly payments of $76,367 the first year and $94,083 thereafter for thirty years 

after the date of commencement.  The annual rent will be adjusted at the 

commencement of the third year of the term and each year thereafter, by the 

same percentage as the North Carolina state allotment for Average Daily 

Membership (“ADM”).  As part of the lease agreement, the landlord shall bear all 

costs of tenant improvements up to but not to exceed $30 per square foot.  The 

School will bear all improvement costs in excess of such allowance and will be 

paid via a promissory note with the Landlord in an amount up to $2,500,000.     

 

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under this 

lease as of June 30: 

 

Year Ending June 30, 

 2019 $ - 

 2020  -        

 2021      458,200 

 2022     1,022,700 

 2023     1,129,000 

 2024-2050   31,047,500 

   

  $ 33,657,400 

 

The School also entered into a donation agreement with the developer whereas 

the developer will make a donation to the School for the exclusive restricted 

purpose of paying for the interior space upfits of the building.  The developer will 

match funds raised by the School for upfit through July 1, 2019 on a dollar-for-

dollar basis, up to the amount of $1,000,000. A receivable of $479,268 was 

recorded as of June 30, 2018 for the current year match owed from the 

developer and is included in pledges receivable.   
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2.  Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

C. Fund Balance 
  

The Exploris School has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with 
multiple revenue sources.  The School will use resources in the following hierarchy: federal 
funds, State funds, local non-board of education funds, The Exploris School funds.  For 
purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund 
balance first, followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly 
unassigned fund balance.  The School has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in 
the best interest of the School. 

 
The following schedule provides information on the portion of general fund balance that is 
available for appropriation: 
 

  Total fund balance $ 1,013,364
 Less: 

  Prepaid Items  (32,644) 
  Security Deposit  (15,658) 
   

 Remaining fund balance $  965,062 

        

 

3. Related Party Transactions 

 

Two employees of the School served as members of the governing board of The Exploris School.  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, these employees were paid salaries of $100,000 and 

$62,304 from the State Public School Fund. 

 

 

4. Claims and Judgments 

 

At June 30, 2018, the School was a defendant to a lawsuit.  In the opinion of the School’s 

management and the School’s attorney, the ultimate effect of this legal matter will not have a material 

adverse effect on the School’s financial position.  

 

 

5.        Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies 

 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The School has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these 

grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures 

under the grant agreements.  Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor 

agencies.  Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.  No provision has been 

made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies.  
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6. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events 
 
Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements in 
determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that affect the financial 
statements.  Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 14, 2018, which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued.  

B38



Statement 1THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

All Governmental Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)

Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:

State of North Carolina 2,362,079$     2,369,391$     7,312$            

Board(s) of Education:

Wake County 935,000          1,011,237       76,237            

Johnston County 27,229            24,975            (2,254)            

Durham County 12,353            10,122            (2,231)            

Franklin County -                      1,745              1,745              

Harnett County 3,000              340                 (2,660)            

U.S. Government 72,543            63,068            (9,475)            

Contributions and donations -                      202,198          202,198          

Grants 30,000            15,000            (15,000)          

Field Trips 1,585              108,164          106,579          

Other 6,000              9,927              3,927              

Total 3,449,789       3,816,167       366,378          

Expenditures:

Current:

Instructional services:

Regular programs -                      2,067,485       -                     

Special programs -                      310,710          -                     

Alternative programs -                      83,960            -                     

School leadership programs -                      433,303          -                     

Co-Curricular programs -                      2,269              -                     

School based support programs -                      98,848            -                     

Total instructional programs 2,971,342       2,996,575       (25,233)          

Support services:

Curriculum Support -                      25,817            -                     

Technology -                      65,340            -                     

Operational support -                      64,590            -                     

Finance and human resources -                      84,211            -                     

Policy, leadership and public relations -                      394,497          -                     

Total support services 532,462          634,455          (101,993)        

Total expenditures 3,503,804       3,631,030       (127,226)        

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018
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Statement 1

Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance

Capital outlay -$                19,305$          (19,305)$        

Other financing sources (uses):

Fund balance appropriated 54,015            -                      (54,015)          

Total other financing sources and (uses) 54,015            -                      (54,015)          

Excess of revenue over 

    expenditures -$                   165,832$       165,832$       

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

(Continued)

2018
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All Governmental Fund Types
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Statement 2 THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

Proprietary Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018

Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)

 Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:

Child care fees 76,705$            90,358$            13,653$            

Total revenues 76,705              90,358              13,653              

Expenditures:

Salaries and benefits 16,468              20,512              (4,044)               

Total expenditures 16,468              20,512              (4,044)               

Revenues over expenditures 60,237              69,846              9,609                

Other financing sources (uses):

Fund balance appropriated (60,237)             -                        60,237              

Total other financing sources (uses) (60,237)             -                        60,237              

Revenues and other sources

  over expenditures -$                     69,846             69,846$           

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 

(modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:

Change in net assets 69,846$            
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
  

To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School  
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
The Exploris School as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise The Exploris School’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated November 14, 2018.  
 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The Exploris School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris School’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris School’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Exploris School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 

Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 14, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
  
We have audited The Exploris School’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements  described 
in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the Local Government 
Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of The Exploris School’s major State 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Exploris School’s major State programs are identified in 
the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
  

Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its State programs.  
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of The Exploris School’s major State 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States;  and the applicable sections of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those 
standards, Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The Exploris School’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of The Exploris School’s compliance.  
 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
In our opinion, The Exploris School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major State 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

B44



 
 

39 
 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
 
Management of The Exploris School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered The Exploris School’s internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major State program 
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major State program and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris School’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
State program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a State program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a State program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 

November 14, 2018 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 

 

Financial Statements 

 

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance 

with GAAP: Unmodified 

 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 

 Material weakness identified?   Yes  X No 

 

 Significant deficiencies?   Yes  X None Reported 

 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   Yes  X No 

 

 

State Awards 

 

Internal control over major State programs: 

 

 Material weakness identified?   Yes  X No 

 

 Significant deficiency identified that is not considered 

to be a material weakness?   Yes  X None Reported 

 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified 

 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 

reported in accordance with the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act?   Yes  X No 

 

Identification of major State programs: 

 

 Program Name 

 State Public School Fund 

 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

 

No Findings 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 
 

 

SECTION III – STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

None. 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

 

 

Finding 2017-1 
 
Eligibility 
 
Status:  The School implemented policies and monitored policies to ensure that all exceptional children 

have a DEC 6 or DEC 7 form kept on file. 
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State/

Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's Expendi-

Grantor/Program Title Number Number tures

Federal Grants:

Cash Assistance:

U.S. Department of Education

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

Improving America School Act of 1994 (IASA)

IDEA VI Cluster

   IDEA VI-B 84.027 PRC 060 $ 63,068

Total U.S. Department of Education 63,068         

Total Federal Assistance 63,068         

State Grants:

Cash Assistance:

N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

State Public School Fund - Charter Schools xxxx PRC 036 2,338,233

Summer Reading xxxx PRC 016 20,447

State Bonus xxxx PRC 048 10,711

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction 2,369,391    

Total State Assistance 2,369,391    

Total Federal and State Assistance $      2,432,459 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State

grant activity of the School and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in

this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this

schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain

types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited. The Exploris School has elected not to use the 10-

percent deminimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

43

B49



Caroline P. Abbott
Jeffrey A. Brovet
Thomas R. Crawford
Kristen T. Hoyle
David A. Johnson

Chris P. Judy
Geri H. Lail

James K. Tiller
David W. Tucker

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 23, 2017 
 
To the Board of Directors  
The Exploris School 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School (the “School”) for the year ended June 
30, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under 
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as 
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated March 30, 2017. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 
following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by The Exploris School are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The 
application of existing policies was not changed during 2017. We noted no transactions entered into by The 
Exploris School during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant 
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the School’s financial statements were:  
 

Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives is based on the estimated useful lives of the 
capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable 
lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Management’s estimate of the carrying value of the School’s investment in the unconsolidated 
joint venture is based upon certain estimates used to prepare the financial statements of the joint 
venture. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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October 23, 2017 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The 
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has 
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements 
taken as a whole.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected 
by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements 
taken as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management  
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations  
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 23, 2017. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to The Exploris School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us 
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues  
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as The Exploris School’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 
 
Review of Bank Reconciliations 
 
We noted that the bank accounts are formally reconciled monthly to transactions recorded in the accounting 
system. However, we noted that this reconciliation has no indication of review or approval by another member of 
management.  We recommend that another member of management initial and date the reconciliation at the time 
of review.  This will ensure that there is adequate support for segregation of duties. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  
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October 23, 2017 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
We were engaged to report on the budgetary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing 
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves.  
 
Restriction on Use 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of The 
Exploris School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
Thomas Judy & Tucker, P.A. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School, North 
Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise The Exploris School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.   
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School, North Carolina as of June 30, 
2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   
 
Supplementary and Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise The Exploris School, North Carolina’s basic financial statements. The budgetary schedules as 
well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.    
 
The budgetary schedules, as well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the budgetary schedules, and the 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23, 
2017 on our consideration of The Exploris School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The Exploris School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 23, 2017
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
The Exploris School 

June 30, 2017 
 

 
 
As management of The Exploris School, we offer readers of The Exploris School’s audited 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of The Exploris 
School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  We encourage readers to read the information 
presented herein in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the School’s 
financial statements, which follow this narrative.  
 
Financial Highlights 
 

● The assets of The Exploris School exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $1,467,509 (net position). 

● The School’s total net assets increased by $243,449. 
● As of the close of the current fiscal year, The Exploris School’s governmental funds 

reported combined ending fund balances of $847,532. 
● Enrollment has grown at the School.  In 2013-2014 the State funded Average Daily 

Membership (ADM) was 207. In 2014-2015 it was 412, in 2015-2016, it grew to 421 and 
in 2016-2017 it was 419. 

● The Exploris School’s total debt, which includes a note payable, decreased by $157,427 
during the current fiscal year.   

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to The Exploris School’s 
basic financial statements.  The School’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two distinct financial 
perspectives of the School through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of The Exploris 
School. 
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Figure 1 
 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 
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Basic Financial Statements 
 
The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-
wide Financial Statements.  They provide both short and long-term information about the 
School’s financial standing. 
 
The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements.  These statements 
focus on the activities of the individual segments of the School’s government and are more 
detailed than the government-wide financial statements. There are two parts to the Fund 
Financial Statements:  1) the governmental funds statements; and 2) the proprietary fund 
statements. 
 
Immediately following the fund financial statements are the Notes to the Financial Statements 
(i.e. “Notes”).  The Notes offer a detailed explanation of the data contained in those statements.  
Next, supplemental information is provided to show details about the School’s funds.  
Budgetary information for the School can also be found in this section of the statements. 
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Government-wide Financial Statements  
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad 
overview of the School’s finances, similar in format to the financial statements of a private-sector 
business.  The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the 
School’s financial status, as a whole. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the School’s net position and how they have 
changed.  Net position equals the difference between the School’s total assets and total liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the School’s 
financial condition. 
 
The government-wide statements are divided into two categories:  1) governmental activities; and 
2) business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the School’s basic 
functions such as instructional services and business services. These functions are funded 
almost entirely through state, county, and federal educational funds. The business-type activities 
are those services that the School charges its students and other customers. These include the 
School Food Service program carried out by The Exploris School. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are enumerated in Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the School’s most significant 
activities.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Exploris School, like all other 
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance 
(or non-compliance) with finance-related statutory requirements, such as the North Carolina 
General Statutes or the School’s budget ordinance, where and when applicable.  All of the funds 
of The Exploris School can be divided into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Most of the School’s basic 
services are accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and out, and monies remaining at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next fiscal year.  Governmental funds are reported using the modified accrual 
accounting method, which provides a short-term spending focus.  The governmental fund 
financial statements assist the reader in determining whether there has been an increase or a 
decrease in the financial resources available to finance the School’s programs.  The relationship 
between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is an integral part of the 
fund financial statements. 
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Although not compelled or required to do so by federal, state, or local law, The Exploris School 
has elected to adopt an annual budget.  Since the budget is not required by law, the budgetary 
comparison statements are not included in the basic financial statements, but are part of the 
supplemental statements and schedules following the notes.  The budget incorporates input from 
the faculty, management, and the Board of Directors of the School and specifies which activities 
will be pursued and which services the School will provide during the year.  It also authorizes the 
School to obtain funds from identified sources to finance current period activities.  The budgetary 
statement demonstrates how well the School has complied with the budget ordinance and 
whether or not the School has succeeded in providing the services as originally planned. 
 
Proprietary Funds – The Exploris School has two proprietary funds, which are enterprise funds.  
Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements.  The Exploris School uses enterprise funds to account 
for its After School Care functions.  
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information essential to 
facilitating a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.  The notes to the financial statements begin on page 19 of this report. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a school’s financial 
condition.  The assets of The Exploris School exceeded liabilities by $1,467,509 as of June 30, 
2017.  As of June 30, 2016, the net position of The Exploris School stood at $1,224,060.  The 
School’s net position increased by $243,449 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, compared 
to an increase of $394,469 in 2016. The amount of $326,671 reflects the School’s investment in 
capital assets (e.g. leasehold improvements, furniture, and electronic equipment), less any 
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.  The Exploris School uses 
these capital assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are not 
available for future spending.  Although The Exploris School’s investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be 
provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  
An additional portion of The Exploris School’s net assets represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of $1,140,838 is 
unrestricted.  In 2016, the net investment in capital assets was $313,758, with unrestricted net 
position standing at $910,302.   
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Figure 2 
The Exploris School’s Net Position 

 
 

 
 
Several aspects of the School’s financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net assets: 

 
 

● The School adopted an annual budget.  The School’s performance was measured using 
this budget on a monthly basis, allowing changes to be made in spending as needed to 
remain within the confines of the budget. 

 
● The School applied for and was awarded federal grants to assist with meeting the 

educational needs of the student population. 
 

 
 
 
 

  Governmental Activities   Business-Type 
Activities  

Total 

 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

   
Current and other 
assets $     945,364 $    778,588 $  210,325 $  146,610 $  1,155,689 $ 925,198
Capital assets, net 
of depreciation 326,671 471,185 - - 326,671 471,185

 
Total assets 1,272,035 1,249,773 210,325 146,610 1,482,360 1,396,383

   
 
Other liabilities - 1,576 - - - 1,576
Long-term liabilities 
outstanding - 157,427 - - - 157,427

 
Total liabilities - 159,003 - - - 159,003

   
Deferred 

inflows of resources 14,851 13,320 - - 14,851 13,320
   

Net position:   
Net investment in 

capital assets 326,671 313,758 - - 326,671 313,758
Unrestricted 930,513 763,692 210,325 146,610 1,140,838 910,302

 
Total net 
position $    1,257,184 $   1,077,450 $  210,325 $  146,610 $   1,467,509 $1,224,060
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Figure 3 
The Exploris School’s Changes in Net Position 

 
  Governmental Activities    Business-Type Activities   Total 

 2017  2016  2017  2016  2017  2016 

            

Charges for services $                -   $             -  $   81,080  $  71,471  $     81,080   $     71,471 

Operating grants and 
contributions 

72,634 
 

80,737 
 

- 
   

- 
 

72,634  
 

80,737 

County, State, and 
federal Funds 

3,346,083 
 

3,240,502 
 

- 
 

- 
 

3,346,083  
 

3,240,502 

Donations and other 
revenues 

319,554 
 

329,149 
 

- 
   

- 
 

319,554  
 

329,149 

Total revenues  3,738,271  3,650,388    81,080    71,471  3,819,351  3,721,859 

            
Instructional 
programs 

3,066,506 
 

2,713,254 
 

- 
   

- 
 

3,066,506  
 

2,713,254 

Support services 487,365 
 

562,949 
 

- 
   

- 
 

487,365  
 

562,949 

Child care - 
   

- 
 

17,365 
 

39,628 
 

17,365  
 

39,628 

Interest on long-term 
debt 

4,666 
 

11,559 
 

- 
   

- 
 

4,666  
 

11,559 

Total expenses 3,558,537  3,287,762  17,365  39,628  3,575,902  3,327,390 

            
Increase (decrease) in 
net assets 

179,734 
 

362,626 
 

63,715 
 

31,843 
 

243,449 
 

394,469 

             

Net assets, July 1 1,077,450  714,824  146,610  114,767  1,224,060  829,591 

Net assets, June 30  $   1,257,184   $1,077,450  $  210,325  $ 146,610  $1,467,509   $ 1,224,060 

 
 
 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities increased the School’s net position by 
$179,734.   
 
Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased The Exploris School’s net position 
by $63,715.   
 
By adopting a budget for the enterprise funds that comprise the business-type activities, the 
Board is able to monitor the School’s revenues and expenditures and adjust their estimates as 
needed during the year.   
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Financial Analysis of the School’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, The Exploris School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of The Exploris School’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable financial resources.  Such 
information is useful in assessing The Exploris School’s financing requirements.  Specifically, 
unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of The Exploris School.  At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $522,918, while total fund balance 
reached $847,532.  $301,706 was designated by the board of directors as of June 30, 2017 and 
is reported as assigned fund balance within the general fund. 
 
Proprietary Funds.  The School’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail.  Unrestricted net position of the After 
School Care Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $210,325.   
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The Exploris School’s investment in capital assets for it’s governmental activities 
as of June 30, 2017, totals $326,671 (net of accumulated depreciation).  Capital assets include 
furniture, electronic equipment, and leasehold improvements. 
 
 

Figure 4 
The Exploris School’s Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 
   Governmental Activities  

  2017  2016 

     

Construction In Progress  $                  - $      6,800  

Furniture  1,806 2,433 

Electronic equipment  4,722 9,363 

Leasehold improvements  320,143 452,589 

    

 Total   $  326,671 $ 471,185  

  
 
Additional information about the School’s capital assets can be found in Note 2.A.2.of the Basic 
Financial Statements. 
 
Long-term Debt.  The Exploris School’s total debt decreased by $157,427 during the year. As of 
June 30, 2017, The Exploris School did not have any outstanding debt.   
 
 

B64



Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
The Exploris School 
June 30, 2017 
 

10 
 

 
 
Economic Factors 
 
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the School: 
 

● The LEA in which the school resides has experienced tremendous growth, which should 
provide a steady stream of students into the School’s limited available space. 

 
● The State of North Carolina per pupil funding for the 2016-2017 school year, increased 

by $83.09 which equated to a 1.73% increase from the prior year.  
 

● The downtown area of Raleigh continues to be revitalized bringing many new families 
into the new homes and apartments that surround the School which will continue to 
provide a steady stream of new students that can potentially enroll at Exploris. 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the School’s finances for those with an interest 
in this area.  Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to the Board Chair, The Exploris School, 401 
Hillsborough Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27603, telephone (919) 715-3690. 
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Exhibit 1

 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 837,046$             210,325$           1,047,371$          
Receivables 2,429                   -                         2,429                   
Security deposit 15,658                 -                         15,658                 
Prepaid items 7,250 -                         7,250                   
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture 82,981                 -                         82,981                 
Capital assets (Note 1):

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 326,671               -                         326,671               

Total assets 1,272,035            210,325             1,482,360            

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 14,851                 -                         14,851                 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 326,671               -                         326,671               
Unrestricted 930,513               210,325             1,140,838            

Total net position 1,257,184$         210,325$          1,467,509$         

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
11
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Exhibit 2

Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for 

Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities
Business-type 

Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

Instructional services 3,066,506$      -$                     72,634$           (2,993,872)$     -$                     (2,993,872)$     
System-wide support services 487,365           -                       -                       (487,365)          -                       (487,365)          
Interest on long-term debt 4,666 -                       -                       (4,666)              -                       (4,666)              

Total governmental activities 3,558,537        -                       72,634             (3,485,903)       -                       (3,485,903)       

Business-type activities:
Child care 17,365 81,080 -                       -                       63,715             63,715             

Total business-type activities 17,365             81,080             -                       -                       63,715             63,715             

Total primary government 3,575,902$     81,080$          72,634$          (3,485,903)     63,715           (3,422,188)     

General revenues:
Unrestricted county appropriations 1,007,410        -                       1,007,410        
Unrestricted State appropriations 2,338,673        -                       2,338,673        
Contributions and donations 103,401           -                       103,401           
Grants 53,469 -                       53,469             
Field Trips 104,790 -                       104,790           
Miscellaneous, unrestricted 44,913             -                       44,913             
Earnings in unconsolidated joint venture 12,981 -                       12,981             

Total general revenues and transfers 3,665,637        -                       3,665,637        

Change in net position 179,734           63,715             243,449           

Net position-beginning 1,077,450        146,610           1,224,060        

Net position-ending 1,257,184$     210,325$        1,467,509$     

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Primary Government
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
12
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Exhibit 3

Non-major 
Fund

General
State Public 

School
Federal Grants 

Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 837,046$       -$                   -$                   837,046$        
Receivables 2,429             -                     -                     2,429              
Security deposit 15,658           -                     -                     15,658            
Prepaid items 7,250 -                     -                     7,250              

Total assets 862,383$      -$                  -$                   862,383$       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 14,851$         -$                   -$                   14,851$          

Fund balances:
    Assigned 301,706         -                     -                     301,706          
    Nonspendable:
       Security deposit 15,658           -                     -                     15,658            
       Prepaid items 7,250             -                     -                     7,250              
    Unassigned 522,918         -                     -                     522,918          

Total fund balances 847,532         -                     -                     847,532          

862,383$      -$                  -$                   

326,671          

82,981            

Net position of governmental activities 1,257,184$    

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources, and fund balances

Major Funds

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different 
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 
not financial resources and therefore are not 
reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for 
current period expenditures and therefore, are not 
reported in the funds.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4

 
Non-major 

Fund

General
State Public 

School
Federal 

Grants Fund

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
REVENUES
State of North Carolina -$                  2,338,673$   -$                  2,338,673$     
Boards of Education 1,007,410      -                    -                    1,007,410       
U.S. Government -                    -                    72,634          72,634            
Contributions and donations 103,401         -                    -                    103,401          
Grants 53,469 -                    -                    53,469            
Field Trips 104,790         -                    -                    104,790          
Other 44,913           -                    -                    44,913            

Total revenues 1,313,983      2,338,673     72,634          3,725,290       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instructional services 511,698         2,338,289     72,634          2,922,621       
Support services 486,352         384               -                    486,736          

Debt service:
Principal 157,427 -                    -                    157,427          
Interest and other charges 4,666 -                    -                    4,666              

Total expenditures 1,160,143      2,338,673     72,634          3,571,450       
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 153,840         -                    -                    153,840          

Net change in fund balance 153,840         -                    -                    153,840          

Fund balances-beginning 693,692         -                    -                    693,692          

Fund balances-ending 847,532$      -$                 -$                  847,532$       

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Major Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
14
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Exhibit 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 153,840$       

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

(144,514)       

The earnings in unconsolidated joint venture is not a current financial resource
and therefore is not reported in the funds. 12,981           

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

157,427         

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 179,734$      

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Reconciliation of the Statement of

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 6

Enterprise Fund
Major Fund

After
School Care

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 210,325$         

Total assets 210,325$        

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 210,325$         

         Total net position 210,325$        

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit  7

Enterprise Fund
Major Fund

After
School Care

OPERATING REVENUES
Child care fees 81,080$                  

Total operating revenues 81,080                    

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 17,365

  Total operating expenses 17,365                    

Operating income 63,715                    

Total net position - beginning 146,610                  

Total net position - ending 210,325$               

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 8

Enterprise Fund
Major Fund

After
School Care

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers 81,080$           
Cash paid to employees for services (17,365)            

Net cash provided by operating activities 63,715             

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 63,715            

Balance-beginning of the year 146,610           

Balance-end of the year 210,325$        

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income 63,715$           

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable -                       
Increase in accounts payable -                       

Net cash provided by operating activities 63,715$          

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 The accounting policies of The Exploris School, North Carolina (School) conform to generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments.  Charter schools are 
established by non-profit entities.  Because of the authority of the State Board of Education (SBE) to 
unilaterally abolish a school with all the assets reverting to a local education agency, the charter 
schools in North Carolina follow the governmental reporting model, as used by local education 
agencies.  The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

 
A. Reporting Entity 

 
The Exploris School, North Carolina is a public school operated by a non-profit corporation, 
serving approximately 419 students.  The School operates under an approved charter 
received from the SBE, and applied for under the provisions of General Statute (G.S.) 115C-
238.29B.  G.S. 115C-238.29F(f)(1) states that a charter school shall be subject to the audit 
requirements adopted by the SBE, which includes the audit requirements established by G.S. 
115C-447 of the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act (SBFCA).  G.S. 115C-447 also 
requires financial statements to be prepared in accordance with GAAP.   

 
B. Basis of Presentation 

 
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
display information about the School. These statements include the financial activities of the 
overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal 
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type 
activities of the School. Governmental activities generally are financed through 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities 
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the different business-type activities of the School and for each function of the 
School’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated 
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. 
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients 
of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the 
School’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary 
– are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and 
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. 

 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating 
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions 
or ancillary activities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

 
The School reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School.  The General 
Fund accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for 
in another fund. 

 
State Public School Fund. The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the 
Department of Public Instruction for specific operating needs of the School and is reported as 
a special revenue fund. 
 

  The School reports the following major enterprise fund: 
 

After School Care.  The After School Care Fund is used to account for activity of the after 
school care at the School. 

 
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash 
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the School gives (or receives) value 
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and donations. 
Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The School 
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are 
collected within sixty days after year-end. These could include federal, State, and county 
grants, and some charges for services.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and 
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources. 

 
Under the terms of grant agreements, the School funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses 
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the 
program. It is the School’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs, and then general revenues.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

D. Budgetary Data 
 

Annual budgets are adopted for all funds, on a school-wide basis.  All budgets are prepared 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.   
 
The governing board has voluntarily established the policy, as a sound business practice, 
that expenditures may not exceed appropriations, for all the School’s funds, based on the 
adopted budget and subsequent amendments.  During the year, several amendments to the 
original budget were necessary, the effects of which were not material.   The budget 
presented in these financial statements represents the budget of the School at June 30, 
2017.  All appropriations lapse at year end. 

 
E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 
 

1. Deposits and Investments 
All deposits of the School are made in a local bank, whose accounts are FDIC 
insured.  Also, the School may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and 
SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.   
 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The School pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and 
investment and to maximize investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments 
held with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 

3. Prepaid Items 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items.   
 

4.  Capital Assets 
The School’s donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Donated capital assets received 
after June 30, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value.  All other capital assets are 
recorded at original cost.  The total of these estimates is not considered large 
enough that any errors would be material when capital assets are considered as a 
whole. 

 
It is the policy of the School to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $2,500 
with an estimated useful life of two or more years.  In addition, other items which are 
purchased and used in large quantities such as student desks and office furniture are 
capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful 
lives of the related capital assets. All depreciable assets are depreciated using the 
straight-line method of depreciation.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs 
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
4.  Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capital assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

 Years 
Leasehold Improvements  5 - 20 
Furniture 5 - 7 
Electronic Equipment 3 - 5 

 
5. Investment in Joint Venture 

The School’s investment in joint venture represents its equity interest in the joint 
venture. The School does not control the major operating and financial policies of the 
joint venture. The School holds a fifteen percent membership interest in the 
investment. 

 
6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 

separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial 
statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
expense or expenditure until then.  The School has no items that meet this criterion.  
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 
element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  The 
School has only one item that meets the criterion for this category – deferred 
revenue. 

 
7. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund-type statement of net position. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of 
debt issued as other financing sources. 
 

8. Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
classified as net investment in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or imposed by law through State statute. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
8. Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 

 
Fund Balance 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of three 
(out of five possible) classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints 
placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

 
   The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that cannot be 
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 
 

Security Deposit – portion of fund balance not available for appropriation 
because it represents the year-end balance of a security deposit on the 
school facility, which is not an expendable, available resource. 
 
Prepaid Items – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource 
because it represents the year-end balance of prepaid expense which is not 
a spendable resource. 
 

Assigned Fund Balance – portion of fund balance that the School intends to use for 
specific purposes. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to 
another fund or restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes with the 
general fund. 

 
The Exploris School has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for 
programs with multiple revenue sources.  The Finance Officer will use resources in 
the following hierarchy: federal funds, State funds, local non-board of education 
funds, board of education funds.  For purposes of fund balance classification, 
expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in order by 
committed fund balances, assigned fund balance and lastly, unassigned fund 
balance.  The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the 
best interest of the School. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
9. Reconciliation Between Government-wide and Fund Statements 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between 
governmental funds' total fund balance and governmental activities' net position as 
reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  The net adjustment of 
$409,652 consists of several elements as follows: 
 

Capital assets used in governmental activities 
that are not financial resources are therefore not 
reported in the fund (total capital assets on 
government-wide statement in governmental 
activities column). $ 939,725 
 
Less accumulated depreciation  (613,054) 
 
The School’s investment in joint venture is not 
available to pay for current period expenditures 
and therefore, is not reported in the funds.  82,981 
    
Total adjustment $ 409,652 

 
F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

 
1. Funding 

The Exploris School, North Carolina is funded by the State Board of Education, 
receiving (i) an amount equal to the average per pupil allocation for the average daily 
membership (ADM) from the local school administrative unit allotments in which the 
school is located (i.e. Wake County Board of Education) for each child attending the 
School except for the allocation for children with special needs and (ii) an additional 
amount for each child attending the School who is a child with special needs [G.S. 
115C-238.29H(a)]. Additionally, the School receives for each student who resides in 
the local administrative unit and attends the charter school, an amount equal to the 
per pupil local current expense appropriation to the respective local school 
administrative unit for the fiscal year which is transferred by the appropriate local 
school administrative unit(s). [G.S. 115C-238.29H(b)].  For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017, The Exploris School, North Carolina received funding from the 
Boards of Education of Wake County, Johnston County, Durham County, Wayne 
County, and Nash-Rocky Mount Public Schools.  
 
Furthermore, The Exploris School, North Carolina has received donations of cash 
and/or equipment from private organizations.  The cash is available to be used 
throughout the year for the School’s various programs and activities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 

F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses (Continued) 
 

2. Reconciliation Between Government-Wide and Fund Statements 
The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balance is followed by a reconciliation between the change in governmental funds’ 
fund balance and the change in governmental activities’ net position as reported on 
the government-wide statement of activities.  The net difference of $25,894 between 
the two amounts consists of the following elements: 

 
Depreciation expense that is recorded on the 
statement of activities but not in the fund 
statements. $ (144,514) 
 
The equity in earnings of the investment in joint 
venture is not a current financial resource and 
therefore is not reported in the funds.  12,981 
 
Principal payments on debt owed are recorded 
as a use of funds on the fund statements but 
again affect only the statement of net position in 
the government-wide statements.  157,427 

 
Total $ 25,894 

 
G. Use of Estimates and Assumptions 
 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements.  Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. 
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds  
 

A.  Assets 
 

1.  Deposits 
At June 30, 2017, the School had deposits with banks and savings and loans with a 
carrying amount of $1,047,371.  The bank balance with the financial institutions was 
$1,120,895, of which $870,895 was not covered by federal depository insurance.  
The School does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

 
2. Capital Assets 

   Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows: 
 
  Beginning        Ending 
  Balances   Increases   Decreases   Balances  
Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 
  Construction in progress $ 6,800 $ - $ 6,800 $ - 
Capital assets being depreciated: 
  Furniture  22,891  -  -  22,891 
  Electronic equipment  213,541  -  -  213,541 
  Leasehold improvements  696,493  6,800  -  703,293 
   Total capital assets being  
    depreciated  932,925  6,800  -  939,725 
 Less accumulated depreciation for: 
  Furniture  20,458  627  -  21,085 
  Electronic equipment  204,178  4,641  -  208,819 
  Leasehold improvements  243,904  139,246  -  383,150 
   Total accumulated depreciation  468,540  144,514  -  613,054 
   Total capital assets being  
    depreciated, net  464,385      326,671 
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 471,185     $ 326,671 
 

 Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 
 
 Instructional programs $ 143,887  
 Supporting services  627 
   
  $ 144,514 
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

A.  Assets (Continued) 
 

3. Investment in Unconsolidated Joint Venture 
An operating agreement was executed in April 2016 in which the School has a fifteen 
percent membership and profit and loss allocation interest in Exploris Development 
Group, LLC (the “Venture”).  The entity was formed to hold a parcel of land that was 
purchased in April 2016, and to develop the property for a permanent downtown 
Raleigh campus for the School. The investment was recorded at an initial cost of 
$70,000 and adjusted for the School’s share of earnings, cash contributions and 
distributions. The School’s share of earnings totaled $12,981 for the year ending 
June 30, 2017. The School has an ongoing financial interest due to the School’s 
fifteen percent ownership and profit and loss earnings allocation in the entity. The 
investment balance at June 30, 2017 totaled $82,981. Financial information for 
Exploris Development Group can be obtained from their administrative offices in 
Raleigh, North Carolina. 

 
B. Liabilities 
 

1.   Pension Plan Obligations 
The School does not participate in the North Carolina Teachers’ and State 
Employees’ Retirement System.  The School has established a deferred 
compensation plan.  Under the plan, all full-time employees who meet certain 
eligibility requirements can participate.  The School matches 50% of employee 
contributions up to 4%.  The expenses of the Plan totaled $24,955, $23,858, and 
$18,520 for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 2015, respectively.  

 
2.   Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The balance in deferred inflows of resources at year-end is composed of the 
following elements: 

   Unearned 
   Revenue  
  
 Unearned Grant Revenue $ 14,851 

 
3.   Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 
disasters.  The School maintains general liability and errors and omissions insurance 
coverage of $1 million per occurrence with a commercial carrier. 
 
The School has obtained a major medical insurance policy for its personnel through 
a commercial insurer. Through the plan, permanent, full-time employees of the 
School are eligible to receive health care benefits.  
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2.  Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

3.   Risk Management (Continued) 
 

The School carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have been 
no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past two fiscal years. 
 
The School has elected not to carry flood insurance because the School is not in an 
area of the state that has been mapped and designated an “A” area (an area close to 
a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 
 
The School carries fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $250,000 for all its 
employees.   

 
4. Long-Term Obligations 

 
a. Notes Payable 

In November 2014, the School entered into a loan with a local bank with a fixed 
interest rate of 5.28%. Payments of $9,030 including principal and interest were 
payable monthly. During 2017, the remaining unpaid balance of principal and 
interest was paid off.  The note was secured by leasehold improvements.  

 
b. Changes in General Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of changes in the School’s long-term obligations for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017: 
 

  Beginning Ending   Current 
Governmental activities:   Balance   Increases  Decreases   Balance    Portion  
 
Note payable $ 157,427 $ - $ 157,427 $ - $ - 
 

c. Operating Leases   
Effective July 2009, the School entered into an operating lease for the school 
building. The lease required monthly payments of $15,530 for July and August 
2016. The lease increases annually based on either the CPI or the increase in 
per pupil allotment. Effective September 2016, the lease requires $15,592 per 
month.  The lease expires August 31, 2024.   
 
In July 2014, the School entered into a ground lease agreement as well as a 
modular lease agreement. The ground lease expired in June 2017.  A one year 
lease was entered into in July 2017 with a new company and matures in June 
2018 which requires monthly rentals of $3,600. The modular lease agreement 
matures in December 2018 and requires monthly payments of $7,250. 
Additionally, the School leases various equipment under lease agreements 
expiring at various dates through November 2017. Monthly payments range from 
$320 to $620.  
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

4. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 
 

c. Operating Leases (Continued) 
 
Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 under noncancelable lease 
agreements totaled $345,627.  
   
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments as of June 30: 

 
Year Ending June 30, 

 2018 $ 347,035 
 2019  239,177 
 2020  197,914 
 2021  201,872 
 2022  205,909 
 2023-2025  442,167 
   
  $ 1,634,074 

 
 

C. Fund Balance 
  

The Exploris School has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with 
multiple revenue sources.  The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: 
federal funds, State funds, local non-School funds, The Exploris School funds.  For purposes 
of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, 
followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned 
fund balance.  The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the 
best interest of the School. 

 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General fund balance that is available for appropriation: 
 

  Total fund balance $ 847,532 
  Less: 
  Assigned  (301,706) 
  Prepaid Items  (7,250) 
  Security Deposit  (15,658) 
   
 Remaining fund balance $ 552,918 

        
 

3. Related Party Transactions 
 

Two employees of the School served as members of the governing board of The Exploris School.  
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, these employees were paid salaries of $96,860 and 
$62,304 from the State Public School Fund. 
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4.        Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies 
 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 
The School has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these 
grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures 
under the grant agreements.  Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor 
agencies.  Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.  No provision has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies.  

 
 
5. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events 

 
Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements in 
determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that affect the financial 
statements.  Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 23, 2017, which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued.  
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Statement 1THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
All Governmental Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Favorable
Final (Unfavorable)

Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

State of North Carolina 2,192,863$     2,338,673$     145,810$       
Board(s) of Education:

Wake County 921,365          975,800          54,435           
Johnston County 27,229            24,818            (2,411)            
Durham County 12,353            6,442              (5,911)            
Nash-Rocky Mount 1,355              -                      (1,355)            
Wayne County -                      350                 350                

U.S. Government 61,787            72,634            10,847           
Contributions and donations 100,000          103,401          3,401             
Grants 30,000            53,469            23,469           
Field Trips -                      104,790          104,790         
Other 6,000              44,913            38,913           

Total 3,352,952       3,725,290       372,338         

Expenditures:
Current:

Instructional services:
Regular programs -                      2,176,381       -                     
Special programs -                      212,974          -                     
Alternative programs -                      79,014            -                     
School leadership programs -                      374,595          -                     
Co-Curricular programs -                      5,833              -                     
School based support programs -                      73,824            -                     

Total instructional programs 2,744,957       2,922,621       (177,664)        

Support services:
Operational support -                      69,959            -                     
Finance and human resources -                      53,717            -                     
Policy, leadership and public relations -                      363,060          -                     

Total support services 645,592          486,736          158,856         

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
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Statement 1

Favorable
Final (Unfavorable)

Budget Actual Variance

Debt Service
Principal -$                    157,427$        (157,427)$      
Interest -                    4,666             (4,666)           

Total debt service -                      162,093          (162,093)        

Total expenditures 3,390,549       3,571,450       (180,901)        

Other financing sources (uses):
Fund balance appropriated 37,597            -                      (37,597)          

Total other financing sources and (uses) 37,597            -                      (37,597)          

Excess of revenue over 
    expenditures -$                   153,840$        153,840$      

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Continued)

2017
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
All Governmental Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
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Statement 2 THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
Proprietary Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

2017
Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)
 Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Child care fees 65,000$            81,080$            16,080$            

Total revenues 65,000              81,080              16,080              

Expenditures:
Salaries and benefits 16,468              17,365              (897)                 

Total expenditures 16,468              17,365              (897)                 

Revenues over expenditures 48,532              63,715              15,183              

Other financing sources (uses):
Fund balance appropriated (48,532)            -                       48,532              

Total other financing sources (uses) (48,532)            -                       48,532              

Revenues and other sources
  over expenditures -$                    63,715             63,715$           

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 
(modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:

Change in net assets 63,715$            

33
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
  

To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School  
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
The Exploris School, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise The Exploris School, North Carolina’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 23, 2017.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The Exploris School, 
North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris 
School, North Carolina’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of The Exploris School, North Carolina’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Exploris School, North Carolina’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2017-1. 
 
Response to Findings 
 
The Exploris School’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.  The School’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 23, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 
EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND THE STATE  
SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT 

 
 

To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
  
We have audited The Exploris School, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements  described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the 
Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of The Exploris 
School, North Carolina’s major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. The Exploris School, 
North Carolina’s major State programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
  
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its State programs.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of The Exploris School, North 
Carolina’s major State programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;  and the applicable sections 
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit 
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. 
Those standards, Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The Exploris School, 
North Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of The Exploris School, North 
Carolina’s compliance.  
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Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
In our opinion, The Exploris School, North Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
Other Matters 
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with applicable sections of the Uniform Guidance and as described in the Audit 
Manual for Governmental Auditors of North Carolina and which are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2017-1. Our opinion on each major State program is 
not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
The Exploris School, North Carolina’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Exploris School, North 
Carolina’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.  

 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
 
Management of The Exploris School, North Carolina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered The Exploris School, North Carolina’s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major State program and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris School, North Carolina’s 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 

October 23, 2017 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance 
with GAAP: Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 
 Material weakness identified?   Yes  X No 
 
 Significant deficiencies?   Yes  X None Reported 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   Yes  X No 
 
 
State Awards 
 
Internal control over major State programs: 
 
 Material weakness identified?   Yes  X No 
 
 Significant deficiency identified that is not considered 

to be a material weakness?   Yes  X None Reported 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with the State Single Audit 
Implementation Act?  X Yes   No 
 
Identification of major State programs: 
 
 Program Name 
 State Public School Fund 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
No Findings 
 
SECTION III – STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
N.C. Department of Public Instruction 
Program Name: State Public School Fund 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
NONCOMPLIANCE 
Eligibility 
 
Finding 2017-1 
 

Criteria:  In accordance with North Carolina G.S. 115C-12(5); G.S 115C-218.105, children with  
disabilities should have a Permission to Place form (DEC 6 [if placement is after school year 1997-
98] or DEC 7 [if placement was prior to school year 1997-98]).  

 
Condition:  Out of five student selections, one did not have a DEC 6 or DEC 7 form. 

 
Cause:  A form DEC 6 or DEC 7 was not completed and maintained by the School 
 
Effect:  There is a possibility that the student was incorrectly placed based on disability.  

 
Questioned Costs:  None. 
 
Recommendation:  Procedures should be maintained to ensure that all exceptional children have a 
DEC 6 or DEC 7 form kept on file.  

 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:  The School agrees with this finding 
and will implement policies and procedures to ensure that this problem does not recur.  
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

 
SECTION III – STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
Finding: 2017-1 

 
Name of Contact Person: Ellie Schollmeyer, Principal 
 
Corrective Action: The School will obtain the required DEC 6 or DEC 7 forms for all 

exceptional students.  
 
Proposed Completion Date: December 31, 2017 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 
 
 
No prior year audit findings. 
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State/
Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's Expendi-
Grantor/Program Title Number Number tures

Federal Grants:
Cash Assistance:
U.S. Department of Education
Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

Improving America School Act of 1994 (IASA)
IDEA VI Cluster
   IDEA VI-B 84.027 PRC 060 $ 71,728
   IDEA VI-B Targeted Assistance 84.027A PRC 118 906

Total U.S. Department of Education 72,634         

Total Federal Assistance 72,634         

State Grants:
Cash Assistance:
N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

State Public School Fund - Charter Schools xxxx PRC 036 2,327,171
Summer Reading xxxx PRC 016 11,502

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction 2,338,673    

Total State Assistance 2,338,673    

Total Federal and State Assistance $     2,411,307 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State
grant activity of The Exploris School and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited. The Exploris School has elected not to use the 10-
percent deminimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Geri H. Lail

November 22, 2016 

To the Board of Directors  
The Exploris School 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally 
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain 
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our 
letter to you dated March 4, 2016. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by The Exploris School are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  During the 
year ended June 30, 2016, The Exploris School adopted GASB Statement No. 72-Fair Value Measurement and 
Application, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The adoption of this 
pronouncement did not materially affect The Exploris School.  The application of existing policies was not 
changed during 2016. We noted no transactions entered into by The Exploris School during the year for which 
there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The 
most sensitive estimates affecting the School’s financial statements were:  

Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives is based on the estimated useful lives of the 
capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable 
lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management’s estimate of the fair value of the School’s investment in joint venture. We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciable lives in determining that it is 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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November 22, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The 
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has 
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements 
taken as a whole.

 
 In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected 

by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements 
taken as a whole.  

Disagreements with Management  

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 22, 2016. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to The Exploris School’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may 
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us 
to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations 
with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as The Exploris School’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition 
to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is required 
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of 
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  

We were engaged to report on the budgetary schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing 
the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is 
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves.  
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Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of The 
Exploris School and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
 
Thomas Judy & Tucker, P.A. 
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11/29/2016

11:14 AM

Client: 59120 - The Exploris School
Engagement: AUD - 6/30/2016
Period Ending: 6/30/2016
Workpaper: A05.03b - Passed Journal Entries Report

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Passed Journal Entries JE #  18 H01

2.1615.000.TJT Investment in Exploris Development Group 10,888.00
1.6940.036.311.000.000.00 Contracted General Administrat 10,888.00

Total 10,888.00 10,888.00

To record the difference between capital contribution per the Operating Agreement for Exploris Development Group 

and what was reported in the general ledger

1 of 1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School 
Raleigh, North Carolina 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School, North 
Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise The Exploris School’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.   
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.   
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of The Exploris School, North Carolina as of June 30, 
2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   
 
Supplementary and Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise The Exploris School, North Carolina’s basic financial statements. The budgetary schedules as 
well as the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards required by Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.    
 
The budgetary schedules, as well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the budgetary schedules, and the 
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 22, 
2016 on our consideration of The Exploris School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters.  The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The Exploris School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 22, 2016
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
The Exploris School 

June 30, 2016 
 

 
 
As management of The Exploris School, we offer readers of The Exploris School’s audited 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of The Exploris 
School for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.  We encourage readers to read the information 
presented herein in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the School’s 
financial statements, which follow this narrative.  
 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets of The Exploris School exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of the fiscal year by $1,224,060 (net position). 

 The School’s total net assets increased by $394,469. 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, The Exploris School’s governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $693,692. 

 Enrollment has grown at the School.  In 2013-2014 the State funded Average Daily 
Membership (ADM) was 207. In 2014-2015 it was 412, and in 2015-2016, it grew to 421. 

 The Exploris School’s total debt, which includes a note payable and compensated 
absences, decreased by $127,380 during the current fiscal year.   

 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to The Exploris School’s 
basic financial statements.  The School’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two distinct financial 
perspectives of the School through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial 
statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of The Exploris 
School. 
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Figure 1 
 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 
 
 
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             
 

 
 
 
 

Summary      Detail 
 

 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
The first two statements (Exhibits 1 and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-
wide Financial Statements.  They provide both short and long-term information about the 
School’s financial standing. 
 
The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements.  These statements 
focus on the activities of the individual segments of the School’s government and are more 
detailed than the government-wide financial statements. There are two parts to the Fund 
Financial Statements:  1) the governmental funds statements; and 2) the proprietary fund 
statements. 
 
Immediately following the fund financial statements are the Notes to the Financial Statements 
(i.e. “Notes”).  The Notes offer a detailed explanation of the data contained in those statements.  
Next, supplemental information is provided to show details about the School’s funds.  
Budgetary information for the School can also be found in this section of the statements. 

Management’s 

Discussion and 

Analysis 

Basic  

Financial 

Statements 

Government-wide 

Financial  

Statements 

Fund  

Financial  

Statements 

Notes to the  

Financial 

Statements 
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Government-wide Financial Statements  
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad 
overview of the School’s finances, similar in format to the financial statements of a private-sector 
business.  The government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the 
School’s financial status, as a whole. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the School’s net position and how they have 
changed.  Net position equals the difference between the School’s total assets and total liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the School’s 
financial condition. 
 
The government-wide statements are divided into two categories:  1) governmental activities; and 
2) business-type activities.  The governmental activities include most of the School’s basic 
functions such as instructional services and business services.  These functions are funded 
almost entirely through state, county, and federal educational funds.  The business-type activities 
are those services that the School charges its students and other customers.  These include the 
School Food Service program carried out by The Exploris School. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are enumerated in Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the School’s most significant 
activities.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Exploris School, like all other 
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance 
(or non-compliance) with finance-related statutory requirements, such as the North Carolina 
General Statutes or the School’s budget ordinance, where and when applicable.  All of the funds 
of The Exploris School can be divided into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Most of the School’s basic 
services are accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily 
be converted into cash flow in and out, and monies remaining at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next fiscal year.  Governmental funds are reported using the modified accrual 
accounting method, which provides a short-term spending focus.  The governmental fund 
financial statements assist the reader in determining whether there has been an increase or a 
decrease in the financial resources available to finance the School’s programs.  The relationship 
between government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is an integral part of the 
fund financial statements. 
 
Although not compelled or required to do so by federal, state, or local law, The Exploris School 
has elected to adopt an annual budget.  Since the budget is not required by law, the budgetary 
comparison statements are not included in the basic financial statements, but are part of the 
supplemental statements and schedules following the notes.  The budget incorporates input from 
the faculty, management, and the Board of Directors of the School and specifies which activities 
will be pursued and which services the School will provide during the year.  It also authorizes the 
School to obtain funds from identified sources to finance current period activities.  The budgetary 
statement demonstrates how well the School has complied with the budget ordinance and 
whether or not the School has succeeded in providing the services as originally planned. 
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Proprietary Funds – The Exploris School has two proprietary funds, which are enterprise funds.  
Enterprise Funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements.  The Exploris School uses enterprise funds to account 
for its After School Care functions.  
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information essential to 
facilitating a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial 
statements.  The notes to the financial statements begin on page 19 of this report. 
 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a school’s financial 
condition.  The assets of The Exploris School exceeded liabilities by $1,224,060 as of June 30, 
2016.  As of June 30, 2015, the net position of The Exploris School stood at $829,591.  The 
School’s net position increased by $394,469 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, compared 
to an increase of $284,074 in 2015. The amount of $313,758 reflects the School’s investment in 
capital assets (e.g. leasehold improvements, computer equipment, and audio visual equipment), 
less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.  The Exploris 
School uses these capital assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets 
are not available for future spending.  Although The Exploris School’s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt 
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these 
liabilities.  An additional portion of The Exploris School’s net assets represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance of $910,302 is 
unrestricted.  In 2015, the net investment in capital assets was $360,879, with unrestricted net 
position standing at $468,712. 
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Figure 2 

The Exploris School’s Net Position 
 

 Governmental Activities   Business-Type Activities  Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Current and other assets  $     778,588  $     556,375  $      146,610  $     114,882  $     925,198  $      671,257 
Capital assets, net of 
depreciation 

  
471,185 

  
615,107 

  
- 

   
-  

  
471,185 

  
615,107 

 Total assets  
  

1,249,773 
  

1,171,482 
  

146,610 
   

114,882          1,396,383 
  

1,286,364 

Other liabilities             1,576 
  

149,084                      - 
   

115               1,576 
  

149,199 

Long-term liabilities outstanding            157,427 
  

284,807 
  

- 
   

-             157,427 
  

284,807 

 Total liabilities              159,003 
  

433,891                      - 
   

115  159,003 
  

434,006 

 Deferred inflows of resources               13,320 
  

22,767 
  

- 
   

-  13,320 
  

22,767 

Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt            313,758 

  
360,879 

  
- 

   
-             313,758 

  
360,879 

Unrestricted            763,692 
  

353,945 
  

146,610 
   

114,767              910,302 
  

468,712 

 Total net assets   $     1,077,450  $     714,824  $      146,610  $     114,767   $     1,224,060  $      829,591 

 
 
 
Several aspects of the School’s financial operations positively influenced the total unrestricted 
governmental net assets: 

 
 

 The School adopted an annual budget.  The School’s performance was measured using 
this budget on a monthly basis, allowing changes to be made in spending as needed to 
remain within the confines of the budget. 

 

 The School applied for and was awarded federal grants to assist with meeting the 
educational needs of the student population. 
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Figure 3 
The Exploris School’s Changes in Net Position 

 

 Governmental Activities  
 Business-Type 

Activities  Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Charges for services  $            -  $             -  $  71,471  $  58,855  $  71,471   $  58,855 

Operating grants and contributions 
  

80,737 
  

63,548 
  

- 
  

-  
   

80,737 
  

63,548 

County, State, and federal Funds 
  

3,240,502 
  

3,042,790 - - 
   

3,240,502 
  

3,042,790 

Donations and other revenues 
  

329,149 
  

138,738 
  

- 
  

-  
   

329,149 
  

138,738 

Total revenues 
  

3,650,388 
  

3,245,076 
  

71,471 
  

58,855  
   

3,721,859 
  

3,303,931 

Instructional programs 
  

2,713,254 
  

2,522,084 
  

- 
  

-  
   

2,713,254 
  

2,522,084 

Support services 
  

562,949 
  

456,354 
  

- 
  

-  
   

562,949 
  

456,354 

Child care 
  

- 
  

- 
  

39,628 
  

33,011  
   

39,628 
  

33,011 

Interest on long-term debt 
  

11,559 
  

8,408 
  

- 
  

-  
   

11,559 
  

8,408 

Total expenses 
  

3,287,762 
  

2,986,846 
  

39,628 
  

33,011  
   

3,327,390 
  

3,019,857 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
before transfers 

  
362,626 

  
258,230 31,843 

  
25,844  

   
394,469 

  
284,074 

Transfers 
  

- 
  

- 
  

- 
  

-  
   

- 
  

- 

Increase (decrease) in net assets 
  

362,626 
  

258,230 31,843 
  

25,844  
   

394,469 
  

284,074 

Net assets, July 1 
  

714,824 
  

456,594 
  

114,767 
  

88,923  
   

829,591 
  

545,517 

Net assets, June 30  
 

$1,077,450  $714,824  $146,610  $114,767  
 

$1,224,060  $829,591 

 
 

 
 
Governmental activities.  Governmental activities increased the School’s net position by 
$362,626.   
 
Business-type activities.  Business-type activities increased The Exploris School’s net position 
by $31,843.   
 
By adopting a budget for the enterprise funds that comprise the business-type activities, the 
Board is able to monitor the School’s revenues and expenditures and adjust their estimates as 
needed during the year.   
 
 
Financial Analysis of the School’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, The Exploris School uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
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Governmental Funds.  The focus of The Exploris School’s governmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable financial resources.  Such 
information is useful in assessing The Exploris School’s financing requirements.  Specifically, 
unassigned fund balance can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The general fund is the chief operating fund of The Exploris School.  At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $648,956, while total fund balance 
reached $693,692.   
 
Proprietary Funds.  The School’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide statements but in more detail.  Unrestricted net position of the After 
School Care Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $146,610.   
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The Exploris School’s investment in capital assets for it’s governmental activities 
as of June 30, 2016, totals $471,185 (net of accumulated depreciation).  Capital assets include 
furniture, electronic equipment, and leasehold improvements. 
 
 

Figure 4 
The Exploris School’s Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 

 Governmental Activities  

2016 2015 

Construction In Progress  $                6,800  $                -  
Furniture 2,433                 3,355  
Electronic equipment 9,363               20,183  
Leasehold improvements             452,589             591,569  

   
 Total   $    471,185  $    615,107  

 
 
Additional information about the School’s capital assets can be found in Note 2.A.2.of the Basic 
Financial Statements. 
 
Long-term Debt.  As of June 30, 2016, The Exploris School had total outstanding debt of 
$157,427.  The debt consists of a note payable totaling $157,427. During the past fiscal year, The 
Exploris School’s total debt decreased by $127,380. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Economic Factors 
 
The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the School: 
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 The LEA in which the school resides has experienced tremendous growth, which should 
provide a steady stream of students into the School’s limited available space. 

 

 The State of North Carolina per pupil funding for the 2015-2016 school year, increased 
by $151.16 which equated to a 3.26% increase from the prior year.  

 

 The downtown area of Raleigh continues to be revitalized bringing many new families 
into the new homes and apartments that surround the School which will continue to 
provide a steady stream of new students that can potentially enroll at Exploris. 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the School’s finances for those with an interest 
in this area.  Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to the Board Chair, The Exploris School, 401 
Hillsborough Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27603, telephone (919) 715-3690. 
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Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 660,799$             146,610$           807,409$             

Receivables 3,053                   -                         3,053                   

Security deposit 15,658                 -                         15,658                 

Prepaid items 29,078 -                         29,078                 

Investment in joint venture 70,000                 -                         70,000                 

Capital assets (Note 1):

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 471,185               -                         471,185               

Total assets 1,249,773            146,610             1,396,383            

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,576                   -                         1,576                   

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year 102,539 -                         102,539               

Due in more than one year 54,888 -                         54,888                 

Total liabilities 159,003               -                         159,003               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 13,320 -                         13,320                 

NET POSITION 

Net investment in capital assets 313,758               -                         313,758               

Unrestricted 763,692               146,610             910,302               

Total net position 1,077,450$         146,610$          1,224,060$         

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 2

Functions/Programs Expenses

Charges for 

Services

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

Instructional services 2,713,254$      -$                     80,737$           (2,632,517)$     -$                     (2,632,517)$     

System-wide support services 562,949           -                       -                       (562,949)          -                       (562,949)          

Interest on long-term debt 11,559 -                       -                       (11,559)            -                       (11,559)            

Total governmental activities 3,287,762        -                       80,737             (3,207,025)       -                       (3,207,025)       

Business-type activities:

Child care 39,628 71,471 -                       -                       31,843             31,843             

Total business-type activities 39,628             71,471             -                       -                       31,843             31,843             

Total primary government 3,327,390$     71,471$          80,737$          (3,207,025)     31,843           (3,175,182)     

General revenues:

Unrestricted county appropriations 969,976           -                       969,976           

Unrestricted State appropriations 2,270,526        -                       2,270,526        

Contributions and donations 106,235           -                       106,235           

Grants 78,754 -                       78,754             

Field Trips 106,186 -                       106,186           

Miscellaneous, unrestricted 37,974             -                       37,974             

Total general revenues and transfers 3,569,651        -                       3,569,651        

Change in net position 362,626           31,843             394,469           

Net position-beginning 714,824           114,767           829,591           

Net position-ending 1,077,450$     146,610$        1,224,060$     

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Primary Government

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3

Non-major 

Fund

General

State Public 

School

Federal Grants 

Fund

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 660,799$       -$                   -$                   660,799$        

Receivables 3,053             -                     -                     3,053              

Security deposit 15,658           -                     -                     15,658            

Prepaid items 29,078 -                     -                     29,078            

Total assets 708,588$      -$                  -$                   708,588$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

   Accounts payable 1,576$           -$                   -$                   1,576$            

Total liabilities 1,576             -                     -                     1,576              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 

RESOURCES 13,320 -                     -                     13,320            

Fund balances:

    Nonspendable:

       Security deposit 15,658           -                     -                     15,658            

       Prepaid items 29,078           -                     -                     29,078            

    Unassigned: 648,956         -                     -                     648,956          

Total fund balances 693,692         -                     -                     693,692          

708,588$      -$                  -$                   

471,185          

70,000            

(157,427)         

Net position of governmental activities 1,077,450$    

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 

resources, and fund balances

Major Funds

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet

Some liabilities, including compensated absences, 

are not due and payable in the current period and 

therefore are not reported in the funds.

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 

statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different 

because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are 

not financial resources and therefore are not 

reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for 

current period expenditures, and, therefore, are not 

reported in the funds.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 4

 

Non-major 

Fund

General

State Public 

School

Federal 

Grants Fund

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES

State of North Carolina -$                  2,270,526$   -$                  2,270,526$     

Boards of Education 969,976         -                    -                    969,976          

U.S. Government -                    -                    80,737          80,737            

Contributions and donations 106,235         -                    -                    106,235          

Grants 78,754 -                    -                    78,754            

Field Trips 106,186         -                    -                    106,186          

Other 37,974           -                    -                    37,974            

Total revenues 1,299,125      2,270,526     80,737          3,650,388       

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Instructional services 767,601         1,745,695     80,737          2,594,033       

Support services 140,626         421,401        -                    562,027          

Capital outlay: 2,700             4,100            -                    6,800              

Debt service:

Principal 8,530 88,271          -                    96,801            

Interest and other charges 500 11,059          -                    11,559            

Total expenditures 919,957         2,270,526     80,737          3,271,220       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 379,168         -                    -                    379,168          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Investment in joint venture expense (70,000)         -                    -                    (70,000)           

Total other financing uses (70,000)         -                    -                    (70,000)           

Net change in fund balance 309,168         -                    -                    309,168          

Fund balances-beginning 384,524         -                    -                    384,524          

Fund balances-ending 693,692$      -$                 -$                  693,692$       

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Major Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14

B118



Exhibit 5

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 309,168$       

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by

which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.

(143,922)       

The investment in the joint venture consumes current financial resources of

governmental funds, however does not have any effect on net position.
70,000           

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to

governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt

consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither

transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the

effect of issuance costs when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are

deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net

effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.
96,801           

Some reductions in expenses are reported in the statement of activities do not

relate to current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in the governmental funds.

   Compensated absences 30,579

Total changes in net position of governmental activities 362,626$      

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Reconciliation of the Statement of

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 6

Enterprise Fund

Major Fund

After

School Care

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 146,610$         

Receivables -                       

Total assets 146,610$        

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable -$                     

Total liabilities -                       

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 146,610           

         Total net position 146,610$        

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit  7

Enterprise Fund

Major Fund

After

School Care

OPERATING REVENUES

Child care fees 71,471$                  

Total operating revenues 71,471                    

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 39,523

Materials and supplies 105

  Total operating expenses 39,628                    

Operating income 31,843                    

Total net position - beginning 114,767                  

Total net position - ending 146,610$               

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statement are an integral part of this statement.

17

B121



Exhibit 8

Enterprise Fund

Major Fund

After

School Care

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 71,601$           

Cash paid to employees for services (39,523)            

Cash paid for goods and services (220)                 

Net cash provided by operating activities 31,858             

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 31,858            

Balance-beginning of the year 114,752           

Balance-end of the year 146,610$        

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities

Operating income 31,843$           

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts receivable 130                  

Increase in accounts payable (115)                 

Net cash provided by operating activities 31,858$          

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2016

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

 The accounting policies of The Exploris School, North Carolina (School) conform to generally 

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments.  Charter schools are 

established by non-profit entities.  Because of the authority of the State Board of Education (SBE) to 

unilaterally abolish a school with all the assets reverting to a local education agency, the charter 

schools in North Carolina follow the governmental reporting model, as used by local education 

agencies.  The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 
 

A. Reporting Entity 
 
The Exploris School, North Carolina is a public school operated by a non-profit corporation, 
serving approximately 421 students.  The School operates under an approved charter 
received from the SBE, and applied for under the provisions of General Statute (G.S.) 115C-
238.29B.  G.S. 115C-238.29F (f) (1) states that a charter school shall be subject to the audit 
requirements adopted by the SBE, which includes the audit requirements established by G.S. 
115C-447 of the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act (SBFCA).  G.S. 115C-447 also 
requires financial statements to be prepared in accordance with GAAP.   

 

B. Basis of Presentation 

 
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
display information about the School. These statements include the financial activities of the 
overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal 
activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type 
activities of the School. Governmental activities generally are financed through 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities 
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the different business-type activities of the School and for each function of the 
School’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated 
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. 
Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients 
of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. 

 
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the 
School’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary 
– are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and 
enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. 

 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange 
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating 
revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions 
or ancillary activities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 

The School reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School.  The General 

Fund accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for 

in another fund. 

 

State Public School Fund. The State Public School Fund includes appropriations from the 

Department of Public Instruction for specific operating needs of the School and is reported as 

a special revenue fund. 

 

  The School reports the following major enterprise fund: 

 

After School Care.  The After School Care Fund is used to account for activity of the after 

school care at the School. 

 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash 
flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the School gives (or receives) value 
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and donations. 
Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 

 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The School 
considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are 
collected within sixty days after year-end. These could include federal, State, and county 
grants, and some charges for services.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and 
judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources. 

 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the School funds certain programs by a combination of 
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses 
are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the 
program. It is the School’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such 
programs, and then general revenues.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

D. Budgetary Data 
 

Annual budgets are adopted for all funds, on a school-wide basis.  All budgets are prepared 

using the modified accrual basis of accounting.   

 

The governing board has voluntarily established the policy, as a sound business practice, 

that expenditures may not exceed appropriations, for all the School’s funds, based on the 

adopted budget and subsequent amendments.  During the year, several amendments to the 

original budget were necessary, the effects of which were not material.   The budget 

presented in these financial statements represents the budget of the School at June 30, 

2016.  All appropriations lapse at year end. 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 
 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the School are made in a local bank, whose accounts are FDIC 

insured.  Also, the School may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and 

SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.  All cash 

held with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash and cash 

equivalents. 

 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The School pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and 

investment and to maximize investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments 

are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. 

 

3. Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 

and are recorded as prepaid items.  The School had prepaid items totaling $29,078 

at June 30, 2016. 

 
4.  Capital Assets 

The School’s donated capital assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at 
their estimated fair value at the date of donation.  Donated capital assets received 
after June 15, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value.  The total of these estimates is 
not considered large enough that any errors would be material when capital assets 
are considered as a whole. 

 
It is the policy of the School to capitalize all capital assets costing more than $2,500 
with an estimated useful life of two or more years.  In addition, other items which are 
purchased and used in large quantities such as student desks and office furniture are 
capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful 
lives of the related capital assets. All depreciable assets are depreciated using the 
straight-line method of depreciation.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs 
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized.  
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
4.  Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capital assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

 Years 

Leasehold Improvements  5 - 20 

Furniture 5 - 7 

Electronic Equipment 3 - 5 
 

5. Investment in Joint Venture 
The School’s investment in joint venture represents its equity interest in the joint 
venture. The School does not control the major operating and financial policies of the 
joint venture. The School holds a fifteen percent membership interest in the 
investment. 

 
6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 

separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial 
statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an 
expense or expenditure until then.  The School has no items that meet this criterion.  
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 
element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then.  The 
School has only one item that meets the criterion for this category – deferred 
revenue. 

 

7. Long-Term Obligations 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund 
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or 
proprietary fund-type statement of net position. 
 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of 
debt issued as other financing sources. 
 

8. Net Position/Fund Balances 
 

Net Position 
Net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are 
classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and 
unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or imposed by law through state statute. 

B126



THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 
 

 23

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 

8. Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued) 

 

Fund Balance 

In the government fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of two (out of 

five possible) classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed 

on how fund balance can be spent. 

 
   The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that cannot be 
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 
 

Security Deposit – portion of fund balance not available for appropriation 

because it represents the year-end balance of a security deposit on the 

school facility, which is not an expendable, available resource. 

 

Prepaid Items – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource 

because it represents the year-end balance of prepaid expense which is not 

a spendable resource. 

 

The Exploris School has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for 

programs with multiple revenue sources.  The Finance Officer will use resources in 

the following hierarchy: federal funds, State funds, local non-board of education 

funds, board of education funds.  For purposes of fund balance classification, 

expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in order by 

committed fund balances, assigned fund balance and lastly, unassigned fund 

balance.  The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the 

best interest of the School. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity (Continued) 

 
9. Reconciliation Between Government-wide and Fund Statements 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between 
governmental funds' total fund balance and governmental activities' net position as 
reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  The net adjustment of 
$383,758 consists of several elements as follows: 
 

Capital assets used in governmental activities 
that are not financial resources are therefore not 
reported in the fund (total capital assets on 
government-wide activities column). $ 939,725 
 

Less accumulated depreciation  (468,540) 
 

The School’s investment in joint venture is not 
available to pay for current period expenditures 
and therefore, is not reported in the funds.  70,000 
 
Liabilities that, because they are not due and 
payable in the current period do not require 
current resources to pay and are therefore not 
reported in the fund statements: 
 
   Notes payable  (157,427) 
 

Total adjustment $ 383,758 

 
F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

 

1. Funding 
The Exploris School, North Carolina is funded by the State Board of Education, 
receiving (i) an amount equal to tyes he average per pupil allocation for the average 
daily membership (ADM) from the local school administrative unit allotments in which 
the school is located (i.e. Wake County Board of Education) for each child attending 
the School except for the allocation for children with special needs and (ii) an 
additional amount for each child attending the School who is a child with special 
needs [G.S. 115C-238.29H(a)].  Additionally, the appropriate local school 
administrative unit(s) transfers to the School, for each student who resides in the 
local administrative unit and attends the charter school, an amount equal to the per 
pupil local current expense appropriation to the respective local school administrative 
unit for the fiscal year. [G.S. 115C-238.29H(b)].  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016, The Exploris School, North Carolina received funding from the Boards of 
Education of Wake County, Johnston County, Durham County, and Nash-Rocky 
Mount Public Schools.  
 
Furthermore, The Exploris School, North Carolina has received donations of cash 
and/or equipment from private organizations.  The cash is available to be used 
throughout the year for the School’s various programs and activities. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

F. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses (Continued) 

 

2. Reconciliation Between Government-Wide and Fund Statements 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 

balance is followed by a reconciliation between the change in governmental funds’ 

fund balance and the change in governmental activities’ net position as reported on 

the government-wide statement of activities.  The net difference of $53,458 between 

the two amounts consists of the following elements: 

 

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund 

statements but capitalized as assets on the 

statement of activities. $ 6,800 

 

Depreciation expense that is recorded on the 

statement of activities but not in the fund 

statements.  (150,722) 

 

The investment in joint venture expense 

consumes current financial resources, however 

does not have any effect on net position.  70,000 

 

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded 

as a use of funds on the fund statements but 

again affect only the statement of net position in 

the government-wide statements.  96,801 

 

Some reductions in expenses reported in the 

statement of activities do not relate to current 

financial resources and, therefore, are not 

reported as expenditures in the governmental 

funds. 

 

   Compensated absences  30,579 

 

Total $ 53,458 

 
G. Use of Estimates and Assumptions 
 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements.  Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenditures. 
 
 

B129



THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 
 
 

 26

2. Detail Notes on All Funds  
 

A.  Assets 
 

1.  Deposits 

At June 30, 2016, the School had deposits with banks and savings and loans with a 

carrying amount of $807,409.  The bank balance with the financial institutions was 

$846,980, of which $596,980 was not covered by federal depository insurance.  The 

School does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

 

2. Capital Assets 

   Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows: 

 

  Beginning        Ending 

  Balances   Increases   Decreases   Balances  

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

  Construction in progress $ - $ 6,800 $ - $ 6,800 

   Total capital assets not being  

   depreciated  -  6,800  -  6,800 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

  Furniture  22,891  -  -  22,891 

  Electronic equipment  213,541  -  -  213,541 

  Leasehold improvements  696,493  -  -  696,493 

   Total assets  932,925  -  -  939,725 

 Less accumulated depreciation for: 

  Furniture  19,536  922  -  20,458 

  Electronic equipment  193,358  10,820  -  204,178 

  Leasehold improvements  104,924  138,980  -  243,904 

   Total accumulated depreciation  317,818  150,722  -  468,540 

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 615,107     $ 471,185 
 

 Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows: 

 

 Instructional programs $ 149,800  

 Supporting services  922 

   

  $ 150,722 

 

3. Investment in Joint Venture 
An operating agreement was executed in April 2016 in which the School has a fifteen 
percent membership and profit and loss allocation interest in Exploris Development 
Group, LLC (the “Venture”). The entity was formed to hold a parcel of land that was 
purchased in April 2016, and to develop the property for a permanent downtown 
Raleigh campus for the School. The investment was recorded at an initial cost of 
$70,000 and adjusted for the School’s share of earnings, cash contributions and 
distributions, which totaled $0 for the year ending June 30, 2016. The investment 
balance at June 30, 2016 totaled $70,000. 
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds  
 

4. Fair Value Measurements 

To the extent available, the School’s investment is recorded at fair value as of June 

30, 2016. GASB Statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application, 

defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date. This statement establishes a hierarchy of valuation inputs based 

on the extent to which the inputs are observable in the marketplace. Inputs are used 

in applying the various valuation techniques and take into account the assumptions 

that market participants use to make valuation decisions. Inputs may include price 

information, credit data, interest and yield curve data, and other factors specific to the 

financial instrument. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from 

independent sources. In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s 

assumptions about how market participants would value the financial instrument. 

Valuation techniques should maximize the use of observable inputs to the extent 

available. 

 

A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 

level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following 

describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary 

valuation methodologies used for financial instruments measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis: 

 

Level 1 Investments whose values are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) 

for identical assets (or liabilities) in active markets that a government 

can access at the measurement date.  

 

Level 2 Investments with inputs – other than quoted prices included within 

Level 1 – that are observable for an asset (or liability), either directly 

or indirectly. 

 

Level 3 Investments classified as Level 3 have unobservable inputs for an 

asset (or liability) and may require a degree of professional 

judgment. 

 

The investment in joint venture classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is 

valued at $70,000 as of June 30, 2016 using the equity method of accounting for 

estimates.  

 

The following table summarizes the School’s investment measured on a recurring 

basis within the fair value hierarchy at June 30, 2016: 

 

      Fair Value   Level 3 

  

Investment type 

  Investment in joint venture   $ 70,000 $ 70,000 
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

 

B. Liabilities 
 

1.   Pension Plan Obligations 

The School does not participate in the North Carolina Teachers’ and State 

Employees’ Retirement System.  The School has established a deferred 

compensation plan.  Under the plan, all full-time employees who meet certain 

eligibility requirements can participate.  The School matches 50% of employee 

contributions up to 4%.  The expenses of the Plan totaled $23,858, $18,520, and 

$13,105 for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.  

 

2.   Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The balance in deferred inflows of resources at year-end is composed of the 

following elements: 

   Unearned 

   Revenue  

  

 Unearned Grant Revenue $ 13,320 

 

3.   Risk Management 

The School is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, 

and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural 

disasters.  The School maintains general liability and errors and omissions insurance 

coverage of $1 million per occurrence with a commercial carrier. 

 

The School has obtained a major medical insurance policy for its personnel through 

a commercial insurer. Through the plan, permanent, full-time employees of the 

School are eligible to receive health care benefits.  
 

The School carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss.  There have been 

no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and claims have not 

exceeded coverage in any of the past two fiscal years. 

 

The School has elected not to carry flood insurance because the School is not in an 

area of the state that has been mapped and designated an “A” area (an area close to 

a river, lake or stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

 

The School carries fidelity bond coverage in the amount of $250,000 for all its 

employees.   

 

4. Long-Term Obligations 

 

a. Notes Payable 

In November 2014, the School entered into a loan with a local bank with a fixed 

interest rate of 5.28%. Payments of $9,030 including principal and interest are 

payable monthly through maturity in December 2017, at which time the entire 

unpaid balance of principal and interest is due.  The note is secured by leasehold 

improvements. The outstanding balance on the note totaled $157,427 as of June 

30, 2016.  
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2.  Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

 
B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

4. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 

 

a. Notes Payable (Continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows for 

the years ending June 30: 

  Principal   Interest  

 

 Year Ending June 30, 2017 $ 102,539 $ 5,821  

 Year Ending June 30, 2018  54,888  849  

  

  $ 157,427 $ 6,670 

 

 

b. Changes in General Long-Term Obligations 

The following is a summary of changes in the School’s long-term obligations for 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016: 

 

  Beginning Ending   Current 

Governmental activities:   Balance   Increases  Decreases   Balance    Portion  

 

Note payable $ 254,228 $ - $ 96,801 $ 157,427 $ 102,539 

Compensated absences  30,579  -  30,579  -  - 

 

 Total $ 284,807 $ - $ 127,380 $ 157,427 $ 102,539 

 

c. Operating Leases   

Effective July 2009, the School entered into an operating lease for the school 

building.  The lease currently requires monthly payments of $15,361 increasing 

annually based on either the CPI or the increase in per pupil allotment.  Effective 

September 2014, the lease was $15,530 per month.  The lease expires August 

31, 2024.   

 

In July 2014, the School entered into a ground lease agreement as well as a 

modular lease agreement. The ground lease expired in June 2016, and a one 

year renewed option was exercised through June 2017 which requires monthly 

rentals ranging from $3,500 to $4,166. The modular lease agreement matures in 

September 2017 and requires monthly payments of $6,840. Additionally, the 

School leases various equipment under lease agreements expiring at various 

dates through November 2017. Monthly payments range from $320 to $620.  

 

Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2016 under noncancelable lease 

agreements totaled $331,384.  
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2. Detail Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
B. Liabilities (Continued) 
 

4. Long-Term Obligations (Continued) 
 

c. Operating Leases (Continued)   

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments as of June 30: 

 

Year Ending June 30, 

 2017 $ 343,188 

 2018  217,520 

 2019  197,125 

 2020  201,068 

 2021  205,089 

 2022-2025  658,404 

   

  $ 1,822,394 

 
 

C. Fund Balance 
  

The Exploris School has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with 
multiple revenue sources.  The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: 
federal funds, State funds, local non-School funds, The Exploris School funds.  For purposes 
of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, 
followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned 
fund balance.  The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the 
best interest of the School. 

 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General fund balance that is available for appropriation: 
 

  Total fund balance $ 693,692 
  Less: 
  Prepaid Items  (29,078) 
  Security Deposit  (15,658) 
   

 Remaining fund balance $ 648,956 

        

 

3. Related Party Transactions 

 

One employee of the School serves as member of the governing board of The Exploris School.  For 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, this employee was paid a salary of $98,419 from the State 

Public School Fund. 
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4.        Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies 

 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The School has received proceeds from several federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these 

grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures 

under the grant agreements.  Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys to the grantor 

agencies.  Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.  No provision has been 

made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies. 

 

 

5. Change in Accounting Principles 

  
The School implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 72, Fair 
Value Measurement and Application, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. In accordance with 
GASB Statement 72, guidance is provided for determining fair value measurements for financial 
reporting and disclosure purposes.  

 

 

6. Significant Effects of Subsequent Events 

 

Management evaluates events occurring subsequent to the date of the financial statements in 

determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that affect the financial 

statements.  Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 22, 2016, which is the date 

the financial statements were available to be issued.  
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Statement 1THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

All Governmental Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)

Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:

State of North Carolina 2,270,526$     2,270,526$     -$                   

Board(s) of Education:

Wake County 921,365 924,868 3,503             

Johnston County 27,229 31,164 3,935             

Durham County 12,353 12,539 186                

Nash-Rocky Mount 1,355 1,405 50                  

U.S. Government 80,917 80,737 (180)               

Contributions and donations -                      106,235 106,235         

Grants 60,000            78,754 18,754           

Field Trips -                      106,186 106,186         

Other 6,000 37,974 31,974           

Total 3,379,745       3,650,388       270,643         

Expenditures:

Current:

Instructional services:

Regular programs 2,000,460 1,929,041 71,419           

Special programs 205,524 209,810 (4,286)            

School leadership programs 288,098 374,548 (86,450)          

Co-Curricular programs -                      11,286 (11,286)          

School based support programs 44,500 69,348 (24,848)          

Total instructional programs 2,538,582       2,594,033       (55,451)          

Support services:

Operational support 189,000 79,585 109,415         

Finance and human resources 68,663 78,059 (9,396)            

Policy, leadership and public relations 419,172 404,383 14,789           

Total support services 676,835          562,027          114,808         
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Statement 1

Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)
Budget Actual Variance

Capital outlay -$                6,800$            (6,800)$          

Debt Service

Principal 108,360          96,801 11,559           
Interest -                11,559 (11,559)         

Total debt service 108,360          108,360          -                 

Total expenditures 3,323,777       3,271,220       52,557           

Other financing sources (uses):

Investment in joint venture expense -                  (70,000)           (70,000)          

Fund Balance Appropriated (55,968)           -                  55,968           

Total other financing sources and (uses) (55,968)           (70,000)           (14,032)          

Excess of revenue over 

    expenditures -$               309,168$        309,168$      

Year Ended June 30, 2015

(Continued)

2016
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Statement 2 THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

Proprietary Fund Types

Statement of Revenues, Expendirues, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non - GAAP)

Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016

Favorable

Final (Unfavorable)

 Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:

Child care fees 55,000$            71,471$            16,471$            

Total revenues 55,000              71,471              16,471              

Expenditures:

Salaries and benefits 37,998              39,523              (1,525)              

Materials and supplies -                       105 (105)                 

Total expenditures 37,998              39,628              (1,630)              

Revenues over expenditures 17,002              31,843              14,841              

Other financing sources (uses):

Fund balance appropriated (17,002)            -                       17,002              

Total other financing sources (uses) (17,002)            -                       17,002              

Revenues and other sources

  over expenditures -$                    31,843             31,843$           

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 

(modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:

Change in net assets 31,843$            
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School  
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the The Exploris School, North Carolina as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise The Exploris School, North Carolina’s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 2016.

 
 

 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The Exploris School, 
North Carolina’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris 
School, North Carolina’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of The Exploris School, North Carolina’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 

B139



 
 

36 

Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Exploris School, North Carolina’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion.

 
 The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 

Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 22, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 
EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
 
AND THE STATE  

SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION
 
ACT 

 
 

To the Board of Directors 
The Exploris School 
Raleigh, North Carolina 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 
 
 
We have audited The Exploris School, North Carolina’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements

 
 described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the 

Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of The Exploris 
School, North Carolina’s major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The Exploris School, 
North Carolina’s major State programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
 

Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its State programs.  
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of The Exploris School, North 
Carolina’s major State programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;

 
 and the applicable sections 

of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit 
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. 
Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about The Exploris 
School, North Carolina’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major State 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of The Exploris School, North 
Carolina’s compliance.

 
 

 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 
 
In our opinion, The Exploris School, North Carolina, complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

  

 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
 
Management of The Exploris School, North Carolina, is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered The Exploris School, North Carolina’s 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major State program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major State program and 
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of The Exploris School, North Carolina’s 
internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

 
 

 
 
 

November 22, 2016 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 

 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 

 

Financial Statements 

 

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance 

with GAAP: Unmodified 

 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 

 Material weakness identified?   Yes  X No 

 

 Significant deficiencies?   Yes  X None Reported 

 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?   Yes  X No 

 

 

State Awards 

 

Internal control over major State programs: 

 

 Material weakness identified?   Yes  X No 

 

 Significant deficiency identified that is not considered 

to be a material weakness?   Yes  X None Reported 

 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified 

 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 

reported in accordance with the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act?   Yes  X No 

 

Identification of major State programs: 

 

 Program Name 

 State Public School Fund 

 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

 

No Findings 

 

SECTION III – STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 

None noted. 
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THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 

 
 

Finding 2015 - 1 
 
Status:  Corrected. The School obtained new lease agreements which included required verbiage.  
 
 

Finding 2015 - 2 
 
Status:  Corrected. The School adopted a tuition and fees policy during the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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State/

Federal Pass-through

Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Grantor's Expendi-

Grantor/Program Title Number Number tures

Federal Grants:

Cash Assistance:

U.S. Department of Education

Passed-through the N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

Improving America School Act of 1994 (IASA)

IDEA VI Cluster

   IDEA VI-B 84.027 PRC 060 $ 80,012

   IDEA VI-B Targeted Assistance 84.027A PRC 118 725

Total U.S. Department of Education 80,737         

Total Federal Assistance 80,737         

State Grants:

Cash Assistance:

N.C. Department of Public Instruction:

State Public School Fund - Charter Schools xxxx PRC 036 2,263,101

Summer Reading xxxx PRC 016 7,425

Total N.C. Department of Public Instruction 2,270,526    

Total State Assistance 2,270,526    

Total Federal and State Assistance $     2,351,263 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3: Cluster of Programs

The following are clustered by the NC Department of Public Instruction and are treated separately for state

audit requirement purposes: Title VI-B.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards includes the federal and State

grant activity of The Exploris School and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The

information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for

Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Therefore, some amounts presented in this

schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

THE EXPLORIS SCHOOL, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such

expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain

types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited. The Exploris School has elected not to use the 10-

percent deminimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Change in North Carolina K-12 Population

Division of School Business

NC Department of Public Instruction

D1



Change between 2003-04 and  2008-09

Change between 2008-09 and 2013-14

Change in LEA 

Average Daily Membership 

(ADM)

Change between 2013-14 and 2018-19

Division of School Business 

Source: Actual ADM higher of Month 1 and 2
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2011 - 2012

2014 - 2015

Percentage of Public School 

Students in Membership in 

Charter Schools

2017 - 2018

Division of School Business 

Source: Reported by LEAs.  Represents the percentage of K-12 public 

school students in membership in a charter school students residing in the 

LEA and in membership in a charter school in the state.
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The aggregate total enrollment in K-12 systems (LEA, Charters, Private, Home schooling included) is determined by the size of 

the cumulative 13 years births cohorts combined with the amount of out of state born students.

Based on Birth Census provided by DHHS and on the projections published by OSBM, the 13 years cumulative cohorts 

corresponding to fiscal years 2010 -2027 were computed for the chart below.

The cohorts size steadily increase until 2016-17, after which the totals remain relatively constant.
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Private, homeschool and Public Charter School Students

Division of School Business 
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LEA Membership by Race 2011 to 2019

Division of School Business 
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From: LaToya Montague <lmontague@ciswake.org> 
Date: March 22, 2019 at 5:15:51 PM EDT 
To: Michelle Duncan <michelled@exploris.org>, Roberta Hadley 
<rhadley@ciswake.org>, DeWand Hooper <dhooper@ciswake.org> 
Subject: CIS Wake deliverables 

Happy Friday Michelle, 
Please find attached the MOU that we discussed.  Let me know if there are any 
additional tweaks that need to be made. 
 
Also, per our conversation, there are 287 students between the age of 4-12 in the 5 
communities that we serve.  I would say roughly 80-85% of the students in those 
communities are from minority backgrounds and 100% from low socioeconomic 
backgrounds due to their residence. 
 
Good luck on reaching the finish line!  Let us know if there is any other assistance that I 
can provide. 
 
LaToya Montague 
Executive Director 
971 Harp Street 
Raleigh, NC 27604 
Phone:  (919) 525-2845     Fax:  (919) 834-7119 
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Exploris is a school founded on the principles of Global Education. According to David 
Selby and Graham Pike, international leaders in this approach, Global  education is based 
upon “the interconnectedness of communities, lands, and peoples, the interrelatedness of 
all social, cultural and natural phenomena, links between past, present and future, and the 
complementary nature of the cognitive, affective, physical and spiritual dimensions of the 
human being. It addresses issues ofdevelopment, equity, peace, social and environmental 
justice, and environmental sustainability. It encompasses the personal, the local, the 
national and the planetary. Along with these principles, its approach to teaching and 
learning is experiential, interactive, children-centred, democratic, convivial, participatory, 
and change-oriented.” Exploris’s articulation of its core values ground the school in this 
global approach.

Exploris is a diverse learning community that 
engages students in a challenging, relevant, 
relationship-based education. We do this 
through experiential, project-based learning 
that empowers students to foster a just and 
sustainable world.

MISSION VISION
Empowering learners to make 

the world better.

CORE VALUES
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Core Values
INNOVATION
 In a constantly changing world, the ability to 
approach challenges in a new way is vital. 
Exploris teachers and students design 
projects that encourage divergent thinking, 
creativity, ideation, and risk-taking.

SOCIAL EMPOWERMENT
Students learn best when they are exposed 
to meaningful, complex issues that are 
applicable to their own lives. Teachers 
engage students in current, relevant issues 
by solving authentic problems that are being 
addressed beyond the four walls of the 
school building. Students realize that they 
have the power to change how their world 
works. They know how to navigate public 
systems, lobby public officials, and present 
their research and opinions as responsible 
citizens. Student work is tangibly connected 
not only to the local community, but to other 
regions of the world and to past and future 
events.

CRAFTSMANSHIP
Producing an exemplary product is 
challenging. It takes attention to detail, grit, 
perseverance, revision, and tenacity. It takes 
a growth mindset and a dedication to 
competing with one’s own personal best.

CONNECTIONS TO NATURE
When students witness the power and 
elements of the natural world through 
adventure and stewardship, they begin to 
view themselves as just one species within a 
larger system.

RELATIONSHIPS
A nurturing school environment is one 
where students are encouraged to build 
and maintain positive relationships and 
collaborate with their teachers, parents, 
peers, and community. With a keen 
understanding of the unique 
developmental of the age group which they 
teach, teachers are intentional about the 
structures and relationship-building 
activities that they design. Positive 
relationships and collaboration results in a 
tapestry of learners who know they can 
depend on each other and work together in 
almost any situation. The end-product is 
deeper, and Exploris students experience a 
collective sense of accomplishment and 
ownership.

REFLECTION
In an ever changing world of new ideas, 
the importance of reflecting on one’s own 
t hinking and the thinking of others cannot 
be underestimated. Exploris values the 
creation of time to slow down, to reflect, 
and to build connections.

RESPONSIBILITY
Students will take ownership of their 
learning and accountability for their actions 
and behavior. Students will recognize the 
importance of character, integrity, and 
honesty.

CURIOSITY
True knowledge does not occur without 
curiosity. Students are empowered to ask 
questions about the world around them 
and to explore possible answers.
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STRATEGIC GOAL 1: FAMILY AND COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT
Increase partnerships with community 
organizations and parents to support students’ 
academic, social, and emotional needs.

Objective 1.1:   Explore grant/research opportunities 
to support school vision. 
Objective 1.2:   Partner with local universities to 
increase education offerings. 
Objective 1.3:  Partner with community 
organizations to provide resources for family 
engagement and wraparound support for their 
families.
Objective 1.4:  Support the development of an 
innovation center to assist in the transformation of 
education.

STRATEGIC GOAL 2: FACILITIES
Transition successfully to a new K-8 facility that 
aligns with our core values and expansion needs.

Objective 2. 1:  Begin construction in spring 2019.
Objective 2.2:  Complete and occupy new building 
by fall 2021.
Objective 2.3:  Develop alternate plan if 
construction does not begin by September 2019.
Objective 2.4:  Develop interior design that meets 
needs of students and staff learning.
Objective 2.5:  Ensure technology and infrastructure 
support instructional strategies.

 STRATEGIC GOAL 3: FACULTY AND STAFF
Attract and retain innovative and collaborative 
educators who are involved in shared decision
making about issues having an impact on the 
success of Exploris.

Objective 3.1:  Pay salaries competitive with Wake 
County Schools pay scale.
Objective 3.2:  Provide teachers with opportunities 
for professional development to remain innovative 
in education.
Objective 3.3:  Implement a 360-evaluation process 
for faculty and staff.

STRATEGIC GOAL 4: STUDENT SUCCESS
Str engthen K-8 curriculum and instruction to 
embrace diversity and differentiation for 
achieving academic, social, emotional, and 
cultural growth.

Objective 4.1:  Increase academic support across 
all subgroups.
Objective 4.2:  Create a curriculum matrix that 
guides K-8 instruction.
Objective 4.3:  Align essential K-8 social and 
emotional competencies for successful 
development.
Objective 4.4:  Build capacity to provide students 
with differentiated instruction.
Objective 4.5:   Decrease disruptive student 
behaviors.
Objective 4.6:  Strengthen project-based 
experiences to be more relevant, community 
driven, and hands-on.

STRATEGIC GOAL 5: DIVERSITY
Increase the racial and socio-economic diversity 
of Exploris educators and students to reflect that 
of Wake County.

Objective 5.1:  Develop recruitment plan to increase 
the racial and socio-economic diversity of students 
and staff.
Objective 5.2:  Secure funding to support needs of 
diverse school community. Objective 5.3:  Increase 
support staff and resources to meet diverse 
population needs.
Objective 5.4:  Develop strategies for helping 
students and families to feel welcomed,valued and 
supported.
Objective 5.5:  Increase outreach programs and 
community partnerships to include online, phone, 
and translation media.

STRATEGIC GOAL 6: FINANCE
Acquire adequate financial resources to ensure 
long-term financial sustainability of Exploris.

Objective 6.1:  Develop sustainable budget to 
support strategic goals.
Objective 6.2:  Have no substantive audit 
exceptions.

Strategic Goals
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Overview of the NC ACCESS Subgrant Program 
 
In 2018, the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction (NCDPI) was awarded a Public Charter 
Schools Program (CSP) grant from the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) of approximately 
$26,600,000. The CSP grant will be used to implement the North Carolina Advancing Charter Collaboration 
and Excellence for Student Success (NC ACCESS) Program to: 

1. Increase the number of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter 
schools and expand the number of high quality charter schools available to educationally 
disadvantaged students; 

2. Develop a cohort of 100 charter school leaders who can develop and demonstrate best practices 
in serving educationally disadvantaged students; and 

3. Broadly disseminate best practices in serving educationally disadvantaged students and foster 
collaboration in the charter school community and between charter schools and traditional public 
schools. 

 
The NC ACCESS Program and CSP define educationally disadvantaged students as students who are 
economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English learners, and students with 
disabilities. 
 
The NC ACCESS program has allocated the majority of the CSP funds to advance Priority 1 listed above 
through school-level subgrants, though subgrant recipients must also demonstrate a desire to share best 
practices with both charter schools and traditional public schools. For each of the five (5) years of the 
federal CSP award, the NC ACCESS Program will run a competitive subgrant competition and award 
subgrants to North Carolina charter schools that propose a comprehensive plan to increase the number 
of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number 
of high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. 
 

Ratings and Criteria 
 

The NC ACCESS Subgrant Program is a competitive application process designed to award funding for 
schools that propose to serve an increased number of educationally disadvantaged students. Each 
subgrant application will be reviewed by a team of NC ACCESS Program team members and external 
evaluators. All evaluations will be considered, and a recommendation will be made to the Charter School 
Advisory Board (CSAB). The CSAB will take all recommendations, application reviews, and due diligence 
into account and make a recommendation for the approval of subgrants to the State Board of Education 
(State Board). The State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
A subgrant application that merits a recommendation for approval should present a clear, realistic picture 
of how the school expects to successfully implement the proposed plans to increase the number of 
educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number of 
high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. In addition to meeting the 
criteria that are specific to each section, each part of the proposal should align with the overall mission, 
budget, and goals of the application and NC ACCESS Program. 
 
Recommendations for approval or denial will be based on the completed application which includes 
school information, signed assurances, enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
narrative, logic model, and appendices. The enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
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narrative, and logic model are scored out of a possible 100 points. Applicants must score are least 80 
points to meet the standard. 
 
Applications that do not meet standard in all sections as evidenced by the summary review ratings will be 
deemed not ready for approval.  
 

Instructions for Reviewers 
 
Reviewers should complete each rubric section based on the evidence provided in the application. There 
are eight (8) total rating sections to complete: 

I. Applicant Contact Information 
II. Signed Assurances 

III. Enrollment Projections 
IV. Application Narrative (no more than fifteen (15) pages) 

a. If applicable, a school closure plan (no more than five (5) pages) 
V. Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model (no more than five (5) pages)   

VI. Competitive Preference Standards (optional) 
VII. Priority Consideration Status 

VIII. Certification 
 
Please note that there may be appendices to support information provided in the above sections. When 
evaluating an application, reviewers should both rate each section and provide comments, if applicable. 
Reviewers should look for responses that reflect a thorough understanding of key issues and barriers for 
educationally disadvantaged students. Responses should clearly align with the mission, goals, and budget 
of the proposed plan. Each response should include specific and accurate information that shows 
thorough preparation and understanding of school operations and serving educationally disadvantaged 
students. Reviewers should use objective language and complete sentences in their comments on the 
strengths and weaknesses/areas of concern of each section of the application. The comments and 
evidence provided are as significant as the rating. Below are examples of specific and detailed comments: 
 
Strengths of the application: 

• “The plan aligns with the overall mission and goals because…” 

• “The education and discipline plans are research based and proven effective with the targeted 
population of students because…” 

• “The lunch program is comparable to the National School Lunch Program and will support an 
educationally disadvantaged population by...” 

• “The marketing plan clearly outlines how the school will recruit and enroll a higher educationally 
disadvantaged population by…” 

• “The budget uses sound assumptions and is consistent with the goals of the proposed plan.” 
Weaknesses/areas of concern of the application: 

• “The curriculum and school calendar do not align with the mission and goals because . . .” 

• “The discipline plan does not include provisions for students with disabilities.” 

• “The budget assumptions include the unallowable use of funds for construction.” 

• “The plan proposes two buses, but there is no accompanying line item in the budget that allocates 
funds for purchasing buses.” 
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Once all eight (8) rating sections are scored individually, the applicant should complete the summary 
ratings page with all final ratings and scores. In order to pass the review, applicants must (a) meet all 
criteria in sections (I), (II), and (VIII); and (b) score at least 80 combined points between sections (III), (IV), 
(V), and (VI). Section (VII) will be used to determine priority if there are more eligible applications than 
subgrant awards. The CSAB will make a final recommendation to the State Board on subgrant awards. The 
State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
*Please remember that all documents, including your individual review, may at some time be available to 
the public. 
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Application Scoring Rubric 
 
Section I – Application Contact Information  

• All applicant contact information is complete and accurate.   

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

No weaknesses noted. 
 
 

 
Section II – Assurances 

• Assurances are signed.      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

No weaknesses noted. 
 
 

 
Section III – Enrollment Projections 

• Enrollment projections are complete, ambitious, and realistic. 

• Enrollment projections demonstrate a significant increase of educationally disadvantaged 
students, including economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English 
learners, and students with disabilities. 

Points Possible:  10 Points Earned: 10 

Overall Strengths: 

The applicant provided a detailed narrative describing how the proposed expanded program  
Is committed to increasing equity and diversity by serving educationally disadvantaged students to 
ensure the school reflects the demographics of Wake County. One of the strategies the applicant will 
use is a weighted lottery that will give priority to economically disadvantaged students over a five-
year period. Over five years the applicant is proposing significant increases from the current 98 (EDS) 
to 218 (EDS) students, which is a 32% increase. The applicant will additionally increase enrollment in 
grades K-8 from 447 students to 680 students overall. 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

No weaknesses noted. 
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Section IV – Application Narrative (*see subgrant application for full list of narrative questions) 

• Clear rationale for how the projected enrollment figures are ambitious and feasible, including the 
implementation of a weighted lottery.  

• Detailed description of how the educational program, school calendar, and professional 
development plans are specifically tailored to meet the needs of educationally disadvantaged 
students.   

• At least three (3) school-specific SMART goals are provided to support the proposed plan. 

• Clear explanation of how the charter school’s education plan compares to or differs from that of 
the local LEA(s). 

• General Education Provision Act (GEPA) statement demonstrating how the school has or will 
eliminate any and all barriers to enrollment for educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear description of the strategies the charter school currently uses or plans to use to serve 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed description of the roles and responsibilities of the applicant, partner organizations, and 
CMO/EMO, including the administrative and contractual roles and responsibilities of such 
partners. 

• Detailed plan for how the governing board will contribute to the recruitment and development of 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear vision for the school’s climate philosophy and a comprehensive discipline plan that supports 
the development of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed marketing and recruiting plan is described, with an emphasis on strategies to provide 
outreach to the families of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear and comprehensive transportation and school lunch plans are provided. 

• A coherent plan to implement the parent/community advisory council. 

• If applicable, detailed plans for forming a Student Transition Committee and a clear and specific 
Student Transition Plan. 

Points Possible:  60 Points Earned: 55 

Overall Strengths: 

The applicant provided a detailed and concise application narrative that clearly describes a strong 
educational program that is aligned with detailed professional development plan to ensure teachers 
are prepared to deliver the program. For example, the applicant indicated the need to build teacher 
capacity through ongoing robust professional development and culturally responsive programming to 
increase student achievement as measured by meeting or exceeding expected growth in all 
subgroups. The three (3) smart goals and the GEP statement provided were intentional and focused 
on the core goals of the NC ACCESS priorities. The applicant provided details on community 
partnerships and the continued support of parents. The partners and parents have a strong presence 
in the community and aligned comprehensive plans to reach out to prospective students.  The 
applicant provided a clear vision for the school’s climate and the vision for all students at the school.  

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

While the applicant provided some insights regarding a transportation program more concise details 
will be required before finalizing the award of grant funds. As indicated in the applicant’s narrative, 
the school is hoping the students recruited will live in walking distance or able to join a car pool. If this 
is so, this will limit the possibilities for a diverse pool of recruits. Additionally, the applicant needs to 
provide a more detailed lunch plan for the finalization of the grant awards. The applicant has  
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Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 

• Budget outlines complete, realistic, and viable costs for the duration of the grant period. 

• Detailed budget narrative clearly explains reasonable, well-supported cost assumptions 
anticipated for the duration of the grant period, as well as a plan that demonstrates financial 
viability beyond the expiration of the grant period. 

• All operational costs and major expenditures are accounted for and are realistic. 

• There is clear alignment between the budget, budget narrative, and the proposed plan to support 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Logic Model clearly demonstrates how actions and expenditures are expected to lead to specific 
outcomes. 

Points Possible: 30 Points Earned: 30 

Overall Strengths: 

The applicant provided a detailed budget that was clearly aligned with the budget narrative. The 
applicant clearly justifies the operations costs and they are realistic. For example, the applicant 
discusses in the narrative the need to train teachers to prepare for diverse students. In the budget, 
the applicant is providing teachers professional development from consultants to provide 
instructional strategy support and develop training and curricula, especially in the area of 
Culturally Relevant teaching to ensure that they are appropriately embracing culturally relevant 
practices. 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

 
No weaknesses noted. 
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Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards 
• The applicant may receive up to three (3) points for each competitive preference standard. 

• The applicant should provide evidence in the application narrative and appendices. 

Opening, expanding, or replicating a school in a rural or underserved urban area (i.e. without a 
high-quality school within fifteen (15) miles). 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

Not applicable. 
 
 

 

Increasing the racial and ethnic diversity in their new, expanded, or replicated school. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 3 

Notes (if applicable): 

The applicant clearly indicated that the proposed program will utilize grant funds to increase racial 
and ethnical diversity among students. The applicant has provided preliminary data that indicate 
there are five communities with 287 students ages (and 4-12) and 85%are minority and 100% are 
socio-economically disadvantaged. The applicant provided a plan to intentionally focus and target on 
this group of students as prospective applicants. 
 
 

 

The inclusion of high school (9-12) grade levels. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

Not applicable. 
 
 

 

Develop or manage a charter school focused on dropout recovery and academic reentry. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

Not applicable. 
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Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 
• The applicant meets the requirements for the following priority consideration criteria: 

Priority Consideration Criteria: Criteria Met: 

Currently serve a forty percent (40%) or higher economically disadvantaged 
population. 

  Yes 
  No 

Economically disadvantaged, English learners, and students with disabilities have 
proficiency rates higher than the state average for their subgroup. 

  Yes 
  No 

As evidence of participation in applicable federal programs, have Title I status.   Yes 
  No 

Maintained an “A” or “A+NG” SPG, as determined by the NCDPI, and met or 
exceeded growth, as determined by EVAAS, for three consecutive years prior to the 
application. 

  Yes 
  No 

Priority Consideration Status Total (number of criteria met above): 1 

 
 
Section VIII – Certification      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 
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Summary 
• Please complete the summary tables below with the final ratings from each section above: 

General Standards Status 

Section I – Application Contact Information Met     Not Met 

Section II – Assurances Met     Not Met 

Section VIII – Certification Met     Not Met 

Total (must meet all standards to pass) Pass     Fail 

 

Technical Standards 
Points 

Possible 
Points 
Earned 

Section III – Enrollment Projections 10 10 

Section IV – Application Narrative 60 55 

Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 30 30 

Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards Up to 12 3 

Total (must receive at least 80 points to pass) 100 98 

 

Priority Standards 
Standards 
Possible 

Standards 
Met 

Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 4 1 

  

Overall Application Status Rating 

In order to pass, the application must (a) achieve a rating of “Pass” for the 
General Standards and (b) score at least 80 points on the Technical Standards. 
The Priority Standards will be used to determine priority if there are more 
eligible applications than available awards. 

Pass with Priority 

Pass 

Fail 
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Overview of the NC ACCESS Subgrant Program 
 
In 2018, the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction (NCDPI) was awarded a Public Charter 
Schools Program (CSP) grant from the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) of approximately 
$26,600,000. The CSP grant will be used to implement the North Carolina Advancing Charter Collaboration 
and Excellence for Student Success (NC ACCESS) Program to: 

1. Increase the number of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter 
schools and expand the number of high quality charter schools available to educationally 
disadvantaged students; 

2. Develop a cohort of 100 charter school leaders who can develop and demonstrate best practices 
in serving educationally disadvantaged students; and 

3. Broadly disseminate best practices in serving educationally disadvantaged students and foster 
collaboration in the charter school community and between charter schools and traditional public 
schools. 

 
The NC ACCESS Program and CSP define educationally disadvantaged students as students who are 
economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English learners, and students with 
disabilities. 
 
The NC ACCESS program has allocated the majority of the CSP funds to advance Priority 1 listed above 
through school-level subgrants, though subgrant recipients must also demonstrate a desire to share best 
practices with both charter schools and traditional public schools. For each of the five (5) years of the 
federal CSP award, the NC ACCESS Program will run a competitive subgrant competition and award 
subgrants to North Carolina charter schools that propose a comprehensive plan to increase the number 
of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number 
of high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. 
 

Ratings and Criteria 
 

The NC ACCESS Subgrant Program is a competitive application process designed to award funding for 
schools that propose to serve an increased number of educationally disadvantaged students. Each 
subgrant application will be reviewed by a team of NC ACCESS Program team members and external 
evaluators. All evaluations will be considered, and a recommendation will be made to the Charter School 
Advisory Board (CSAB). The CSAB will take all recommendations, application reviews, and due diligence 
into account and make a recommendation for the approval of subgrants to the State Board of Education 
(State Board). The State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
A subgrant application that merits a recommendation for approval should present a clear, realistic picture 
of how the school expects to successfully implement the proposed plans to increase the number of 
educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number of 
high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. In addition to meeting the 
criteria that are specific to each section, each part of the proposal should align with the overall mission, 
budget, and goals of the application and NC ACCESS Program. 
 
Recommendations for approval or denial will be based on the completed application which includes 
school information, signed assurances, enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
narrative, logic model, and appendices. The enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
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narrative, and logic model are scored out of a possible 100 points. Applicants must score are least 80 
points to meet the standard. 
 
Applications that do not meet standard in all sections as evidenced by the summary review ratings will be 
deemed not ready for approval.  
 

Instructions for Reviewers 
 
Reviewers should complete each rubric section based on the evidence provided in the application. There 
are eight (8) total rating sections to complete: 

I. Applicant Contact Information 
II. Signed Assurances 

III. Enrollment Projections 
IV. Application Narrative (no more than fifteen (15) pages) 

a. If applicable, a school closure plan (no more than five (5) pages) 
V. Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model (no more than five (5) pages)   

VI. Competitive Preference Standards (optional) 
VII. Priority Consideration Status 

VIII. Certification 
 
Please note that there may be appendices to support information provided in the above sections. When 
evaluating an application, reviewers should both rate each section and provide comments, if applicable. 
Reviewers should look for responses that reflect a thorough understanding of key issues and barriers for 
educationally disadvantaged students. Responses should clearly align with the mission, goals, and budget 
of the proposed plan. Each response should include specific and accurate information that shows 
thorough preparation and understanding of school operations and serving educationally disadvantaged 
students. Reviewers should use objective language and complete sentences in their comments on the 
strengths and weaknesses/areas of concern of each section of the application. The comments and 
evidence provided are as significant as the rating. Below are examples of specific and detailed comments: 
 
Strengths of the application: 

• “The plan aligns with the overall mission and goals because…” 

• “The education and discipline plans are research based and proven effective with the targeted 
population of students because…” 

• “The lunch program is comparable to the National School Lunch Program and will support an 
educationally disadvantaged population by...” 

• “The marketing plan clearly outlines how the school will recruit and enroll a higher educationally 
disadvantaged population by…” 

• “The budget uses sound assumptions and is consistent with the goals of the proposed plan.” 
Weaknesses/areas of concern of the application: 

• “The curriculum and school calendar do not align with the mission and goals because . . .” 

• “The discipline plan does not include provisions for students with disabilities.” 

• “The budget assumptions include the unallowable use of funds for construction.” 

• “The plan proposes two buses, but there is no accompanying line item in the budget that allocates 
funds for purchasing buses.” 
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Once all eight (8) rating sections are scored individually, the applicant should complete the summary 
ratings page with all final ratings and scores. In order to pass the review, applicants must (a) meet all 
criteria in sections (I), (II), and (VIII); and (b) score at least 80 combined points between sections (III), (IV), 
(V), and (VI). Section (VII) will be used to determine priority if there are more eligible applications than 
subgrant awards. The CSAB will make a final recommendation to the State Board on subgrant awards. The 
State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
*Please remember that all documents, including your individual review, may at some time be available to 
the public. 
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Application Scoring Rubric 
 
Section I – Application Contact Information  

• All applicant contact information is complete and accurate.   

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
Section II – Assurances 

• Assurances are signed.      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
Section III – Enrollment Projections 

• Enrollment projections are complete, ambitious, and realistic. 

• Enrollment projections demonstrate a significant increase of educationally disadvantaged 
students, including economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English 
learners, and students with disabilities. 

Points Possible:  10 Points Earned:                     5 

Overall Strengths: 

The enrollment projections demonstrate an increase in the anticipated number of educationally 
disadvantaged students that will attend The Exploris School.  
 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

The population of students for the year 2022-2023 has been increased from 600 (current number) – 
to 680 (projected number).  The narrative provides no explanation for this increase. 
 
The additional number of ED students that will be served by the subgrant is not very significant and 
raises a question about how the term “expansion” is being defined.  Specifically, the relationship 
between the current and projected number of ED students for years 1 – 5 show that an additional 17 
students will be served in year 1; 18 in year 2; 21 in year 3; 61 in year 4; and 48 in year 5.  This means 
that under the current plan an average of 131 educationally disadvantaged students will be served 
during the next five years.  The average number of ED students served under the projected figures 
increases to 164. This means that on average, The Exploris School will serve an additional 34 ED 
students each year.  Does this qualify as an expansion? 
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Section IV – Application Narrative (*see subgrant application for full list of narrative questions) 

• Clear rationale for how the projected enrollment figures are ambitious and feasible, including the 
implementation of a weighted lottery.  

• Detailed description of how the educational program, school calendar, and professional 
development plans are specifically tailored to meet the needs of educationally disadvantaged 
students.   

• At least three (3) school-specific SMART goals are provided to support the proposed plan. 

• Clear explanation of how the charter school’s education plan compares to or differs from that of 
the local LEA(s). 

• General Education Provision Act (GEPA) statement demonstrating how the school has or will 
eliminate any and all barriers to enrollment for educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear description of the strategies the charter school currently uses or plans to use to serve 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed description of the roles and responsibilities of the applicant, partner organizations, and 
CMO/EMO, including the administrative and contractual roles and responsibilities of such 
partners. 

• Detailed plan for how the governing board will contribute to the recruitment and development of 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear vision for the school’s climate philosophy and a comprehensive discipline plan that supports 
the development of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed marketing and recruiting plan is described, with an emphasis on strategies to provide 
outreach to the families of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear and comprehensive transportation and school lunch plans are provided. 

• A coherent plan to implement the parent/community advisory council. 

• If applicable, detailed plans for forming a Student Transition Committee and a clear and specific 
Student Transition Plan. 

Points Possible:  60 Points Earned:                        55 

Overall Strengths: 

The Exploris School’s educational program is very well aligned with its mission and its projected 
expansion to address a larger EDS population.  The five pillars identified in the narrative are 
supported by solid research and they demonstrate a very realistic and feasible approach to 
supporting ED students. 
 
The section titled, “Comparison to Local LEA” explains how The Exploris School will be different from 
and also effectively complement the local public schools.  The strength of this section is also 
highlighted by the fact that The Exploris School values many of the instructional methods used by the 
local LEA and will seek to take advantages of their best practices.   
 
The Exploris School’s community partnerships, like CIS Wake, Interfaith Food Shuttle, and NC TEACCH, 
clearly exemplify a strong commitment to educating its students and especially those who are 
educationally disadvantaged. 
 
The Exploris school provides a detailed and well-developed staff development plan – one that will 
effectively use the grant dollars to support culturally relevant teacher training opportunities, 
especially in areas such as EC, ELL, and various forms of intervention. 
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All sections of the application’s narrative are well supported by existing research.  This effectively 
legitimizes The Exploris School’s arguments for expanding its academic offerings to educationally 
disadvantaged students. 
 
The application makes it clear that The Exploris School’s leadership has given careful thought to the 
increased number of ED s students’ transportation needs. The plan is thorough although it will need 
to be further refined as the school’s population is more clearly defined. 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

The school calendar includes 174 days of instruction for the students. Although the total number of 
instructional contact hours exceed the minimum state requirement, the 174 school days identified by 
the calendar means that working parents of educationally disadvantaged students will need to find 
alternative child care services.  The application does not address this concern in any detail.  Is it 
possible for The Exploris School to expand the school year and provide more school days to its 
students? 
 
The application’s lunch plan needs to include more assurances that the all students will receive 
affordable and nutritious meals. Presently, the plan identifies an “intent” rather than a clear 
explanation for how the meals will meet the EDS population’s needs. There is also no mention of 
breakfast. Research shows that a significant number of educationally disadvantaged students do not 
receive an adequate breakfast, which in turn has negative repercussions on their academic 
performances.  
 
Discussion about the purpose, scope, and recruitment for the Parent Advisory Council would benefit 
from a few more details.  This council will play a significant role in the success of the school’s efforts 
to increase the number of ED students. What are the incentives for participating on this council? How 
will The Exploris School encourage participation in this effort?   

 



Applicant: 

  

8 
 

Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 
• Budget outlines complete, realistic, and viable costs for the duration of the grant period. 

• Detailed budget narrative clearly explains reasonable, well-supported cost assumptions 
anticipated for the duration of the grant period, as well as a plan that demonstrates financial 
viability beyond the expiration of the grant period. 

• All operational costs and major expenditures are accounted for and are realistic. 

• There is clear alignment between the budget, budget narrative, and the proposed plan to support 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Logic Model clearly demonstrates how actions and expenditures are expected to lead to specific 
outcomes. 

Points Possible: 30 Points Earned:                      20 

Overall Strengths: 

The budget and its associated explanations are well developed and include appropriate details. Both 
support the application’s narrative. 
 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

It would help if the budget narrative addressed, in greater detail, how The Exploris School will sustain 
its academic programs after the NC Access subgrant funds have been expended. The narrative 
answers a few of these questions, but it makes it clear that this issue will have to be addressed in the 
future when it argues that “Exploris will also seek out additional grant funding in the future to 
continue to grow and enhance programming for our educationally disadvantaged students.”  Some 
programs funded by the NC ACCESS subgrant will become embedded in the school’s operation, which 
means that future funding should be identified as part of this application.  For instance, the narrative 
identifies the free Readiness Camp and tutoring programs.  Each is a very worthwhile endeavor. What 
is the plan for funding these programs after the 2023-24 school year?   
 
The Exploris School seeks additional funds, through the NC ACCESS subgrant, to support the projected 
increases in its educationally disadvantaged student population between the 2019/2020 and 
2023/2024 school years. The amount of the subgrant ($600,000) does not appear to be proportional 
to the number of additional ED students that will be served during the grant period’s five years.  
Specifically, and as noted in the discussion about enrollment projections, the relationship between 
the current and projected number of ED students for years 1 – 5 show that an additional 17 students 
will be served in year 1; 18 in year 2; 21 in year 3; 61 in year 4; and 48 in year 5.  This means that 
under the current plan an average of 131 educationally disadvantaged students will be served.  The 
average number of ED students served if the subgrant is approved will increase to 164.  It is difficult to 
understand why The Exploris School will need $600K to support an average increase of only 34 ED 
students per year. 
 
The application provides audit information about The Exploris School’s budget for 2018. This shows 
that the school had a healthy budget surplus.  If this trend continues for the coming years, is it 
possible that The Exploris School will not need the subgrant to support its limited expansion of ED 
students? 
 
Given the large amount of the funding request, it appears that much of it will ultimately benefit The 
Exploris School’s non educationally disadvantaged students.   
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Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards 

• The applicant may receive up to three (3) points for each competitive preference standard. 

• The applicant should provide evidence in the application narrative and appendices. 

Opening, expanding, or replicating a school in a rural or underserved urban area (i.e. without a 
high-quality school within fifteen (15) miles). 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned:                    0 

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

Increasing the racial and ethnic diversity in their new, expanded, or replicated school. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

The inclusion of high school (9-12) grade levels. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

Develop or manage a charter school focused on dropout recovery and academic reentry. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 
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Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 
• The applicant meets the requirements for the following priority consideration criteria: 

Priority Consideration Criteria: Criteria Met: 

Currently serve a forty percent (40%) or higher economically disadvantaged 
population. 

  Yes 
  No 

Economically disadvantaged, English learners, and students with disabilities have 
proficiency rates higher than the state average for their subgroup. 

  Yes 
  No 

As evidence of participation in applicable federal programs, have Title I status.   Yes 
  No 

Maintained an “A” or “A+NG” SPG, as determined by the NCDPI, and met or 
exceeded growth, as determined by EVAAS, for three consecutive years prior to the 
application. 

  Yes 
  No 

Priority Consideration Status Total (number of criteria met above):       

 
 
Section VIII – Certification      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
  



Applicant: 

  

11 
 

Summary 
• Please complete the summary tables below with the final ratings from each section above: 

General Standards Status 

Section I – Application Contact Information Met     Not Met 

Section II – Assurances Met     Not Met 

Section VIII – Certification Met     Not Met 

Total (must meet all standards to pass) Pass     Fail 

 

Technical Standards 
Points 

Possible 
Points 
Earned 

Section III – Enrollment Projections 10 5 

Section IV – Application Narrative 60 55 

Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 30 20 

Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards Up to 12 0 

Total (must receive at least 80 points to pass) 100 80 

 

Priority Standards 
Standards 
Possible 

Standards 
Met 

Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 4 0 

  

Overall Application Status Rating 

In order to pass, the application must (a) achieve a rating of “Pass” for the 
General Standards and (b) score at least 80 points on the Technical Standards. 
The Priority Standards will be used to determine priority if there are more 
eligible applications than available awards. 

Pass with Priority 

Pass 

Fail 
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Overview of the NC ACCESS Subgrant Program 
 
In 2018, the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction (NCDPI) was awarded a Public Charter 
Schools Program (CSP) grant from the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) of approximately 
$26,600,000. The CSP grant will be used to implement the North Carolina Advancing Charter Collaboration 
and Excellence for Student Success (NC ACCESS) Program to: 

1. Increase the number of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter 
schools and expand the number of high quality charter schools available to educationally 
disadvantaged students; 

2. Develop a cohort of 100 charter school leaders who can develop and demonstrate best practices 
in serving educationally disadvantaged students; and 

3. Broadly disseminate best practices in serving educationally disadvantaged students and foster 
collaboration in the charter school community and between charter schools and traditional public 
schools. 

 
The NC ACCESS Program and CSP define educationally disadvantaged students as students who are 
economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English learners, and students with 
disabilities. 
 
The NC ACCESS program has allocated the majority of the CSP funds to advance Priority 1 listed above 
through school-level subgrants, though subgrant recipients must also demonstrate a desire to share best 
practices with both charter schools and traditional public schools. For each of the five (5) years of the 
federal CSP award, the NC ACCESS Program will run a competitive subgrant competition and award 
subgrants to North Carolina charter schools that propose a comprehensive plan to increase the number 
of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number 
of high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. 
 

Ratings and Criteria 
 

The NC ACCESS Subgrant Program is a competitive application process designed to award funding for 
schools that propose to serve an increased number of educationally disadvantaged students. Each 
subgrant application will be reviewed by a team of NC ACCESS Program team members and external 
evaluators. All evaluations will be considered, and a recommendation will be made to the Charter School 
Advisory Board (CSAB). The CSAB will take all recommendations, application reviews, and due diligence 
into account and make a recommendation for the approval of subgrants to the State Board of Education 
(State Board). The State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
A subgrant application that merits a recommendation for approval should present a clear, realistic picture 
of how the school expects to successfully implement the proposed plans to increase the number of 
educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number of 
high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. In addition to meeting the 
criteria that are specific to each section, each part of the proposal should align with the overall mission, 
budget, and goals of the application and NC ACCESS Program. 
 
Recommendations for approval or denial will be based on the completed application which includes 
school information, signed assurances, enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
narrative, logic model, and appendices. The enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
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narrative, and logic model are scored out of a possible 100 points. Applicants must score are least 80 
points to meet the standard. 
 
Applications that do not meet standard in all sections as evidenced by the summary review ratings will be 
deemed not ready for approval.  
 

Instructions for Reviewers 
 
Reviewers should complete each rubric section based on the evidence provided in the application. There 
are eight (8) total rating sections to complete: 

I. Applicant Contact Information 
II. Signed Assurances 

III. Enrollment Projections 
IV. Application Narrative (no more than fifteen (15) pages) 

a. If applicable, a school closure plan (no more than five (5) pages) 
V. Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model (no more than five (5) pages)   

VI. Competitive Preference Standards (optional) 
VII. Priority Consideration Status 

VIII. Certification 
 
Please note that there may be appendices to support information provided in the above sections. When 
evaluating an application, reviewers should both rate each section and provide comments, if applicable. 
Reviewers should look for responses that reflect a thorough understanding of key issues and barriers for 
educationally disadvantaged students. Responses should clearly align with the mission, goals, and budget 
of the proposed plan. Each response should include specific and accurate information that shows 
thorough preparation and understanding of school operations and serving educationally disadvantaged 
students. Reviewers should use objective language and complete sentences in their comments on the 
strengths and weaknesses/areas of concern of each section of the application. The comments and 
evidence provided are as significant as the rating. Below are examples of specific and detailed comments: 
 
Strengths of the application: 

• “The plan aligns with the overall mission and goals because…” 

• “The education and discipline plans are research based and proven effective with the targeted 
population of students because…” 

• “The lunch program is comparable to the National School Lunch Program and will support an 
educationally disadvantaged population by...” 

• “The marketing plan clearly outlines how the school will recruit and enroll a higher educationally 
disadvantaged population by…” 

• “The budget uses sound assumptions and is consistent with the goals of the proposed plan.” 
Weaknesses/areas of concern of the application: 

• “The curriculum and school calendar do not align with the mission and goals because . . .” 

• “The discipline plan does not include provisions for students with disabilities.” 

• “The budget assumptions include the unallowable use of funds for construction.” 

• “The plan proposes two buses, but there is no accompanying line item in the budget that allocates 
funds for purchasing buses.” 
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Once all eight (8) rating sections are scored individually, the applicant should complete the summary 
ratings page with all final ratings and scores. In order to pass the review, applicants must (a) meet all 
criteria in sections (I), (II), and (VIII); and (b) score at least 80 combined points between sections (III), (IV), 
(V), and (VI). Section (VII) will be used to determine priority if there are more eligible applications than 
subgrant awards. The CSAB will make a final recommendation to the State Board on subgrant awards. The 
State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
*Please remember that all documents, including your individual review, may at some time be available to 
the public. 
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Application Scoring Rubric 
 
Section I – Application Contact Information  

• All applicant contact information is complete and accurate.   

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
Section II – Assurances 

• Assurances are signed.      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
Section III – Enrollment Projections 

• Enrollment projections are complete, ambitious, and realistic. 

• Enrollment projections demonstrate a significant increase of educationally disadvantaged 
students, including economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English 
learners, and students with disabilities. 

Points Possible:  10 Points Earned: 8 

Overall Strengths: 

• The applicant is proposing both over student population growth and ED student population 
growth, including increasing the diversity of the student body. 

 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

• The overall school growth does not seem to change from 680 students, this grant would just 
allow the school to get there faster. 

• At capacity, the school is only increasing from 25% to 32% ED students. 
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Section IV – Application Narrative (*see subgrant application for full list of narrative questions) 

• Clear rationale for how the projected enrollment figures are ambitious and feasible, including the 
implementation of a weighted lottery.  

• Detailed description of how the educational program, school calendar, and professional 
development plans are specifically tailored to meet the needs of educationally disadvantaged 
students.   

• At least three (3) school-specific SMART goals are provided to support the proposed plan. 

• Clear explanation of how the charter school’s education plan compares to or differs from that of 
the local LEA(s). 

• General Education Provision Act (GEPA) statement demonstrating how the school has or will 
eliminate any and all barriers to enrollment for educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear description of the strategies the charter school currently uses or plans to use to serve 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed description of the roles and responsibilities of the applicant, partner organizations, and 
CMO/EMO, including the administrative and contractual roles and responsibilities of such 
partners. 

• Detailed plan for how the governing board will contribute to the recruitment and development of 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear vision for the school’s climate philosophy and a comprehensive discipline plan that supports 
the development of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed marketing and recruiting plan is described, with an emphasis on strategies to provide 
outreach to the families of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear and comprehensive transportation and school lunch plans are provided. 

• A coherent plan to implement the parent/community advisory council. 

• If applicable, detailed plans for forming a Student Transition Committee and a clear and specific 
Student Transition Plan. 

Points Possible:  60 Points Earned: 45 

Overall Strengths: 

• The applicant outlined clear rationales for the enrollment projections. 

• Many research-based instructional and social/emotional supports are described. 

• Special furniture is being budgeted to support students with developmental and learning 
disabilities. 

• The applicant plans to support their Readiness Camps and begin a tutoring program, though it 
was mentioned that some cost would be to pay teachers for tutoring, which is unallowable. 

• The applicant outlined specific PD focus areas including MTSS, SEL, Racial Equity, EC, and 
integrating technology. 

• The applicant has already translated recruitment materials into Spanish and is working on 
other languages. 

 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

• The proposed SMART goals could use further details and measurability. 

• Though several strategies for student transportation were outlined, it is unclear what the 
specific plan will be to remove transportation as a barrier. Many strategies (walking, biking, 
carpooling, and public transit) may not be suitable for the target population, particularly 
younger students. Providing direct busing is all listed as supplementary options that are not 
finalized. 
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• The applicant outlined many thoughts and ideas for providing lunch, but not a comprehensive 
lunch program to support the needs of every ED student that enrolls. 
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Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 
• Budget outlines complete, realistic, and viable costs for the duration of the grant period. 

• Detailed budget narrative clearly explains reasonable, well-supported cost assumptions 
anticipated for the duration of the grant period, as well as a plan that demonstrates financial 
viability beyond the expiration of the grant period. 

• All operational costs and major expenditures are accounted for and are realistic. 

• There is clear alignment between the budget, budget narrative, and the proposed plan to support 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Logic Model clearly demonstrates how actions and expenditures are expected to lead to specific 
outcomes. 

Points Possible: 30 Points Earned: 25 

Overall Strengths: 

• The budget is overall realistic and viable. 

• Most costs are aligned with the application and are strategically focused to meet the needs of 
ED students. 

 
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

• There is money budgeted for transportation expenses like buying vans, though the 
application narrative did not make clear what the actual plan was. 

• The After school tutoring program has budget $10,000 per year, but that money cannot be 
used to compensate teachers. 
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Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards 
• The applicant may receive up to three (3) points for each competitive preference standard. 

• The applicant should provide evidence in the application narrative and appendices. 

Opening, expanding, or replicating a school in a rural or underserved urban area (i.e. without a 
high-quality school within fifteen (15) miles). 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned:       

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

Increasing the racial and ethnic diversity in their new, expanded, or replicated school. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 3 

Notes (if applicable): 

• Applicant outlines commitment to racial diversity and more closely mirroring the local LEAs 
demographics. 

 
 

 

The inclusion of high school (9-12) grade levels. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned:       

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

Develop or manage a charter school focused on dropout recovery and academic reentry. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned:       

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

 
  



Applicant: The Exploris School 

  

10 
 

Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 
• The applicant meets the requirements for the following priority consideration criteria: 

Priority Consideration Criteria: Criteria Met: 

Currently serve a forty percent (40%) or higher economically disadvantaged 
population. 

  Yes 
  No 

Economically disadvantaged, English learners, and students with disabilities have 
proficiency rates higher than the state average for their subgroup. 

  Yes 
  No 

As evidence of participation in applicable federal programs, have Title I status.   Yes 
  No 

Maintained an “A” or “A+NG” SPG, as determined by the NCDPI, and met or 
exceeded growth, as determined by EVAAS, for three consecutive years prior to the 
application. 

  Yes 
  No 

Priority Consideration Status Total (number of criteria met above): N/A 

 
 
Section VIII – Certification      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 
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Summary 
• Please complete the summary tables below with the final ratings from each section above: 

General Standards Status 

Section I – Application Contact Information Met     Not Met 

Section II – Assurances Met     Not Met 

Section VIII – Certification Met     Not Met 

Total (must meet all standards to pass) Pass     Fail 

 

Technical Standards 
Points 

Possible 
Points 
Earned 

Section III – Enrollment Projections 10 8 

Section IV – Application Narrative 60 48 

Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 30 25 

Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards Up to 12 3 

Total (must receive at least 80 points to pass) 100 84 

 

Priority Standards 
Standards 
Possible 

Standards 
Met 

Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 4 N/A 

  

Overall Application Status Rating 

In order to pass, the application must (a) achieve a rating of “Pass” for the 
General Standards and (b) score at least 80 points on the Technical Standards. 
The Priority Standards will be used to determine priority if there are more 
eligible applications than available awards. 

Pass with Priority 

Pass 

Fail 
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 North Carolina Advancing Charter Collaboration  
and Excellence for Student Success (NC ACCESS) Program  

Subgrant Application Rubric 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Applicant:    Exploris 
 

Reviewer Name:  Elaina Sabatine  
  



Applicant: 

  

2 
 

Overview of the NC ACCESS Subgrant Program 
 
In 2018, the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction (NCDPI) was awarded a Public Charter 
Schools Program (CSP) grant from the U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) of approximately 
$26,600,000. The CSP grant will be used to implement the North Carolina Advancing Charter Collaboration 
and Excellence for Student Success (NC ACCESS) Program to: 

1. Increase the number of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter 
schools and expand the number of high quality charter schools available to educationally 
disadvantaged students; 

2. Develop a cohort of 100 charter school leaders who can develop and demonstrate best practices 
in serving educationally disadvantaged students; and 

3. Broadly disseminate best practices in serving educationally disadvantaged students and foster 
collaboration in the charter school community and between charter schools and traditional public 
schools. 

 
The NC ACCESS Program and CSP define educationally disadvantaged students as students who are 
economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English learners, and students with 
disabilities. 
 
The NC ACCESS program has allocated the majority of the CSP funds to advance Priority 1 listed above 
through school-level subgrants, though subgrant recipients must also demonstrate a desire to share best 
practices with both charter schools and traditional public schools. For each of the five (5) years of the 
federal CSP award, the NC ACCESS Program will run a competitive subgrant competition and award 
subgrants to North Carolina charter schools that propose a comprehensive plan to increase the number 
of educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number 
of high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. 
 

Ratings and Criteria 
 

The NC ACCESS Subgrant Program is a competitive application process designed to award funding for 
schools that propose to serve an increased number of educationally disadvantaged students. Each 
subgrant application will be reviewed by a team of NC ACCESS Program team members and external 
evaluators. All evaluations will be considered, and a recommendation will be made to the Charter School 
Advisory Board (CSAB). The CSAB will take all recommendations, application reviews, and due diligence 
into account and make a recommendation for the approval of subgrants to the State Board of Education 
(State Board). The State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
A subgrant application that merits a recommendation for approval should present a clear, realistic picture 
of how the school expects to successfully implement the proposed plans to increase the number of 
educationally disadvantaged students attending high quality charter schools and expand the number of 
high quality charter schools available to educationally disadvantaged students. In addition to meeting the 
criteria that are specific to each section, each part of the proposal should align with the overall mission, 
budget, and goals of the application and NC ACCESS Program. 
 
Recommendations for approval or denial will be based on the completed application which includes 
school information, signed assurances, enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 
narrative, logic model, and appendices. The enrollment projections, application narrative, budget, budget 



Applicant: 

  

3 
 

narrative, and logic model are scored out of a possible 100 points. Applicants must score are least 80 
points to meet the standard. 
 
Applications that do not meet standard in all sections as evidenced by the summary review ratings will be 
deemed not ready for approval.  
 

Instructions for Reviewers 
 
Reviewers should complete each rubric section based on the evidence provided in the application. There 
are eight (8) total rating sections to complete: 

I. Applicant Contact Information 
II. Signed Assurances 

III. Enrollment Projections 
IV. Application Narrative (no more than fifteen (15) pages) 

a. If applicable, a school closure plan (no more than five (5) pages) 
V. Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model (no more than five (5) pages)   

VI. Competitive Preference Standards (optional) 
VII. Priority Consideration Status 

VIII. Certification 
 
Please note that there may be appendices to support information provided in the above sections. When 
evaluating an application, reviewers should both rate each section and provide comments, if applicable. 
Reviewers should look for responses that reflect a thorough understanding of key issues and barriers for 
educationally disadvantaged students. Responses should clearly align with the mission, goals, and budget 
of the proposed plan. Each response should include specific and accurate information that shows 
thorough preparation and understanding of school operations and serving educationally disadvantaged 
students. Reviewers should use objective language and complete sentences in their comments on the 
strengths and weaknesses/areas of concern of each section of the application. The comments and 
evidence provided are as significant as the rating. Below are examples of specific and detailed comments: 
 
Strengths of the application: 

• “The plan aligns with the overall mission and goals because…” 

• “The education and discipline plans are research based and proven effective with the targeted 
population of students because…” 

• “The lunch program is comparable to the National School Lunch Program and will support an 
educationally disadvantaged population by...” 

• “The marketing plan clearly outlines how the school will recruit and enroll a higher educationally 
disadvantaged population by…” 

• “The budget uses sound assumptions and is consistent with the goals of the proposed plan.” 
Weaknesses/areas of concern of the application: 

• “The curriculum and school calendar do not align with the mission and goals because . . .” 

• “The discipline plan does not include provisions for students with disabilities.” 

• “The budget assumptions include the unallowable use of funds for construction.” 

• “The plan proposes two buses, but there is no accompanying line item in the budget that allocates 
funds for purchasing buses.” 
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Once all eight (8) rating sections are scored individually, the applicant should complete the summary 
ratings page with all final ratings and scores. In order to pass the review, applicants must (a) meet all 
criteria in sections (I), (II), and (VIII); and (b) score at least 80 combined points between sections (III), (IV), 
(V), and (VI). Section (VII) will be used to determine priority if there are more eligible applications than 
subgrant awards. The CSAB will make a final recommendation to the State Board on subgrant awards. The 
State Board will determine the final approval of all subgrant awards. 
 
*Please remember that all documents, including your individual review, may at some time be available to 
the public. 



Applicant: 

  

5 
 

Application Scoring Rubric 
 
Section I – Application Contact Information  

• All applicant contact information is complete and accurate.   

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
Section II – Assurances 

• Assurances are signed.      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 
Section III – Enrollment Projections 

• Enrollment projections are complete, ambitious, and realistic. 

• Enrollment projections demonstrate a significant increase of educationally disadvantaged 
students, including economically disadvantaged, homeless or unaccompanied youth, English 
learners, and students with disabilities. 

Points Possible:  10 Points Earned: 10 

Overall Strengths: 

The school already serves a significant portion of ED students - increasing 2% a year certainly seems 
feasible. 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 
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Section IV – Application Narrative (*see subgrant application for full list of narrative questions) 

• Clear rationale for how the projected enrollment figures are ambitious and feasible, including the 
implementation of a weighted lottery.  

• Detailed description of how the educational program, school calendar, and professional 
development plans are specifically tailored to meet the needs of educationally disadvantaged 
students.   

• At least three (3) school-specific SMART goals are provided to support the proposed plan. 

• Clear explanation of how the charter school’s education plan compares to or differs from that of 
the local LEA(s). 

• General Education Provision Act (GEPA) statement demonstrating how the school has or will 
eliminate any and all barriers to enrollment for educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear description of the strategies the charter school currently uses or plans to use to serve 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed description of the roles and responsibilities of the applicant, partner organizations, and 
CMO/EMO, including the administrative and contractual roles and responsibilities of such 
partners. 

• Detailed plan for how the governing board will contribute to the recruitment and development of 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear vision for the school’s climate philosophy and a comprehensive discipline plan that supports 
the development of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Detailed marketing and recruiting plan is described, with an emphasis on strategies to provide 
outreach to the families of educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Clear and comprehensive transportation and school lunch plans are provided. 

• A coherent plan to implement the parent/community advisory council. 

• If applicable, detailed plans for forming a Student Transition Committee and a clear and specific 
Student Transition Plan. 

Points Possible:  60 Points Earned: 40 

Overall Strengths: 

Mentions gender inclusivity as part of lowering barriers. 
 
Academic calendar provides ample time for training. 
 
Description of disciplinary approach is thorough and shows attention to the experiences of ED 
students.  
 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

 
SMART goals lacked specificity and measurability. Some were not timebound. 
 
Addresses issues of ILL in terms of barriers, but does not address many other issues of access. 
 
The narrative lacks coherence. Because they highlight a lot of current practices, it’s difficult to extract 
the core focus of how they will use these funds.  
 
The transportation and school lunch plans show some areas of concern, especially the school lunch 
plan. It’s not clear, among the strategies they’ve listed, the plan they intend to pursue or what they 
feel is scalable and sustainable for their school.  
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Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 
• Budget outlines complete, realistic, and viable costs for the duration of the grant period. 

• Detailed budget narrative clearly explains reasonable, well-supported cost assumptions 
anticipated for the duration of the grant period, as well as a plan that demonstrates financial 
viability beyond the expiration of the grant period. 

• All operational costs and major expenditures are accounted for and are realistic. 

• There is clear alignment between the budget, budget narrative, and the proposed plan to support 
educationally disadvantaged students. 

• Logic Model clearly demonstrates how actions and expenditures are expected to lead to specific 
outcomes. 

Points Possible: 30 Points Earned: 20 

Overall Strengths: 

There are a lot of areas within the school that this grant would support. 

Overall Weaknesses/Areas of Concern: 

The logic model is very vague and doesn’t make a connection between the various line items in the 
budget and their impact on outcomes. 
 
Many outcomes lack enough specificity to be measurable. 
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Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards 
• The applicant may receive up to three (3) points for each competitive preference standard. 

• The applicant should provide evidence in the application narrative and appendices. 

Opening, expanding, or replicating a school in a rural or underserved urban area (i.e. without a 
high-quality school within fifteen (15) miles). 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

Increasing the racial and ethnic diversity in their new, expanded, or replicated school. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 3 

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

The inclusion of high school (9-12) grade levels. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 

 
 
 

 

Develop or manage a charter school focused on dropout recovery and academic reentry. 

Points Possible:  3 Points Earned: 0 

Notes (if applicable): 
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Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 
• The applicant meets the requirements for the following priority consideration criteria: 

Priority Consideration Criteria: Criteria Met: 

Currently serve a forty percent (40%) or higher economically disadvantaged 
population. 

  Yes 
  No 

Economically disadvantaged, English learners, and students with disabilities have 
proficiency rates higher than the state average for their subgroup. 

  Yes 
  No 

As evidence of participation in applicable federal programs, have Title I status.   Yes 
  No 

Maintained an “A” or “A+NG” SPG, as determined by the NCDPI, and met or 
exceeded growth, as determined by EVAAS, for three consecutive years prior to the 
application. 

  Yes 
  No 

Priority Consideration Status Total (number of criteria met above): 0 

 
 
Section VIII – Certification      

Status: Complete                   Incomplete  

Notes (if applicable): 
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Summary 
• Please complete the summary tables below with the final ratings from each section above: 

General Standards Status 

Section I – Application Contact Information Met     Not Met 

Section II – Assurances Met     Not Met 

Section VIII – Certification Met     Not Met 

Total (must meet all standards to pass) Pass     Fail 

 

Technical Standards 
Points 

Possible 
Points 
Earned 

Section III – Enrollment Projections 10 10 

Section IV – Application Narrative 60 40 

Section V – Budget, Budget Narrative, and Logic Model 30 20 

Section VI – Competitive Preference Standards Up to 12 3 

Total (must receive at least 80 points to pass) 100 73 

 

Priority Standards 
Standards 
Possible 

Standards 
Met 

Section VII – Priority Consideration Status 4 0 

  

Overall Application Status Rating 

In order to pass, the application must (a) achieve a rating of “Pass” for the 
General Standards and (b) score at least 80 points on the Technical Standards. 
The Priority Standards will be used to determine priority if there are more 
eligible applications than available awards. 

Pass with Priority 

Pass 

Fail 

 


